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1 2005 HIGHLIGHTS
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Dose, the newest combatant in the free-newspaper war,

. o L dropped into five Canadian cities this year: Toronto, Ottawa,
LTy (s Edmonton, Calgary and Vancouver. The new title, available
Monday to Friday, is targeting a young readership of 18- to
34-year-olds with its breezy run-through of the daily news;

a publication by the demographic for the demographic.
dose.ca offers each day's issue in its entirety as an Adobe
Acrobat document.

AR oy I -
New Zealand musicians gathered to celebrate the February |aunc)r,\xof i() l,
the country's first radio station to play 100 per cent local music. Local
stations already played 18.5 per cent New Zealand music ~ close to the
voluntary 20 per cent quota - speaking to the quality of local bands, but
‘the dedication of a radio station featuring 100 per cent local music is an
industry-leading step.

S

Those who doubted that a second series of Australian Idol could oyl {7
emulate the ratings success of the first wave were again’ proven NPERERTELE
wrong. The popular show earned Network TEN a winning 32.9-per " *% ©
cent of the total audience in ratings week 47. More than 3.3 million

were expected to watch the series’ second season finale as Australia’s

second Idof is crowned.

Canadian job seekers and employers now have a better way to
find the right match, with the launch of working.com. This new
online service combines the reach of CanWest's major metro daily
newspapers, Global Television stations, specialty TV channels and
the canada.com network to provide the most efficient meeting
ground for recruiters and potential new employees. By July 2005,
working.com was the number one career website in Western
Canada, and number three overall.
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in a September 8, 2005 announcement, CanWest revealed its:intention of offering.an ., -+, . ,. ., . .., ...
. interest in the Company's Canadian newspaper and interactive media businesses {with
the exception of the National Post) via an initial public offering in Canada structured
as an income fund. The CanWest MediaWorks Income Fund indirectly holds, through
CanWest MediaWorks Limited Partnership, an approximate 26 per cent interest in -
CanWest's Canadian newspaper and interactive media businesses. The transaction
closed on October 13, and the CanWest MediaWorks Income Fund was born. CanWest
retains a 74 per cent interest in CanWest MediaWorks Limited Partnership.

O

The British broadcasting and telecommunications regulator OFCOM awarded
CanWest an FM licence for a new station in the Solent region of Southern England,
- the first licence awarded to an international media company. The station, branded

Orngma! 106, will serve the demographlc of 40-59 yeqr;oldswn the Southhampton
,3 ]

fadia

)

CanWest is making headlines with its 2005 television lineup. The finale of Rock
Star: INXS was the most-watched showof the night in Toronto and Vancouver,
with 41 per cent more viewers 18-49 than the previous week's finale of
Canadian Idol. Prison Break, House and My Name is Earl also started Fall 2005
well, capturing audiences for both Global and CH.

The AFL Grand Final on the TEN Network attracted an average audience
- of 3.4 million and a peak of 4 million viewers, making it the most-watched
sporting event of the year in Australia. The September 24 game is only

] e the second game in history to exceed 3 million viewers and was the most
) Iy 3 £ e} watched football match for any league this year. These ratings demonstrate
o "(hgfgrdwmgzpqqqlar}y pf the AFL as a truly national competition.
b i .
rTey

Just in time for the 2005 Toronto International Film Festival, CanWest announced
the launch of a new celeb magazine show Entertainment Tonight Canada, airing
daily beginning September 12. ET Canada will be produced in partnership with its
sister show in the U.S., with Canadian and American production teams working in
tandem daily. The show's segments retain a Canadian perspective, emphasizing
Canadian talent and boosting the image of Canada as “Hollywood North.”
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The year in review
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AMORTIZATION? (in thousands of dollars)
340,000 14,000,000
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{in thousands of dellars}
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ACTIVITIES OF CONTINUING OPERATIONS' CONTINUING OPERATIONS?
{in thousands of dollars] fin thousands of dollars}

1 Reslated in fscal 2001 Lrough 2004 Tor (he adoplion of AcG-15, Consulidziioin of Viarable tuierest Fulilies
2 Adjusted to ecclude the amortizalion of goodwili and ndefinite life ntangibles in fiscal 2001,
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Summarized quarterly financial information

FOR THE THREE 01
(N THOUSANES &
{UNAUDITED)

1 PERIGNS ENDED
NADIAN DOLLARS  UNLESS OTHERWIST NOTED)

CHRLISHTIN o

ENTERTAIN |
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2005 004 (as restated)*
31-Aug 31-May 28-Feb 30-Nov 31-Aug 31-May 28-Fed 30-Nov

Consolidated operating results
Revenue 701,537 805,722 628 BL3 872,630 664,990 783,941 661,865 200,604
Operating income before

amariization 84,322 197,614 148 696 289,605 120,837 202,367 143,495 250,399
Net earnings {loss} from

continuing operations (102,089) 58,823 28,242 35,446 59,767 52,475 {1,535) 83,592
Net earnings (loss) (106.039) 52,718 28,136 35,415 61,966 54,337 (211.277 81,496
Cash flow from centinuing

operating actwvities 202 539 72.948 175,313 18.488 184,685 52.0032 114,761 42834
Cash flow from operating

activities 214,141 83,298 181,628 35,629 186,943 75,962 105,862 41,5C7
Per share information
Net earnings {loss} from
continuing operations

Basic 1$0.57) $0.33 $0.16 $0.20 $0.24 $0.30 {($0.01) $0.47

Diluted ($0.57} $0.33 $0.16 $0.20 $0.24 $0.30 {$0.01) $0.47
Net earnings {loss}

Basic {$0.60} $0.30 $0.16 $0.20 $0.35 $0.31 ($1.19) $0.46

Diluted {$0.60} $0.30 $0.16 $0.20 $0.35 $0.31 ($1.19) $0.46
Trading Statistics
Trading volumes - FSX

Subordinate vcting shares 52,752,800 35,382,500 43,139.30C 46733400 17439800 26,285,700 26,803,100 22,325.100

Nen-voting shares 374,600 402,900 510,760 387,200 212,700 184,700 312,700 355,300
Trading volumes - NYSE

Non-vating shares 127,600 148,100 276.100 221,500 143,200 81,800 132,200 103,500
Market price of subordinate voting shares

High $15.78 $15.59 $15.75 $13.25 311.00 $13.18 $14.40 $12.49

Low $12.99 $13.02 $12.80 $9.15 $9.50 $16.50 $11.06 $10.26
Market price of non-oting shares - TSX

High $15.75 $15.68 15.65 $13.21 $11.00 $13.55 $14.27 31268

Low $i2.90 $13.05 12.75 $9.05 $9.52 $10.40 $11.20 $10.05
Market price of non-voting shares - NYSE

High US$13.04  US$1282 US$I1Z.95  US$LLOC US$8.27  1US$9.88  US$HINI3 US$9.55

Low US$10.55  USS$10.49 US$I0.E8 US$7.06 Us$7.25 UsS$782  US$RSE3 us$7.50

1 Restzted for thz adoption of AcG-15, Consafidation of Variabie Intarest £

23



Canest Globa! Communications Corp,

DAVID DRYBROUGH

Chairmazn of the Board

The past year was another landmark vear of
transition for the Company. Can\West lost the
services of Frank McKenna as Chairmar: shartly after
the Annual General Meeting in January, as he went
cn to serve Canada as Ambassador 1o the United
States. | was deeply honoured when the Board asked
me to step into Frank McKenna's shoes 2s Chair.

Details of the Compariy's accompiishments
through the year, including the excellent results
recorded by cur international operations and the
significant progress mase by our Canadian television
operations towards recapturing the ratings leadershig
of two years ago, are sel out elsewhere in this
document, in the President and Chief Executive
Cificer's Report. and in the section that provides
Management's Discussion and Analysis.

| will use my short report to comment 0a two
issues. On October 13, 2005 the Company reported
the successful completion of the initial pubtic offering
ang related financial transactions that created the
CanWest MediaWorks income Fund. The Board has
felt for some time that an income trust structure for
some or all of CanWest's Canadian operating assets
would provide significant de-leveraging benefifs to
ihe Company, while also creating added financial
tlexibility to consider new growth opportunities. 1t
is remarkable that the (PO was a great success
even though the Government of Canada issued an
iltimed and ilconsidered statement in September
2005, regarding its ongoing review of the tax status
cf income trusts. That announcement came just
one week after CanWest reported its intention to
iaunch the CanWest MediaWorks Income Fund, and
days before executives ¢f the Income Fund and our
investment bank underwriters were scheduled to
commence marketing the Fund’s units to investors.

The uncertainty created by the government's
announcement had 2 devastating impact on the
market value of all income funds n Canada, wiping out
bilions of dolfars in market value overnight. Against that
packground, the success of the 1PO was a remarkable
expression of confidence by the financial community
and individual investors who purchased 55 miliion units
of the CanWest MediaWorks Income Fund at $10.00
oer unit, resulting in gress proceeds of $550 milkon.
The vast majority of this sum was acplied against
corporate debt. The success of the IPG underiines the
importance of income funds in general to the Canadian
economy. These flow through enterprises have become

| an important component of a well functioning capital

| market and are an efficient contributor 1o the nafional
economy. In Canada, the income trust sector pays

out approximately $1 bilien a month in distributions,
much of it fo retirees wha rely on the income. Much of
that amount is taxeble, creating new revenues for the
government that they did not calculate in their analyses
of the contribution of income trusts.

The other issue | will mention is the
incraasingly chailenging regulatory environment
faced by Canadian conventional television. Results
for our Canadian television operations for the 2005
financial year underscore the signiticant struciural
and regulatory challenges facing loca! television
stations as they compete with an expanding ocean
of U.S. cable and Canadian specialty TV channels
brought fo consumers via cable and sateliite, not
to mention all the cther new electronic devices and
related services that deliver unregulated news and
entertainment 0 consumers whenever and wherever
they want it.

Of course, greater choice is good for the
consumer and that is not likely to change. But the
conventignal television networks, and the focal
stations, through which they deliver programming
to Canadians, are the only TV channels that deliver
quality and significant quantities of local news and
information programming to Canadians. At the same
time, conventianal TV networks are required, under
existing broadcast policy and regulations, to shoulder
the greatest burden in bringing quality Canadian
entertainment, drama and news grograms into
Canadian homes. Some examgles of the challenges
we face are that U.S. cable channels and Canadian
specialty channels receive compensation from the
cable and satellite distributors for the carriage of
their signals, but local television stations remain
ineligible. Local tefevision advertising markets are
being undermined by cable and satellite companies
delivering local signals from distant stations that
carry the same programs but at different times.

U.S. stations carry commercials for prescription
medicines directly into Canadian homes via
Canadian cable and satellite services, while such
advertising is prohitited on Canadian television {and
ali media, inciuding print and Canadian websites).

Finally, conventional television networks shoutd
not be required to invest hundreds of millions of
doliars in new transmission facilities for HDTV
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when very few, it any, Canadians will ever choose
te receive their HDTV signals directly frem such
transmission towers. Why not simply deliver the
HOTV signals directly o the cable and satelite
distributers just as U.S. cable and Canadian
specialty channels are allowed to do? At the heart
of it, broadcasters are reguiated as if they still
have a special privilege, sut in the 500 channel
universe, the competition faced from within and
outside the borders eradicates that notion. Dated
regulations and tack of copyright support are
striking at the heart of our business. if these issues
were addressed, we believe our competitive spirit
and ingenuity would allow us to face head on the
chalienges technology is creating for us.

These are issues that place our local
conventional television stations 2t a competitive
disadvantage just as the regulator aliows ever-
increasing competition fram channels not subject
to those constraints. Stay tuned, as these issues
become the subject of mere intense cdialogue
between the regulator and the regulated.

Finally, | would like to take this cccasion, on
behalf of the Board of Directors, to welcome two
distinguished Canadians, Mr. Derek H. Burney,
0.C.. of Ottawa, and Ms. Lisa Pankratz, CA, CFA, of
Varicouver, as new independent Board members.
Both joined the CanWest Board in April, 2005. Lisa
and Derek :mmediately became active participants
in the Bozrd's deliberations and we look forward to
the important contributions they will make as we
move forward on the Company’s agenda. The Boarg
continues to search for and intends to add another
independent director in the future.

I, on behalf of the Board of Directors, exiend
our congratutations to the management and
employees of the Company on the completion
of another successful year. As well, | extend my
appreciation to other members of the Board far their
imporiant contributions 1o his success.

A §
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DAVID DRYBROUGH
CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD
NOVEMBER 2005
WINNIPEG, CANADA
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President’s report to shareholders

Qur fiscal year, that ended on August 31, 2005, .
was a mixed bag of significant progress in
some areas, and disappointments in clhers. On
Salance, however, actions taken over the past
twelve months should tav the bass for future
success. Qur international operations scored
ancther exceptional year with record revenues
and EBITDA in Australia, New Zealand and
ireiand. Operating results from our Canadian
operations were mixed as costs associated with
new businesses in development offset gains in
our publishing operations, and with conventional
TV still struggling to regain the marketleading
oosition it lost two years ags.

Qverall, revenues increased by 6% to top
33 billion for the first time ever. EBITDA of $720
million rose slightly over (ast year's $717 million.
Net earnings of $10 mitlion for fiscal 2005 were
an improvement from the net loss of $13 million
for the previous vear. Eamings were affected by
aggregate non<cash charges of $95 million and
iosses of $185 million associated with interest rate
and foreign currency swaps, as well as foreign
currency gains of $76 miltion. Cutting through all
that, if you exclude these and comparable charges
in both years, net earnings would have been $173
million in fiscal 2005, compared to $117 million
one year earlier. The basic component of this
significant improvement is reduced debt and
the resulting lower interest payments.

The successful initial public offering of the
CanWest MediaWorks Income Fund, completed
in October 2005, was a very significant
accomplishment. That transformational
transaction, several vears in the pianning,
marked another important step in & five-year
program to rebuild CanWest's financial capacity
i0 pursue growth opportunities in Canada and
internationally. The launch of the Income Fund
foliowed a complex series of financial transactions
over the past year that were necessary to facilitate
transfer of the Publishing Group assets into & new
tegat entity, The CanWest MediaWorks Limited
Partnership, of which CanWest retains a 74.2%
interest and the Income Fund helds the other
25.8%.

The net result of this initiative was a

President and Chief Executive Officer

CanWest Gioba! Comm

ications Corp.

! reduction in CanWest Global consolidated debt
ol approximately $400 miliion. However, it is
important {o note thal some of the compenents
of consofidated debt atiributable to CanWest's
| international operations and the CanWest
| MediaWorks Limied Partnership are not only
non-recourse to CanWest, but are also supported
‘ by highly profitable operaticns, nene of which are
| leveraged at higher than 3:1. The key point is that
debt that is recourse to CanWest Global is now
down to $1.3 billion, compared to $2.6 biliion
; prior to the IPQ, and $3.9 billion five years age, in
November 2000. The Company's gebt to EBITDA
ratio on closing of the Income Fund transaction
I was down to 3.74:1, compared to 5.42:1 (6.8:
| when Hollinger PIK Notes are included) in
November 2000.

Of course, our improved financial position
did nct happen overnight with one transaction.
We have followed a persistent and determined
prograrn of debt reduction over the past five years
consisting of sales of non-strategic newspager,
television and other assets, the discontinuation of

equily in operating subsidiaries, and a series of
re-financings that took advantage of the
availability of lower interest rates to reduce annual
interest expense. Additionally, the Company has
censistently applied the free cash generated by
our operations to debt reduction. Lach of those
activities contributed importantly to the reduction
of annual interest expense and the successiul
achievement of our financial strategy.

Qver the past five years, the Company
initiated ne less than three re-financings of our
corporate debt. For the most part, these were
motivated by opportunities to reduce annual
interest expense by replacing relatively high-
interest debt, incurred as part of the original
newspaper acquisition, with more favourable
rates that became available in subsequent years.
As our ratios improved, the Company obtained
the necessary financial flexibility to refinance the
most expensive component of our debt, the so-
catied Hollinger PIK notes, at the end of calendar

successive re-financings reduced the Company's

our non-performing businesses, public offerings of

2004, Taken together, the cumulative effect of the

annual interest expense to $252 miilion from
$371 million in fiscal 2001, That number will be
reduced again in 2006.

The payctf from al! these initiatives is that
the Comipany i3 financially stronger today than
at any time since the acquisitions of 2000, Cur
internztional holdings alone have a market value
of approximately $2 billion, more than the entire
corporate indettedness. We are less constrained
today by restrictive detit covenants, and CanWest
is in @ much betler position to consider growth
opportunities including acquisitions. Of course,
financial prudence wili, as always, remain a
fundamental component of the Company's
culture. We would still tike to rectuce our overzll
debt to EBITDA ratio.

Looking at our operating results in greater
detail, Network TEN (including Eve Corp.) turned
in another stellar year in fiscal 2005, with
consolidated revenues up 15% from the previous
year to A$352 million and consolidated EBITDA
of A$340 million, 20% higher than in 2004. Eye
Corp., TEN's cut-ofhome advertising subsidiary,
recorded a 44% increase in revenues to A$115
miliion ang ESITDA growth of 64% to AS25
mitiion. The story was similar in New Zealand,
where our television and radio cperations turned
ina 12% increase in consolidated EBITDAto
NZ$67 million on consotidated revenue growth of
9% from the previous vear to NZ$250 million. TV3
ireland also reported significant gains with a 34%
increase in EBITDA, and revenues up 13% over
the 2004 resuit, in their local currency.

In Canada, the steady 3% growth in
revenues at our metro newsgapers in 2005
reflected the stability of the newspaper industry.
Start-up costs associated with our new free
commuter magazine Dose, and CanWest's
share of losses in the Metro joint venture,
which produces free commuter newspapers in
Vancouver and Ottawa, did bite into profits at
our publishing group. Continuing losses at the
National Post, together with restructuring costs
and some increase in payrolt and distribution
expenses, all combined to resull in a 5% decling
in newspaper EBITDA to $255 million for the
year. Nevertheless, our ten large city newspapers,

I
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iccated in major cities from Montreal to Vicioria,
continue 1¢ be the ieading newspapers in every
markel they serve, and our twe newspapers in
Vancouver rank first and second in that market,
We expect they will continue to contribute o
growth in the coming year.

The interactive component of the
cublications group, including our online classified
szles {eam, canada.com, Infomart and the
electronic ecitions of our newspapers, experienced
Gouble digit growth. Buttressed by the foundatior:
of our metro newspapers, new publications being
created out of existing infrastructure (from boaks
0 magazines, io free real estate guides), our
snfine group continues to build audience and
grow revenue and profit at a lorrid pace

Canadian broadcasting operations faced 2
gerfect storm in 2005, as they contended with the
effects cf a weak overall TV advertising market,
nigher pregramming costs, fragmentation of
viewers, and dilution of z2d spending among the
growing number of avzilzble channels. Relatively
coor ratings performance in 200%, compared to
previous years, was also a problem for Global in
2005. On that score, we see some light at the
end of the tunnel as increased investment and
careful selection of new programming appears to
te paying off with several new Global programs
such as House and Prison Break cracking the
top ten list in the 2005 fall season. Globai's new
£T Canada, 2 Canadian Edition of Entertainment
Tonight. also got off to a strong start, topping
the ratings of the Canadian competition in key
cemographics. Ail this should transiate into
higher revenues in future quarters. Despite the
challenges, Canadian broadcasting cperations
achieved a 1% increase in revenues through the
year and 3% revenue growth in the fourth quarter.

Nearly 700,000 new subscribers to our
seven digital speciatty channels — MenTV,
Dejaview, Lonestar, Fox Sports, Xireme Sports,
COOL TV and Mystery — contributed to the
revenue growth in fiscal 2005, with the total
number of digital subscribers increasing by
20% to over 4 million. Prime, our analogue
specialty channel, also gained over 250,000
nevs subscribers in fiscal 2005 ictop 5.4

i million. Added revenues from sales of rights to

Global-produced programs aiso contributed to
revenue growth at our broadcasting operations.
Broadcesting EBITDA for the vear declined by 15%
1o $125 miliion, mainly due to the higher program
acquisition costs, with restructuring and higher
payroll costs alse playing a role.

In Oclober 2004, we re-organized all
Canadian operations under the CanWest
MediaWorks corporate brand. Peter Viner, 2 long-
time CanWest executive, was named President
and CEQ of CanWest MediaWorks in june 2002,
His initial mandate is to build on the considerable
success we have achieved and o pursue

! opportunities for increased efficiencies, reduced

costs and expanded effectiveness of sales arid
marketing across all our Canadizn operations.

For detailed information on the performance
of CanWest's Canadian and international
operations for the 2005 financial year, please
see the Management's Discussion and Analysis
secticn contained elsewhere in the Annual Report.

With its improved financial position, the
Company took a number of significant, but nct
capital intensive, initiatives in 2005 to address
organic growth opportunities in Canada and
new opportunities in international markets. In
Canada, we launched a new free daily newspaper,
Dese, which is distributed free to commuters
in Ottawa, Toronto, Calgary, Edmonton and
Vancouver. Dose is a new branded product that
is targeted at the youth and young adult market
and is supported by a strong online presence.
CanWest also became a partner of Torstar and
Swedish company Metro international SA in two
Metro brand newspapers, which are also delivered
free to commuters in Ottawa and Vancouver.
These new products remain in the development
stage and it is too early to make a judgment as
to the role that free newspapers will eventually
play in the Canadian newspaper landscape. At
a minimurm, they attract significant numbers
of readers, particularly among young acults,
who have not yet become regular consurners of
traditional newspapers.

internationally, the Company took & number
of initiatives. all of which are fairly small in

financial terms, but with pofentially significant
growth opportunidies. Early in the financial vear,
we entered into an agreement with an Israeli
company to acquire 2 50% operating inferest

in the Jerusalem Post newspaper and related
nublications that make up the Jerusalem

Post Group. Unfortunately, that initiative has
become mired in litigation as a result of the
non-perfarmance of our Israeli partner. CanWest
continues to pursue its legal rights vigorously
through zn arbitration process and we remain
hopelul of achieving a satisfactory result.

in November 2004, the CRTC awarded 2
licence to CanWest to launch a new FM radio
station in Halifax, Nova Scatia. The new station
will go to air in September 2006, providing a
contemporary easy listening format. The Halifax
station {which is stil! to be named) wil join
CanWest's two other Canadian radic stations,
COOL FM, Winnipeg's voice of jazz, which
went on the air in February 2002, and The
Beat, serving the KitchenerWaterloo region of
southern Ontario since January 2004. The new
Halifax licence represents another step forward
and the Company remains keenly interested in
developing a network of radio stations in Canada
to compiement cur other media assets.

In September 2005, the Company was
awarded a licence to launch a new FM radwo
station serving the Solent region of the United
Kingdom. Issued by OFCOM, the broadcast
regulator in the U.K., this first broadcasting
licence ever awarded to a non-U K. company
provides for a twelve-year term for an FM radio
station serving the southern region of England
that inciudes the metropolitan markets of
Southampton, Portsmouth and Bournemouth.
with an estimated reach of 1.5 miliion listeners.
We plan to launch our new British FM radic
staticn on-air sometime in 2006 and intend to set
a very good example with our new station, as we
will certainly be applying for more radio licences
in the U.K. in the future.

Also in September, we announced that
in concert with Turkish investors, CanWest was
declared the successful bidder on the right to
acquire an interest in two Turkish national radio




O

)

)

()

)

()

nietworks. There are still regulatory and other stens
ihat have to be taken before thase transactions
can be compleled, bul we are very enthusiastic
about this new venture and we see significant
Suportunities in Turkey as that country ¢f 70
million peopie engages in negotiations for entry
into the European Unicn and adapts its domestic
legal and reguiatory systems ¢ conform with the
more gpen and market-oriented model.

It has been evident for several years, but
carticularly over the past two vears, that the
regulatory framework for television broadcasting in
Canada is dysfunctional and in need of review.

The current regulations, developed and
administered by the CRTC under the authority of
ihe Broadcasting Act, have worked very well for
many years. Indeed, the CRTC was instrumental
in creating the conditions that produced more
quality Canadian programming including
national and local news, Canadian drama,
documentaries and comedy than would otherwise
nave happened. Nevertheless, the regulatory
system no longer functions as it should. Current
television broadcasting regulations ard other
iaws and statutes fail to take adequate account
of the economic stress inflicted by the scores
of new Canadian specialty and U.S. cable
charinels — not to mention the internet — on
the economic model for canventional televisinn,
which continues to be bound by demanding
regulations regarding investment in quaiity origina!
Canadian programming. As consumers responded
to the growing range of television choices. so did
advertisers who now use the same flexibility to
allocate their spending across a much wider range
of television channels and other vehicles. More
and more outlets are chasing the same viewers
and the same advertisers. it does not take a vivid
imagination to discern the implications of all this
for the market shares of existing conventional
ieievision stations. Meanwhile, conventional
broadcasters remain subject to regulations,
television policy and conditions attached to
sroadeast licences that no tonger reflect their
competitive position.

To complicate matters further, regulations
also enable Canadian and U.S. cable and

satellite specialty broadcasters to share in the
revenues paid by consumers to cable and satellite
distributors, bul deny access to this second

and fast-growing revenue stream to Canadian
conveniional television. We estimate that up to
$250 midion annually in subscription revenues
are paid by Canadian cable and satellite services
for the carriage of American cable channels,
which have no Canadian programming or other
regulatory obligations, while Canadian television
broadcasters are denied aceess to that source of
revenues. Subscription revenues have become
the fastest-growing revenue source and now
account for over half of tetal Canadian television
industry revenues.

The 500-channel universe is z reality today
and it is inevitable that consumers will gain more
choices in the future. We do not advacate denying
consumers access to the channels they want
to see. What we do sesk is a rebalancing of the
regulatory system so that conventional television
stations have the same revenue opportunities
as other television channels, and that other
regulatory burdens are commensurate with those
opportunities.

A separate report on our philanthropic
activities is contained on page 9 of this
document. Suffice it to say that the Company has
maintained and expanded its involvement in our
communities.

Dutlook

As we address the opportunities and challenges
of 2006 and beyond, it is clear that our agenda
must include a determined focus on shoring up
our Canadian cperations and addressing those
issues that have affected operating results for
Canadian television and our newspapers aver the
past year. This includes addressing cost issues
that cutstripped revenue gains in both newspapers
and Canadian television in 2008, in the case of
newspapers, the fundamentals remain strong, but
we believe there are marketing opportunities that
should erhance revenue growth and other areas
where we can increase efficiencies and reduce
costs. We have made significant progress in our

three-year program to develop a viable long term
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business plan at the National Post, but we still
have some distance (o go, and that will remain an
important area of focus in 2006,

The chalienges in Canadian felevision
are more complex and go beyond operating
efficiencies and cost management. We are
making significant progress in restoring audience
ratings o Global's previous industry-leading
position. Success in that endeavour should
generate increased revenues in 2006 and beyond.
We do have to keep investing in programming
and deploy some capital toward addressing
technological reguirements such as high definition
television, and digtization of content tz enabie
muiti-platform use. Unfortunately, high ratings
alone wili not guarantee that margins and
operating profits at our Canadian broadcasting
will return o the peak levels of two vears age.

In the coming year, we will place a high priority
on addressing structural issues in the industry,
including in the regulatory environment, that
place conventional television at a significant
disadvantage in comparison to the newer
competitors who operate under different rules
and cost structures.

| have reparted on the fremendous progress
we have made in restoring the Company's
financial position over the past year, ieading up to
the successful PO of our newspaper and online
operations in October. Qur corporate debt is
lower and our leverage ratios are much improved.
But we are still not where we want to be. Debt
reduction will continue to be a high priority for the
Company going forward. Further improvement
in our ratios is a sure way t¢ provide enhanced
value to our shareholders while also providing
increased flexibility to the Company to consider
growth opportunities. Debt reduction will remain a
high priority.

With the strerigthening of the Company’s
financial position, and a changing media
landscape in Canada and infernaticnally, we
continue to invest considerable executive time in
mapping out strategic opportunities and priorities
for future growth. Modest steps taken in the
past vear with the new radic licence in Britain,
our prospective participation in two national

~y
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radio network ventures in Turkey, and ow continuing efforts — now through arbitration — o
secure aur 50% interast in the Jerusatem Post Group, all reflect our perceplion thal there are
significani opportunities in inlernational markets. We are exploring a number of potential arees
ofinterest where segments of the media industry are not yet fully mature, and in non-traditional
emerging markets where there are significant growth cpportunities. These initiatives are fairly
small undertakings in financial terms but they do reflect an increasing Company focus en
exploring international growth cpportunities as cur impreving financiat circumstances permit. In
2ddition, our ontine and infernet based investment continues as this area of the media industry
will produce double digit revenue and profit growth for the foreseeable future. Over fime, this
will contribute an increasing amount o our overall profit as we acquire properties and grow our
audience and revenues organically.

My priorities for this year will be heavily focused on the issues facing Global Televisicn
and other under performing assets. In addition, as we grow and face new challenges, we must
also ensure thal we have the internal capabilities among our people to manage our assets, and
that we ran attract the best people 1o our company. This requires greater investment of time
as well s money in this area and | have taken steps to ensure we focus more on this in 2006,
The media business has changed forever. From oligopoties with high barriers to entry, we have
avolved 1o a highly camgetitive environment. As a result, bricks, mortar, licenses and historical
sositions mean less; and brands, talent and ideas wrapped around a nimble and fastmaoving
decision making process, are the new ingredients of sticcess.

Finally. [ will take this moment to thank our Beard, management and employees across
the Company for their outstanding efforts over the past year and to again express my pride in
feading a comgany whaose employees consistently and enthusiasticaily embrace our core value
of giving back to the community.

Respectfuily submitted,

LEONARD ASPER

BRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
NOVEMBER 2005

WINNIPEG. CANADA
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CanWest in the community

President
CanWest Global Foundation

R 1}ty suport

2005 Charitable and

community giving

Cash contributions  $4.0 million
Newspaper ad space  $9.1 million
Television airtime  $30.3 million
International $14.0 million
Total $57.4 million

CanWest is a recognized werld leader in producing
quality news ard entertainment, and we are
committed to seeing this tradition of excellence
continue in the communities where we live ang
do business. One of our core values is to Give
Back to the Community. We believe in supporting
crojects that create opportunity and improve the
guality of life for those living in cur regions, in our
cities and in our neighbourhoods.

As a socially responsible company, CanWest
contributes financial resources and in-kind
support to nurture and sustain organizations that
enrich our cultural and professional landscape.
The CanWest Global Foundation was established
in 1997 with a mandate to fund the arts, literacy
and communication and media studies across
Canada. Support fram the Foundation is evident
everywhere from university classrooms fo outdoor
music festivals, and has woven our Company into
the fabric of our communities.

This year we also extended our reach
to embrace the outpouring of sympathy from
CanWest empioyees for these who suffered as 2
result of the tsunami in south Asia on December
26, 2004. Of their own initiative, our employees
sledged approximately $150,0C0 to designated
relief agencies. CanWest doubled that amount by
extending our Matching Gift Program, so that the
agencies received approximately $300,000 from
CanWest and its emplayees. This in turn triggered
matching funds from the Government of Canada
gringing the total to arcund $600.000 all starting
with the generasity of our employees.

There is no limit on the opportunities we have to
give back to our communities. Many organizations
are brimming with creativity and talent, with
passionate and dedicated individuals who work
hard. Too often, they lack adequate funding.

Our contributions to the media and
prozdeast indusiry in Canada ensure that
emerging generations are provided with every
opportunity to excel. Today's students will be cur
peers and colleagues tomorrow. The funding we
provide to post-secondary education programs
across the country helps to sustain a tradition
of excellence ang integtity within the Canadian
media and brozdeast industry. in fiscal 2005, the
CanWest Global Foundation contributed $2 million
to program cevelopment, capital campaigns,
lecture series, chairs and scholarships.

Can'Woest media support

CanWest and its broadcast subsidiaries in
Canada, Austraiia, New Zealand and lreland
have a long history of community involvement,
providing airtime. promoticnal resources and cash
donations in suppart of local charities, events
and arts organizations in the countries in which
we operate. CanWest newspapers also have a
long record of giving, traditionaliy targeted toward
promating education and literacy, health and
welfare, civic charity and encouraging excellence
in the fields of publishing and journatism. In
fiscal year 2005, CanWest's operating units
donated more than $39.4 million in airtime and
advertising space across Canada, and CanWest's
international operations donated approximately
$14 million {cash and in-kind) in Ireland, New
Zealand and Australia.

Raise-a-Reader

Encouraging others to improve their reading skills
and ultimalely creating a more literate society is
more than words to CanWest. The CanWest Raise-
a-Reader campaign is an award-winning national
initiative in Canada of the CanWest Global
Foundation that is designed to raise awareness,
funds and resources for family literacy programs
across the counlry. CanWest's newspapers,

Glotal and CH television stations and our anline
sites contribute $% miliion worth of promotionat
support to a campaign that takes place in 13
cities across Canada, from Vancouver to Halifax.
Raise-a-Reader is truly a vear-round commitment
with numerous fundraising events that are held
throughout the year, ieading up to Raise-a-Reader
Day. Since the campaign's national launch in
2002, Can¥/est Raise-a-Reader has raised $5
miltion for family fiteracy programs across Canada
in an effort to combat low literacy levels and help
promote healthy reading habits.

Ore of cur new cormmunity based initiatives
in 2005 is the CanWest CanSpell National
Speliing Bee. Our first naticnal competition was a
tremendous success, with local and regional
competitions across Canada atiracling 80,000
participating students, leading up 1o the national
Can3Spel Championships in Ottawa in April,
at which 12-year old Finola Hackett of Tofield,
Alberta, representing the Edmonton Journal, was
named National Champion. The regional and
national champions then went to Washington D.C.
for the Scripps International Spelling Bee. We are
proud of all the participants and the immense
enthusiasm and cooperation of teachers and
schools across Canada whe made this initiative
possible, and also our national sponsors, Satun
and Air Canada.

A Caring Company/Imagine

CanWest continues to be designated “A

Caring Company” by the Canadian Centre

for Philanthropy. As a member of imagine,
CanWest appropriates a minimum of 1% of
pretax profits for cash donations to non-profit
organizations and projects that strengthen and
enhance local communities. In addition to these
cash donations, CanWest's in-kind donations of
commerciz! television airtime and advertising
space in newspapers take the Company's overall
contribution to philanthropic causes well in excess
of imagine's guideline.

For more nformation 2bout CanWest's community
initiatives, please visit www.canwestglobal.com/
community/foundation.html tc download the
2005 Report to the Community.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Management’s

FOR THE YEAR LNDLD AUGUST 31, 2005
NUVEMBLR 17, 2004

Certain statements in this report may constitute
torward-looking statements. Such forward-looking
statements involve risks, uncertainties and

other factors which may cause actual results,
performance or achievements of the Company

to be materiaily different from any future results,
performance or achievements expressed or impiied
by such forward-locking statements. Many of these
factors are beyond the control of the Company.
Consequently, all forward-looking statements made
in this Management Discussion and Analysis or

the Company's documents referred to herein are
qualified by this cautionary statement and there can
be no assurance that actual results or developments
anticipated by the Company will be realized.

SELECTED ANNUAL INFORMATION

H
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discussion and analysis

Overview

in broadcast television. sublishing, radio, specialty cable channels, ouidacr advertising and Internet
websites in Canada, Australia, New Zealand, Ireland and the United Kingdom. In each of our markets
we seek to develop a broad media platform that enables us to provide a muitimedia product offering
to our customers. Cur diversification within the Canadian market ard internationally has contributed to
the stability of cur overall results.

On October 13, 2005, CanWest MediaWorks income Fund (the “Fund”) completed its $530 mitlion
initial public offering. On the completion: of the Fund’s initial public offering, CarWest transferred its
Canadian newspaper and cnline media businesses, with the excention of the National Post, to CanWest
MediaWorks Limited Partnership {the “Limited Partnership”} in exchange for units and indebtedness
of the Limited Partnership. Substantially 2!l of the indebtedness was repaid by the Limited Partnership
using $517 million in net proceeds of the Fund's initiai public offering, together with $823 million
advanced under the Limited Partrership's new unsecured $1 billion senior unsecured credit facility. As
a consequence, the Fund now halds 2 25.8% equity interest in the Limited Partnership, with CanWest
holding the remaining 74.2%. As a resuilt of the transaction, we will record a dilution gain or loss on
the sale of a 25.8% interest in the operations transferred to the Limited Partnership. The amount of the
gain ¢r loss has ot been determined. We will continue to consolidate the results of these operations.

CanWest Global Communicztions Corp. ("CanWest”} is an international media company with nterests

Years ended August 31

2005 2004 (revised} 2003 {revised}
$000 $000 $000
Revenue 3,072,542 2,911,400 2,790,484
Net earnings from continuing operations 20,422 194 299 114,798
Net earnings (loss) 10,290 {13,478} 46,088
Net earnings from continuing operations per share
Basic $0.12 $1.10 $0.60
Diluted $0.12 $1.10 $0.60
Net earnings (loss) per share
Zasic $0.06 {$0.08} $0.22
Diluted $0.06 {$0.08} $0.22
Total Assets 5,328,418 5,573,643 5934508
Long term liabifities 3,261,798 3,502,813 3,713,050

Revised. The 2004 and 2003 results have been revised lo reflact the adoption of the Instituie of Chartered Accountants of Canada, Accaunting Guideline 15, Consolidstion of Variable interest Entities,

resufling in [he conselidation of 1TEN Group Ply Limited, whiclh was previously accotinted lor on an equily basis isee nole 1 to the zudited consolidated financiat slatements).
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Rey factors affecting segment revenues
and operating income

TELEVISION BROADCAST

We have four television broadcast segments,

ane for each courdry in which we carry on such
aperations. Qur Canadian tetevision segment
includes cur broaccast television networks

in Canada as well as specialty channels and

two radic siations. Our New Zealand and lrish
eievision segments cover our television operations
in those countries. Our Australian television
segment includes TEN Group Pty Limited {“TEN
Group™), which owns and operates TEN Television
Network {“Network TEN"},

We generate the majority of cur television
oroadcast revenues from the sale of advertising,
with the remainder generated from subscriber
revenues earned by our specialty channels and
the sale of broadcast rights to our programming,
Demand for television advertising is driven
crimarily by advertisers in the packaged geods,
automotive, retail and entertainment industries
and 1s strongly influenced by general economic
conditicns. The attractiveness of our programs to
advertisers and the rates we charge are primarily
a function of the size and demographics of
cur viewing audience. The dependence sf our
advertising revenues on the ratings performance
of our televisicn programs makes our television
broadcast revenues less predictable than our
publishing revenues.

Following a 7% decline in advertising
revenue in fiscal 2004 for Canadian television,
advertising revenues have remained constant
for fiscal 2005 as compared to fiscal 2004.

The revenue decrease in 2004 and continued
weakness in 2005 reflected a toss of market
share resulting primarily from reduced ratings
performance. Canadian television will remain a
challenge for 2006. However, new pregrams that
have aftracted promising initial ratings incluce the
new drama Prison Break, the comedy My Name
is Earf and Entertainment Tonight Canada, which
iaunched in the first two weeks of the season,
immediately rose to the number one spot for

2 Canadian entertainment magazine program.

i Canadian television has also achieved ratings

' gains in ils key news programming, We believe
{hat inzreased ratings will have a positive impact
on revenues in fiscal 2007,

Our Australizn television broadcast segment
recorded a 9% increase in revenues in fiscal
2005 compared to fiscal 2004. driven by Netwark
TEN's strong ratings performance in & continuing
strong television market. Lacal currency revenue
increases of 11% were partially offset by the
weakening of the local currency refative to the
Canadian doliar. For fiscal 2005, we expect a
stowdown in the Network TEN revenue growth,
Our New Zealant television broadcast segment
also had a strong performance in fiscal 2005,
recording a 14% revenue increase ihat reflected a
12% increase in local currency revenues driven by
improved audience share at 3 and C4 networks
in a strong advertising environment and the effect
of the strengthening local currency relative to the
Canadian doliar, which increased revenue growth
by an additional 2%. For fiscal 2006, we expect
New Zealand to continue its growth relative to
fiscal 2005, but at a lower growth rate reflecting
a slowing in the advertising market. in our irish
television segment, revenues showed growth of
10% in fiscal 2005 as compared to fiscal 2504,

Our principal television broadcast aperating
expenses are programming costs and employee
sataries. In our Canadian television segment,
operating expensas increased 6% in fiscal 2005
compared te fiscal 2004, primarily as a result
of increased programming and promotion costs.
We expect this trend to continue in Canada
into fiscal 2006 as we continue to invest in
our prograrm schedule. In Australia, segment
operating expenses increased by 5% in fiscal
2005 compared to fiscal 2004, driven by an 8%
local currency expense increase compared 1o the
same pericd in the prior year, primarily reflecting
increased programming costs. In New Zealand,
segment operating expenses for fiscal year
2005 increased by 9% in fiscal 2005 compared
to fiscal 2004, driven by a 7% local currency
expense increase compared to the same peried
in the prior vear, primarily as a result of increased
f promotion and programiming costs. We expect

i
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that the trend wiil confinue into fiscal 2006 as
prograrnming cosls continue 1o increase. For owr
Irish broadcasting operalion, segmenl operating
expenses increased 3% in fiscal 2005 compared
tc tiscal 2004, reflecting general cost and wage
increases and crogramiming cost increases.

PUBLISHING AND ONLINE

Qur puiiishing ang onkne segment includes our
Canadian newspaper operations as well as our
internet operations including the canada.com
web portal. Our publishing and online revenues
are primarily earned from newspaper advertising
and circulation revenues from our newspapors in
Canada. Our rewspaper and onling advertising
revenues are a function of the volume, or lingage, of
advertising scid and the rates we charge. Cuculation
revenues are produced from home-clelivery
subscriptions for our newspapers and single-copy
sales sold at retaif outlets and vending machines ang
are a function of the number of newspapers we sell
and the average per copy prices we charge.
Advertising and circulation revenues for the
publishing ang oniine operations were 3% higher
in fiscal 2005 compared to fiscal 2004. The
increase in advertising revenues resulted from
advertising rate increases as well as frem growth in
online classified revenues, which increased to $12
mittion for fiscal 2005 compared to $4 million for
fiscal 2004. Average daily newspaper circulation
in Canzda has declined, aithough the decline
in circulabion has been offset by an increase in
the median sale price for a weekday edition of 2
Canadian daily newspaper. We telieve that the
circulation revenues of the publishing cperations
are reflective of this general trend in the newspaper
industry. Circulation revenues were unchanged for
fiscal 2005 compared to fiscal 2004, as declines
in circulation volumes were offset by higher per
copy prices. Circulation revenues constitute
approximately 20% of tofal publishing and online
revenues. For fiscal 2006, advertising revenues are
expecled lo continue to increase, primarily as a
result of rate increases, growth in insert volumes as
well as significant increases in online advartising,
Circulation revenues are expected to be consistent
with the prior yeat.

1
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The otincipal operating expenses far publishing

and gnline are salaries, newsprint and distribution
expenses. Operaling exgenses increased by 5% in
fiscal 2005 compated te fiscal 2004, primarily as

a2 result of increased payroil and distribution costs.

Newsprint expense for fiscat 2005 decreased

Sy epproximately 4% as a result of reduced
prizing and a reduction in newsprint usage. For
fiscat 2006, expenses are generally expected to
increase moderately. Salary costs will increase
due to increases in staffing to support certain key
initiatives {e.g. increased online product offerings)
and due to normal wage escalation. The declining
newsprint expense trend experienced through
fiscal 2005 is expected to reverse in fiscal 2006
as a resull of increased newsprint pricing. Finally,
increased gasoline prices are expected to resuit in
increased distribution costs.

RADIO BROADCAST

Qur radio broadcast segment consists of our
radio operations in New Zealand, vhich earn
substantially alt of their revenues from advertising.
Radio advertising revenues are a function of
overall radio advertising demand and advertising
rates. Radio advertising rates are determined
pased on the number and demagraphics of our
listeners. Our racio broadcast segment revenues
in fiscal 2005 increased 8% overall, driven by a
6% local currency revenue increase compared o
the same period in the prior fiscal year, reflecting
sirong growth in radio advertising expenditures

in New Zealand. In addition, 2 strengthened New
Zealand currency contributed an additional 2%
increase for fiscal 2005. We expect revenues in
iocal currencies to continue to increase during
2006, bolstered by the addition of new FM
frequencies acquired in 2005 and the continued
growth of the recently taunched Radio Live
nebwork.

The principal operating expenses in the radic
oroadcast segment are salaries, markeling costs
and music royalties. Segment operaling expenses
increased 12% in fiscal 2005 compared to fiscal
2004, driven by a 10% increase in local currency
expenses and an additional 2% as a result of the
strengthened New Zealand currency. The increase
in costs was due to costs associated with the

launch of Radio Live network, and branding costs
refaled lo [Kiwi FM. For fiscal 2006, we expect costs
1o continue {0 increase to reflect the conlinuing
promgtion and the full year operation of Radio Live
and normal salary and wage increases.

AUSTRALIAN OUTDCOR ADVERTISING

Our outdoor advertising segment consists of TEN
Group's wholly owned subsidiary, Eve Corp. Eye
Corp. generates its revenue from the sale of out-of-
home advertising. Eye Corp.'s advertising revenues
are a function of overall outdoor advertising
demand and rates. Eye Corp.'s advertising rates
are primarily a function of the number and
demaographics of the audience for Eye Com.'s
displays. Segment revenues increased by 40%

in fiscal 2005 compared to fiscal 2004, in part
reflecting Eye Corp.'s acquisition of the remaining
50% interest in its Eve Shop subsidiary. In addition,
airport terminal advertising sales have increased
with increases in rates and inventories. The
principat operating expenses in this segment are
salaries, site rental costs and production expenses.
Segment operating expenses have decreased to
79% as a percentage of revenues for fiscal 2005
from 81% in fiscal 2004. For fiscal 2006, we
expect revenues and expenses o cortinue to graw
as a result of the acquisitions in 2008,

ACQUISITIONS AND DIVESTITURES

We have made a number of acquisitions and

divestitures that affect the comparability of cur

results from period to period.

+ In February 2003, we disposed of certain

community newspapers.

In July 2004, we completed the initial public

offering and refinancing of our New Zealand

operations, which reduced our ownership from

100% to 70%.

In September 2004, Eye Corp. acauired

the remaining 50% of Eye Shop Ply Limited

iformerly Eve Viliage Joint Venture). In addition,

in July 2605, Eye Corp. acquired 100% of

Eye Drive Melbourne Pty Limited (formerly

Scuthcaast Pty Limited).

« In September 2005, we acquired a radio
license to operate a station in the Solent

@
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region of United Kingdom. This cperation will

commence in Hiscal 2006.
FOREIGN CURRENCY EFFECTS
Qur Austratia, New Zealand and Ireland operations
expose cur segment revenues and operating
expenses to fiuctuations between the Canedian
doliar and the Ausiralian dollar, the New Zealand
doliar and the Euro respectively. A decline in
the vatue of the Canadian dollar against these
currencies increases the Canadian dollar equivaient
ot the revenues and expenses we record in
those currencies. An increase in the value of the
Canadian dollar has the opposite effect. During
fiscal 2005, the Canadian doliar appreciated
against the Austratian doflar and Euro by 2%. and
depreciated agzinst the New Zezland doliar by 2%.
SEASONALITY
Our advertising revenues are seascnal. Revenues
are typically highest in the first and third quarters,

while expenses are relatively constant throughout
the year.

Critical accounting estumates

The preparation of financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Canada requires management to
make estimates and judgments that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue
and expenses, as well as the disclosure of
contingent assefs and liabilities. Management
bases its estimates and judgments on historical
experience and other factors that are believed to
be reascnable under the circumstances. Actual
results may differ from these estimates under
different assumptions or conditions.

We have identified below the critical
accounting estimates that we believe require
significant judgment in the preparation of our
consolidateg financiai staterments. We consider
these accounting estimates to be critical because
changes in the assumplions or estimates we have
selected have the potential of materially impacting
our financiai statements. For a summary of all
our significant accounting policies, see note 1 to
our audited consclidated financial statements.
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Goodwill and intangible assets

We estimate the useful lives of intangible assets
and the velue of goodwill based on historical
customer patterns, industey trends and existing
competitive factors. Significant icng ferm
changes in these factors could result in material
impairment of ihe value and lfe of intangible
assels and goodwill. As al August 31, 2005. we
nad $1,144 million of intangibles and $2,425
million of goodwill on our baiance sheet.

In performing the annuzl impairment
iesting of goodwill and intangibles, management
makes a number of assumptions and estimates
i determining fair value. The fair value definition
used is the amount at which an asse! could be
pought or sold in a current transaction between
willing parties. Valuation for indefinite life
Sroadcast licenses have been determined using
2n income aporoach, and more specifically the
“Greenfield” approach, in which the value is
getermined based on the present vaiue of the
required resources and eventual returns from
the build-out of an cperational network and the
acquisition of advertisers, starting with only the
oroadcast licenses as assets. Other valuation
techniques used include a market approach or
2 discounted cash flow {"DCF") approach. The
market approach is used where comparable
public market data is availeble, or we have bona
fide offers for assets. The projections used in the
DCFs represent management’s best estimates of
expected future operating resuits of the reporting
units for the first three years and an extrapolation
based on aggregate ecenomic factors such as
gross domestic product growth rates and inflation
for the final two years cf the forecast perind.
Precedent transactions invalving comparable
companies and market statistics for comparable
companies are used to select appropriate
terminal value multiples. In addition, the expected
risk-free and other rates of return, general
economic conditions, historical and forecasted
ocerating results, and valuations prepared by
third parties are consicered. The discount raies
used are based on the weighted average costs
of capital using the capital asset pricing model
and adjusting for the size of the loca! reporting

unit. local tax rates and risk profite. Had different
assumpiions or valuation leshnigues been used
in performing the impairment lesling at August
31, 20CE, the carrying value of intangibles and
goodwill might have been different.

During 2005, we determined that the
value of goodwill and the circulation of the
National Post were impaired and as a result.
we have recarded goodwili and intangible asset
impairments of $41 million and $10 million,
respectively. The impairment resulted from the
incurrence of successive years of operating losses
in this business unit and its failure to achieve the
profitability targets set out in its business plans.

Income taxes

We are subject to income taxes in Canada

and numerous foreign jurisdictions. Significant
judgment is required in determining the woridwide

: provision for income taxes. During the ordinary

course of business, there are many transactions
and calculations for which the uttimate tax
determination is uncertain. Management uses
judgment and estimates in determining the
appropriate rates and amounts in recording
future taxes, giving consideration to timing

and probability. Actual income taxes could

vary from these estimates as a result of future
events, including changes in income tax law or
the outcome of reviews by tax authorities and
related appeals. To the extent that the final tax
outcome is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax provision in the period in which such
determination is made. Qur income tax provision
was $20 miltion for the year ended August 31,
2005. Future tax assets were $201 million, while
future tax lizbilities were $264 million at August
31, 2005. See note 13 to cur audited consolidated
financial statements.

Accounting for pension

and other benefit plans

The cost of defined benefit pension and other
retirement benefits earned by employees is
calculated based on management's estimates of
expected plan invesiment performance, saiary
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escalation, retirement ages of employees, the
discount rale used in measuring the habitily and
expected healthcare costs. For fiscal 2005 and
2004, based on the investment mix, current yields
and experience, management estimated the long
term rate of return on plen assets to be 7.25%.
For the same periods, the discount rzte used

in measuring the liability was 5.35% and 5.5%
respectively. The discount rate was estimated

by applying Canadian corperate AA zere coupon
bonds to the expected future benefit payments
under the plans. Management assumed that
salaries would increase by 3% to 3.5% per year.
The defined benefit pension and other retirement
henefit expense we recorded for the year ended
August 31, 2005 was $33 mitiiors. Use of different
assumptions would vary results.

Broadcast rights

At August 31, 2008, we had $210 million in
broadcast rights. Broadcast rights represent

the right to air various forms of programming.
Broadcast rights and the corresponding payable
are recorded when the license pericd begins
and the orograms are available for air. Foreign
programming is primarily acquired on a “pay for
play” basis and s immediately aired, while some
foreign and most domestic programming may be
carried in inventory and amortized over a series
of plays. Management must use estimates and
judgment in determining the useful lives and
carrying values of broadcast rights. Estimates

of useful life relates to the expected number of
plays over which the cost of acquiring the rights
are amortized, while estimates of value primarily
relate to the time slots in which the programs
will be aired. inventories are reviewed regularly
to ensure recaverability of the net book value of
broadcast rights.

Changes in accounting policies
Consolidation of variable

interest entities

Effective September 1, 2004, we have adopted
the provisions of The Accounting Standards
Board of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Canada. Accounting Guideline 15 (“AcG-15").



We have determined that we are the primary
ceneficiary of TEN Group, a variable interest
entily. Accordingly, as required by AcG-15, we
nave consolidated the results of TEN Greug.
AcG-15 has been adopted on a retroactive basis
with restatement of prior pericds. Previously, we
accsunted for cur invesiment in TEN Group using
the equity method. As at August 31, 2005, we
noid a 56.4% economic interest in TEN Group
156.6% at August 31, 2004). The interest held

oy the 43.6% mincrity is classified in minority
interests {43.4% at August 31, 2004}, The change
ned no impact on net earnings or shareholders’
equity.

Valuation of intangibles

in accordance with the Emerging Issues Task
Force topic number D-108, Use of Residual
Method to Value Acquired Assets Other than
Gooawill, reteased September 29, 2004, we
adaopted a direct approach in the valuation of
intangible assets for any business combinaticns
completed after September 29,2004. We have
perfermed impairment testing using a direct
method on all intangible assets previously vaiued
under the residual method. Previously, we utilized
a residual value approach in valuing indefinite
iived broadcast licenses. There was no effect on
the audited consolidated financial statements as
2 result of this change in accounting oalicy.

Forthcoming changes in
accounting policies

Financial instruments, hedges and
comprehensive income

The Accounting Standards Board of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Canada has issued
CICA 3855, Financial instruments - Recognition
and Measurement, CICA 3865, Hedges, and
CICA 1530. Comprehensive Income, which

we must apply for our fiscal year beginning on
September 1. 2007. CICA 3855 prescribes when
& financial asset, financia! liabiiity or non-financial
derivative is to be recognized on the balance
sheet and the measurement of such amount.

it also specifies how financial instrument gzins
and losses are to be presented. CICA 3865 is

applicable for designated hedging relationships

i and builds on existing Canadian GAAP guidance

i

by specifying how nedge accounting is apolied
and what disclosures are necessary when it is
applied. CICA 1530 introduces new standards for
the presentation and disclosure of components
of comprehensive income. Comgprehensive
income is defined as the change in net assets

of an enterprise during a regorting period from
transactions and other events and circumstances

from non-gwner sources. It includes alt changes in ¢

net assets during a period except those resuiting
from investments by owners and distributions to
owners. We are currently considering the impact
of the adoption of such standards.

Implicit variable interests

The Emerging Issues Committee {"EIC"} of the
Accounting Standards Board of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Canada has issued £IC
157 Implicit Variabie Interests under AcG-15 (“£IC
157"} which must be applied by the Company

in the first interim period beginning subseguent
to October 17, 2005. EIC 157 prescribes that

an implicit variable interest, which is an implied
pecunary interest in an entity that changes

with changes in the fair value of that entity's

net assets, exclusive of variable interests, be
evaluated in accordance with AcG-15 to determing
if consolidation is appropriate. The Company is
currently considering the impact of the adoption
of such standards.

Restatement of prior year resulis
As described in note 1 to gur consolidated
financial statements, certain prior year results

and balances have been revised for the reasons
stated therein.

Operating resulls
Introductory note

« Segment operating profit. In the discussion
that follows, we provide information concerning
our segment operating profit. See note 23 to
our audited consolidated financial statements.
Management utilizes segment operating profit

-«

as a measure of segment piofitability in making
sirategic resource allocations.

Operating income before amortization.

We alse discuss our consolidated cperating
income before amortization. We provide

this measure because we and our lenders
and investors use operating income before
amortization to measure performance against
our various leverage covenants. Operating
income before amertization is not a recognized
measure of financial performance under
Canadian generally accepted accounting
orinciples {“GAAP"}. Investors are cautioned
that operating income efore amortization
should not be construed as an alfernative to
net earnings delermined in accordance with
GAAP as an indicator of our performance.
Our method of calculating operating income
before amortization may not be comparable
to similarly titled measures used by other
companies. A reconciliation of operating
income before amortization to net earnings,
which is the most closely comparable

GAAP measure, is set forth below under

the “Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Financial
Measures” section of this report.
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FISCAL 2005 COMPARED TO FISCAL 2004
- FOLLOWING 1S A TABLE SUMMARIZING SEGMINTED RISULTS FOR AUGUST 31, 2005 AND AUGHST 31, 2004, SEC NOTE 23 10
- QUR AUBITED CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMFNIS
- |
Revenue Segment operating profit
2005 2004 lrevised}t 2005 2004 (revised)’
- $000 $000 $000 3000
- Operating segments
Publishing and Online-Canada 1,228,851 1.193,628 254,875 267,343
Television
Canada 698,644 690,302 124,699 147,430
Australia - Network TEN 783,315 721,247 293,528 256,033
- New Zealand 122,995 108,236 30,713 23,291
s ireland 37,519 34,152 13,254 10,591
1,642,473 1,553,937 462,194 437,345
Rad:io - New Zeaiand 93,428 26,717 26,994 27,488
Qutdoor - Australia 107,790 77017 23,173 14,477
Corporate and other - - (34,249} {27.110)
_ o 3,072,542 2,911,400 732,987 ] 7_19‘,54‘3
- Ravelston management contract termination (12,750) -
Restructuring expenses * : {2.445)
Operating income before amortization 720,237° 717,098*
1 See ople 1 1o our audited consolidatid financial stalerments
- 2 Reslructurng expenses relate o Canadau television operatioss.
- 3 sediation of NortGAAP Fmancial Measures” for a reconciliation to net earnings.

Consolidated results

Revenues. Consolidated revenues increased by
$161 million or 6% to $3,073 million for fiscal 2005,
from consolidated revenues of $2,911 million fiscal
Z004. Tre increase reflecied higher revenues in gach
of our operating segments, with the most significant
ncreases from our Canadian publishing and online,
New Zealand television, Australian television and
Australian cutdoor advertising segments.

Operating expenses. Consolidated operating
expenses {including selling, general and adranistrative
expenses) before amertization increased $148

mflion or 7% to $2,340 millior:. This increase reflects
expense increases in all operating segments.

Ravelston management contract termination.
Effective April 2005, we terminated the agreement

under which we received management services
from The Ravelston Corporation Limited
(“Ravelston”}). The agreement provided for
annual payments of $6 million to Ravelston as
well as the payment of 2 fee upon termination.

In August 2005, we and RSM Richter Inc.. in its
capacity as interim receiver, receiver manager
and monitor of Ravelston, received Court approval
for a termination payment in the amount of $13
milion, which was paid in September 2005. This
charge was recorded in operating expenses for
year ended August 31, 2005,

Restructuring charge. In fiscai 2004 we incurred
$2 million in restructuring expenses related lo

Canadian television operations.

Operating income before amortization.

Consolidated operating income before
amortization increased nominatly io $720 million
for tiscal 2005 from $717 million for fiscal

2004. The increase in operating income before
amoartization reflected increases in revenues that
were partially offset by losses in our operations
under development, the contract termination fees,
increases in television programming expenses and
increases in compensation expenses related to
executive management of Canadian operations.

Amortization. Amortization of intangibles was
$20 million for fiscal 2005 compared to $18
million for fiscal 2004. Amortization of property,
plant and equipment was $92 million for fiscal
2005 comgared tc $29 million for fiscai 2004.
The increases in amortization expenses are due to
acquisitions made in fisca! 2005 and fiscal 2004.

w
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Interest expense. Interest expense was $252
million for {iscal 2005 compared to $339 million
for fiscal 2004, reflecting a reduced level of detit
as well es reduced interest rates achieved through
our refinancing activities in fiscal 2005 and in
fiscal 2004.

Interest rate and foreign currency swap losses.
For fiscal 2005, we recorded a $182 miliion loss
equivalent to the change in fair value of interest rate
and foreign currency interest rate swaps on debl that
has been retired (“overhanging swaps”) compared
10 a $111 million loss for fiscal 2004. The increase is
due to an increase in amount of overhanging swaps
as 2 result of reduced debt levels.

Foreign exchange gains. We recorded net foreign
exchange gains of $76 miliion in fiscal 2005
compared to $45 millicn in fiscal 2004, This
reflects gains of $68 million on repayment of U.S.
dollar denominated debt and a $5 million gain
that arose on the transiation of a portion of our
U.S. debt which is not hedged.

Investment gains. For fiscal 2005, we recorded an
investment gain of $2 million, compared to $116
million for fiscal 2G04. This includes dilution gains
on the exercise of stock options at TEN Group, 2
gain on cisposal of non-care assets and gains on
disposal of property plant and equipment. The

gain in fiscal 2004 reflects a2 $66 million gain

from completing the initial public offering and
refinancing of our New Zealand cperations, which
reduced our ownership from 100% to 70%, a $52
miltion gain from selling our 29.9% interest in Ulster
Television and dilution gains on the exercise of
stock options at TEN Group.

Goodwill impairment. For fiscal 2005, we
cerformed our annual impairment testing and
determined that the value of goodwill related to
the National Post was impaired and as a result,
recorded an impairment of $41 million.

Asset impairment. Far fiscal 2009, we performed
our annual impairment testing and determined
that the value of circulation related to the National

i Post was imoaired and as a result, recorded an
¢ impeirmient of $10 million,

Loss on debt extinguishment. During the first
guzrter of fiscal 2005, we completed an exchange
offer and concurrent debt offering through which

i we settled the $804 million 12.125% Serior

Notes due 2010 by issuance of $308 million
{US§751 million} of 8% Senior Subordinated
Notes due 2012. The fair value of the new debt
on its settiement date was determined to be $944
millicn. The excess of fair value of the new deb?
over the book vaiue of the old debt together with
certain costs of seitling the debt has been charged
to earnings for fiscal 2005 as a loss on debt
extinguishment of $44 million. This refinancing
reduces cash interest expense by approximately
$40 million annually.

Income taxes. Our income tax expense was $20
miltion for fiscal 2005, compared to $37 million
for fiscal 2004. The effective tax rate of 15% was
below the Company's statutory rate of 35% as

a result of the impact of international tax rates
which were lower than Canadian tax rates, as well
as the impact of {i} 2 $10 million recovery related
to the resolution of an uncertain tax position,

(it} a $7 miliion effect of recognizing temporary
differences which were not previously tax effected,
and (i) a change in Australian tax legislation
that allowed TEN Group to recerd a future

taxes recovery of $18 million. The $7 million of
tempaorary differences not previously tax effected
related to earnings of periods prior to fiscal 2005.
We have determined that these adjustments are
not material to the current or previously reported
results and accordingly, the amount has been
included in the current year’s earnings. This
adjustment has the effect of increasing basic
and diluted earnings per share for fiscal 2005 by
$0.04 per share.

Minority interests. For fiscal 2005, we recorded
minority interests charges related to the 30%
minority interest in CanWest MediaWorks {NZ)
and the 43.6% minority interest in TEN Group
of $7 mitlicn and $90 millian, respectively. The
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minority interests charge related to TEN Group
increased by 12% as compared to the $80 million
charge for lhe same period in tiscai 2004 as a
result of TEN Group’s increased net earnings.
There was onlv a nominal minority interests charge
related to CanWest MediaWorks {NZ) for fiscal
2004 because it was wholly cwned to July 2004

Net earnings from continuing operations.

Our net earnings from continuing operations for
fiscal 2005 were $20 million or $0.12 per share.
compared to $194 millien or $1.10 per share, for
fiscat 2004,

Discontinued operations. In fuly 2005, we

sold a substantial portion of our enterlainmen
operations. Net loss from discontinued operations
was $10 million for fiscal 2005 compared o
$208 mitlion for fiscal 2004.

Net earnings {loss). Our net earnings for fiscal
2005 were $10 million or $0.06 per share,
compared to a net loss of $13 million or $0.08
per share for fiscal 2004,

Segmient Results
PUBLISHING AND ONLINE

« Revenues. Revenues increased by $35
million or 3% to $1,229 millien for fiscal
2005 as compared to fiscal 2004, Increases
in advertising revenues resulted from rate
increases as well as from increases in revenies
frcm online classifieds. Revenues from

online classifieds increased to $12 million for
fiscal 2005 from $4 million for fiscal 2004,
Circulation revenues of $247 millicn for both
fiscal 2005 and 2004 represented 20% of
publishing and online revenues for fiscal 2005
compared to 21% for fiscal 2004. Circulation
volume decreased by 3%, while the average
rate per copy increased by 3%, which resulted
in a nominal decrease in circulation revenues
for fiscal 2005 as compared to fiscal 2004,
Operating expenses. Operating expenses of
the Publishing and Online segment increased
by $48 million or 5% to $374 million for fiscal
2005 as compared o fiscal 2004, primarily
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as a result of increased payroli costs including
increased costs of executive management

and higher dislribution costs. Newsprint costs
gecreased by approximately 4%, reflecting
reduced pricing and newsprint usage.
Segment operating profit. Segment operating
crofit for fiscal 2005 decreased by $12 million
o1 5% compzred to the same period in the
orior year. The decrease in segment operating
orofit arose from losses of $8 miltion related to
Dose and the Metro joint venture, both of which
commenced operations in fiscal 2005, and the
increased costs of executive managerent and
distribution expenses discussed above.

CANADIAN TELEVISIO

« Revenues. In total, revenues from our Canadian

television operating segment of $533 mitlion
were approximately $8 midlion, or 1%, higher in
fiscal 2005 than the $650 million recarded n
fiscal 2004. This reflected a 22% increase in
subscription revenues from our specialty television
operations and flat advertising revenues.
Qur conventional television revenues for fiscal
2005 were flat compared to the prior year.
This reflects the effect of continued ratings
declines throughout fiscal 2005.
Revenues from our digital speciaity
channels increased by 42% to $15 million
in tiscal 2009 compared to fiscal 2004.
This reflects increases in advertising and
subscriber revenues as weli as the effect of
proportionately consclidating our 50% interest
in Mystery, which was previously eguity
accounted. Our digital specialty channels.
achieved subscriber growth of 15% in fiscal
2005, increasing total subscriptions to 8.6
million subscribers at August 31, 2005.
Operating expenses. Operating expenses
{inciuding selling, generat and administrative
expenses) of $574 million at our Canadian
televisior: segment were $21 million or 6%
higher than in fiscal 2004, primarily because
of increased programming and promgtion
expenses, o build ratings, and compensaticn
cost increases associated with our new
management structure,

3

Segment operating profit. Reliecting an

increase in segment operating expenses that more

than offset anincrease in segment revenues,
Canadian Television segment operating profit
declined to $125 million in fiscal 2005 from the
$147 million recorded for fiscal 2004,

AUSTRALIAN TELEVISION

5

*

*

Revenues. Segment revenues increased by
8% to $783 mitlion for fiscal 2005, from $721
million during fiscai 2004. In local currency,
revenues increased 11%, reflecting TEN's
strong rating performance in a continuing
strang television advertising environment,
Operating expenses. Segment operating
expenses increased 5% to $490 million for
fiscal 2005, compared to $465 million for
fiscal 2004, primarily reflecting increased
programiming costs.

Segment operating profit. Segment cperating
profit increased by 15% to $234 million in fiscal
20085, compared to $256 miifion in fiscal 2004,
as the increase in revenues mere than offset the
increase in expenses.

NEW ZEALAND TELEVISION

8

Revenues. Revenues from television broadcast
operations for New Zealand's 3 and C4
television networks increased by 14% to $123
million for fiscal 2005, from $102 million

for fiscal 2004. In local currency, revenues
increased by 12%, reflecting improved audience
share in a strong advertising environment.

The strengthening New Zealand currency
contributed an additional 2% on translation to
Canadian dollar revenues.

Operating expenses. Operating expenses in
fiscai 2005 increased by 9% tc $92 million.

In focal currency, expenses increased by

7%, driven primarily by higher programming
expenses, which included costs related to the
development and start-up of a new weeknight
current affairs program - Campbell Live - and
the redaunch of 3 News. The acpreciation of
the New Zealand doliar relative to the Canadian
doilar added an additional 2% increzse on
transiation to Canadian dollar revenues.
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» Segment operating profit. New Zealand 3
and C4 produced segment operating profil of $31
million, a $7 mifiion or 32% increase from the
resuits recorded in fiscal 2004,

IRISH TELEVISION

Segment ogerating reverues increased by 10% to
$38 millicn in fiscal 2005, compared to $34 million
in fiscal 2004. As a result of revenue increases,
segment operating profit in fiscat 2005 increased by
$3 million to $13 miliion compared to fiscal 2004.

NEW ZEALAND RADID

Due to the acguisitions of new radic frequencies
in 2005 and 2004, CanWest RadioWarks
continued its steady performance, increasing
revenues for fiscal 20C5. Revenue grew by 8%

te $93 million from $87 million during fiscal
2004, reflecting a 6% mncrease in revenue in local
currency and an additional 2% increase as 3
result of currency translation. Segment operating
profit declined by 2% to $27 miliien for fiscal
2005 as compared to fiscal 2004 due to the
significant start up costs associated with Radio
Live and the branding costs related to Kiwi FM.

AUSTRALIAN OUTDOOR ADVERTISING

Segment revenues increased by $31 miliion or 40%
tc $108 million for fiscal 2005, from $77 millian for
fiscal 2004. This increase reflected a 44% growth
in revenue in iocal currency. Our segment operating
profit from TEN's outdocr advertising operations
increased by $9 million to $23 million as compared
to fiscal 2004 driven by Eye Corp.'s acquisition of
the remaining 50% of Eye Shop as well as stronger
airport advertising revenues.

CORPORATE AND OTHER

Corporate and other segment expenses increased
to $34 mittion in fiscal 2005 compared to

$27 million in the same period in the prior

year, due to increased cosis related to anaiysis
and documentation of our internal controts

in preparation for the requirements under
section 404 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act, as well
as to expenses related to increased corporate
development activities.
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FISCAL 2004 COMPARED TO FISCAL 2003
FOLLOWING 5 A TABLE SUMMARIZING STGMINTED RESULTS FOR AUGUST 31, 2004 AND AUGRIST 33, 2003

I

] i Revenue Segment operating profit
2004 revised' 2003 (revised}! 2004 revised’ 2003 {reviseq)!
$000 3000 $000 3000
Operating segments
Publishing and Online -Canada 1,193,629 1,208,180 267,343 258,496
Television
Canada 690,302 730,407 147,430 216,348
Australia - Network TEN _ 721,247 £86,998 256,033 185,644
New Zealand 108,236 95,055 23,291 10,095
ireland 34,152 32,490 10,591 9,729
1,553,937 1,444,950 437,345 422 814
Radic - New Zealand 86,717 73,400 27.488 20751
Qutdoor - Austraiia 77117 53,954 14,477 4,466
Corporate and other - - (27110} (23,213}
. N L 29N 270048t 719543 eEs
Restructuring and film and television impairment expense? (2,445) (3Le71)
Operating income before amortizaticn » 717,098° 652,243
, See note 1o our audited consviidaled linancial stalements.
< ror 2004, restrucluring expenses refate iu Canadian elevision gperations. For 2003, #includes Network TEN film and television impairment charges of $18 miliion ang Canadlian mediz
_ operations restructuring expenses of $13 miltion.
 See "Reconcitiation of Non-GAAP Financial Measures” for a reconciliation to net carnings.

EFFECT OF DIVESTITURES
in February 2003. we sold certain newspaper publishing assets to Osprev Media. The following table

summarizes the contribution of these newspaper assets to consolidated revenues, operating income
before amortization and net earnings during fiscal 2003,

I —

Year ended August 31, 2003
Revenue Operating income
revised- before amaortization revised!
As reported 2,790,484 652,243
Newspaper publishing properties soid {39,95¢€) (10,105}
2,750,528 642,138




Consoiidnted resudts

Revenues. Consclidated revenues increased oy
$121 million to $2,911 miflicn during fiscal year
2004, compared to $2,790 millizn during fiscal
year 2003. This increase was driven by significant
increases In revenues from our international
media operations and an imgrovement in our
continuing operations in the publishing and anfine
segment, which were partially offset by a decrease
in revenues from our Canadian Television segment
and from the saie of the newspaper assels lo
Osprey Mediz described above; these assets
sccounted for $40 million of cur consolidated
revenues for fiscat 2003.

Operating expenses, excluding restructuring
and film and television program impairment
expense. Censolidated operating expenses
fincluding selling, general and administrative
expenses) increased by $85 million for fiscal
year 2004 to $2,132 million. The assets sold

to Osprey Media accounted for $30 million of
our consolidated operating exgenses during
fiscal 2003. Cansolidated operating expenses
altributable {o operations not sold increased $115
million or 6% from $2,077 million in fiscal 2003,
&s a result of significant programming expense
increases for our Canadian Television segment
as well as general expense increases in other
operating segments.

Restructuring and film and television program
impairment expense. In fiscat 2004, we incurred
$2 million in restructuring expenses related to
Canadian television operations. !n fiscal 2003, we
undertook restructuring activities in our Canadian
media operations that generated restructuring
expenses of $13 million. The fiscal 2003
restructuring expenses refated to the following
operating segments: Canadian Television - $3
million, Canadian Publishing and Onling - $2
million and Corporate and Other - $1 million. In
2003, TEN wrcte down program and television
rights associated with certain features in the
amount of $18 million.

Operating income before amortization.
Consolidated operating income before
amortization increased by 10% in fiscal year 2004
to $717 mitlion from $652 million in fiscal 2003.
The increase i$ due 10 increases in our New
Zealand and Australian Television segments and
our Publishing and Online segment, which was

k partially offset by lower segment operating profit

in our Canadian Tetevision segment.

Amortization. Amortization of intangibles was
$18 million for both Hiscal 2004 and 2003
Amortizaticn of property, plant and eguipment
was $89 millicn in fiscal 2004, and $86 mitiion in
fiscal 2003.

Interest income and expense and other
financing expenses. Interest expense was $332
miltion for fiscal year 2004, compared to $377
million for fiscal year 2003, reflecting a reduced
level of debt as well as reduced interest rates
achieved through refinancing of debt. Debt at
August 31, 2004 was $3,217 million, $364
million fess than the debt outstanding at August
31, 2003 of $3.581 miillicr:. We refinanced our
senior secured debt in August 2003 and in
June 2004, resulling in annual interest savings
of approximately $8 million and $5 million,
respectively.

In fiscal 2004, we recorded a $111 miltion foss
equivalent to the change in fair value of interest
rate swaps and foreign currency interest rate
swaps that have not been settled and which relate
to debt that has been retired. This compared to 3
loss of $23 million for the same period of fiscal
2003.

We recorded interest income of $9 million
for fiscal year 2004, primarily related to interest
received on an income tax refund related to an
income tax issue which was resolved in the first
quarter and interest received from Hollinger in
settlement of a claim related to our acquisition of
the National Post.

Foreign exchange gains. We recorded net
foreign exchange gains of $45 million in fiscal
2004 Approximately $36 million of this gain
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related 1o a gain on early retirement of U.S. dolar
denominated debt in August 20C4. In addition,
we recorded lransialion gains on U.S. dollar
denominated debt, which has not been hedged.
This compared to 2 $4 million foreign exchange
gain recorded in the previcus year.

Investment gains and losses, net of write<down.
For fiscal 2004, we recorded investment income
of $116 mifiicn, compared to investment income
of § mitiion in fiscal 2003. in fiscal 2004, we
recorded a gain on the sale of our interest in UTV
of $52 million, a gain of $66 million relaied to

the New Zealand transaction and a dilution gain
of $2 milion as a result of the exercise of siock
oplions at TEN Group, which effectively dituled
our economic interest to 56.6%. For fiscal year
2003, we recorded a gain of $21 million on the
sale of community newspapers and a diiution gain
of $2 miltion as a resut of the exercise of stock
options ai TEN Group, which were offset by a loss
of $11 million on the sale of our shares in SBS
Brozdcasting and other write-downs of $3 millior.
Divigend income of $4 million received from UTV in
fiscal 2604 was 6% higher than in fiscal 2003. In
June 2004, we sold our interest in UTV.

Income taxes. The income tax provision was
$37 million for fiscat year 2004, compared to

a recovery of $47 million for fiscal year 2003.
The effective tax rate of 12% in fiscal year 2004
differed from our statutory rate of 35% as a
result of the $37 miltion reduction due to the
non-taxable portion of capital losses, the $41
miltion reduction due to foreign income rates
differing from Canadian income tax rates, a $20
miliion credit from the resolution of tax issues and
the effect of increases in future tax rates which
caused a net increase in future tax liabiiities and
resulted in a $9 million income tax expense.

Minority interests. Minority interests remained
constant at $80 million for both fiscal 2004
and 2003, and marnly represented thie minonty
interests related to TEN Group.
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Currency transiation. We recorded net currency
iransfation losses of $7 miliion in fiscal 2004
relaied {5 the realization of currency transiation
gains related to TEN Group distributions, currency
translation losses related to the repayment

of inter-company lcans by our New Zealand
gperations and the divestiture of 30% of cur
interest in New Zealand. This compared to a §1
million gain in fiscal 20G3.

Net earnings before discontinued operations.
Qur net earnings before discontinued operations
for fiscal 2004 were $194 million compareg o
$115 million for fiscal 2003.

Discontinued operations. in 2004, we
commenced a process to sell all of Fireworks
Entertainment’s production and distribution
aperations, resulting in the classification of these
aperating results as a loss from discontinued
operations and its assets and liabilities as assets
and liabilities of discontinued operztions. This
crocess was completed in 2005, These operations
were previously classified in the Canadian
Intertainment segment. impairment charges of
$211 mitlion, including goodwill impairment of
$31 miflion, were recorded to adjust the asseis
1o their fair values based upon recent estimates
iess cost to dispose. Net loss from discontinued
operations was $208 million for the year ended
August 31, 2004 compared to $62 miilion for the
same operations for the year ended August 31,
2003

Net earnings {loss). Qur net loss for fiscal 2004
was $13 miltion or ($0.08) per share, compared
t0 a net eamnings of $46 mition or $0.22 per
share for fiscal 2003.

Segment results
PUBLISHING AND ONLINE

+ Revenues. Segment revenues for fiscal year
2004 were $1,194 million, a decrease of $15
million or 1% from the revenues recorded
in the fiscal 2003. This decline refiects the
cublishing asset sale in February 2003 the
divested assets accounted for $40 miflion of
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our publishing and online revenues during
fiscal 2003, Qur remaining publishing assets
recorded an increase of $25 milkon or 2%
compared to fiscal 2003. Excluding the impact
of the publishing asse’ sales, adverlising
revenues were up approximately 2% overall
due io flat lineage and increased pricing. The
flat fineage reflects increases in classified

and retail advertising that were partially offset
by decreases in national account lineage,
most significantly in the automotive sector.
The increase in rates reflects increases for
national accounts; the rates achieved for retail
decreased as a result of an increased use ot
inserts versus run of press. White circulztion
numbers excluding the asset sales were flat,
circulation revenue excluding those asset sales
increased marginally as a result of achieving
an increase in revenue per copy due to price
increases.

Operating expenses. Segment operating
expenses {including selling, general and
administrative expenses) for fiscal year 2004
declined by $23 million cempared to fiscal
2003. This decline reflects a $30 million
decrease in operating expenses atiributable

to publishing assets sold, partially ofiset by

a 36 million increase in operating expenses
attributable fo our continuing operations.

The modest increase reflected normal

salary escalations and increases in certain
administrative costs including pension expense,
partially offset by cost reductions attributable to
the restructuring undertaken in the latter part
of fiscat 2003. Newsprint expenses increased
approximately 1%, reflecting an increase in the
cost of newsprint partially offset by reduced
censumption,

Segment operating profit. Segment operating
profit for fiscal year 2004 increased by $9
mitlion compared to the same period in

the pricr year. Excluding the impact of the
publishing assets sold to Osprey Media,
segment operating protit was $19 million or 8%
higher than in fiscal 2003, driven primarily by
the increase in revenues.

* Restructuring expenses. Restructuring

3
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expenses of $9 million were recorded in respect
of this segment for fiscal vear 2003 consisting
of employee severance costs. These charges
are not reflected in segment cperating orofit.

CANADIAN TELEVISION

« Revenues. Segment revenues for fiscal year
2004 declined by 5% or $40 million to $690
million, from $730 million recorded in fiscal
2003 as a result of a 7% decrease in airtime
sales for fiscal year 2004. The decrease in
airtime szles primarily reflects an increasingly
competitive marketplace, a decline in ratings
and decreased advertising spending from
certain sectars, particularly packaged gooas
and retail. Airtime revenue decreases were
most significant in the first quarter of fiscal
2004, with an 11% decrease compared to the
first quarter of fiscal 20C3.

This decrease was partially offset by an
approximately $3 million increase in revenues
from the sale of program rights resulting from
an increase in television program production
by Global Television. In addition, our scven
digital specialty channels reported increases
in both subscriber and advertising revenue.
Overall, digital revenues increased by 22% to
$10 million in fiscal vear 2004 compared to
the same period in the previcus year. There are
now more than 3.4 million subscribers to our
digital services. representing a 17% increase in
fiscal 2004. Our seventh channel, Coo! TV, was
launched in the first quarter of fiscal 2004.
Operating expenses. Segment cperating
expenses (including seiling, general and
administrative expenses) were $543 miliion for
fiscal year 2004, which is $29 miilion or 6%
higher than segment operating expenses for
fiscal year 2003. This reflected increases in
expenses due to the following:

- program amertization, which comprises
approximately 50% of segment operating
expenses, increased by approximately $14
miliion or 6% for fiscat 2004 as compared to
fiscal 2003. This included charges related to
the discontinuance of certain programming
activities such as the Mike Builard Show as well

.



as increased costs of new program offerings;
increased pension expense primarily as a
resull of an increase in the amortization of the
actuarial loss in our defined benefit pension
plans; and
-increased levies for the Society of Composers,
Authors and Music Pubiishers of Canada.
or SOCAN, were introduced resulting in an
expense increase of approximately $2 mitlion
for fiscal year 2004, including 2pproximately
$1.5 million which related to retroactive
assessment for prior fiscal years.
These increases were partially offset by cost
reductions achieved through sSavirgs as a result
of headeount reductions underiaken in the
second half of fiscat 2003
Segment operating profit. As a result of
revenue decreases and expense increases,
Canadian Television segment cperating crofit
for fiscat 2004 decreased 32% to $147 million,
compared to $216 million for fiscal 2003,
Restructuring expenses. Restructuring
expenses of $2 miliion were recorded in respect
of this segment for fiscal 2004 and $3 million
were recorded in respect of this segment for
fiscal 2003 consisting of employee severance
costs, These charges are not reflected in
segmient operating profit.

AUSTRALIAN TELEVISION

» Revenues. Segment revenues for fiscal year
2004 increased by 22% to $721 million, from
$587 million far the same period in the prior
year, In domestic currency, segment revenues
increased 14%, reflecting Network TEN's

strong rating performance in a strong television
advertising environment. The strength of the
Australian currency contributed an additional
8% increase ¢n transtation to Canadizn dollars.
Operating expenses. Segment operating
expenses for fiscal 2004 increased 16% to
$465 million, compared to $400 million for
fiscal 2003, In domeslic currency, operating
expenses increased 8% primarily as a result of
increased programming expenses. The strength
of the Australian currency added an agditional
8% increase on transiation to Canadian dollars.

.
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- Segment operating profit. Segment operating
profitincreased by 37% 1o $256 million for
fiscal 2004, compared to $187 mitlion for fiscal
2003, as the increase in revenues mere than
offset the increase in operating expenses.

NEW ZEALAND TELEVISION

Revenues for New Zealand's 3 and C4 television
networks increased by 14% to $108 mitlion for
fiscat year 2004, from $95 million the previous
vear. In local currency, revenues increased by
6%, reflecting growth in New Zealand television
advertising expenditures. C4 {formerly TV4) was
re{aunched in fiscai 2004 as New Zeafand's first
free-te-air music channel and has contributed

to the increase in revenues. The stronger New
Zealand currency contributed an additional 8%
increase. In local currency, operating expenses
for New Zealand's 3 and C4 television networks
decreased by 6% primarily as a result of reduced
programming costs partially due to the increased
purchasing power of the New Zeatand dollar. In
addition, in fiscal 2003 program:mning expense
was higher as a resuit of the write-down of
inventory in anticipation of the C4 format change.
On translation to Canadian doitars, operating
expenses for New Zealand’s 3 and C4 television
networks were flat compared to fiscal 2003, as a
result of the sirengthened New Zealand currency.
New Zealand's 3 and C4 produced segment
operating profit of $23 million, more than twice
the segment aperating profit of $10 million
recorded in fiscal year 2003

{RISH TELEVISION

Segment revenues increased by 5% to $34 million

for fiscat 2004 from $32 miffion in fiscal 2003.
Segment operating expenses increased by 4%

as a result of general cost and wage increases.
Segment operating profit increased by 9% to $11
million, fram $10 million recarded in fiscal 2003,
reflecting the increase in segment revenues,
which more than offset the increase in segment
operating expenses.

NEW ZEALAND RADIO

CanWest RadioWorks in New Zealand continued
its steady performance, with increasing revenues
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and segment operaling profit for fiscal year

2004, Segment revenues grew by 18% 1o $87
miltion, from $73 million in the same period in
the previous vear. Domestic currency segment
revenues grew by 10%. with an additicnal 8%
increase as a result of transiation to Canadian
currency. The revenue increase was driven
principaily by growth in radic advertising
expenditures in New Zealand. As a resuit of
growth segment revenue and a strengihening New
Zezland currency, RadioWorks' segment operating
profit grew to $27 million, from $21 mittion in
fiscal 2003.

AUSTRALIAN OUTDOGR ADVERTISING

Segment revenues increased by $13 miilicn, or
21%, to $77 million from $64 million for fiscal
2003. This increase reflected 13% growih in
revenug in domestic currency with a further

8% ncrease as a result of currency translation.
Segment operating profit increased by $10 million
to $14 million fiscal vear 2004, compared to $4
million for fiscal year 2003.

CORPORATE AND OTHER

Segment expenses increased from $23 million

in fiscal 2003 to $27 million in fiscal 2004,
Restructuring expenses of $1 million were
incurred in respect of this segment in fiscal 2003,
consisting of employee severance costs.




CONSOLIDATED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL RESULTS

FOR THE THREE MCGHTH PERIODS ENDED [N THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS. EXCEFT AS NOTED)
(UNAUDITFD)

2005

UEHE
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B . 31-Aug 3}-May 28-Feb 30-Nov
Hevenue 701,537 809,727 688,653 872,630
Operating income before amortization 84,322 197,614 148,696 289,605
Amortization of intargitles 5,456 4,983 4558 4939
Amortization of property, plant, equipment and other 24,743 24914 24,643 22,859
Net earnings {loss) from continuing operations (102,089) 58,823 28,242 35,446
Net earnings {loss} (106,039) 52,718 28,196 35415
Cash flow from continuing operating activities 202,539 72,948 175,313 15,488
Cash flow from operating activities 214,141 83,298 181,628 36,629
Net earnings (loss) from continuing operations per share

Basic ($0.57) $0.33 $0.16 $0.20

Diluted (30.57) $0.33 $0.16 $0.20
Net earnings (loss) per share

Basic ($0.60) $0.30 $0.16 $0.20

Diluted ($0.60) $0.30 $0.16 $0.20
2004
(Revised: see note 1 to the audited consolidated financial statements} 31-Aug 31-May 28-Feb 30-Nov
Revenue 664,990 783,941 661,865 800,604
Operating income before amortization 120,337 202,367 143,495 250,399
Amortizalion of intangibles 4,542 4,552 4550 4538
Amortization of property, plant, equipment and other 20,646 25,369 24,210 23,877
Net earnings from continuing operations 59,767 52.475 {1,535} 83,592
Net earnings (loss) 61,966 04,337 (211,277 81,496
Cash flow from continuing operating activities 184,685 52,003 114,761 42324
Cash flow from operating activities 186,943 75,962 105,862 41,507
Net earnings (loss} from continuing cperations per share

Basic $0.34 $0.3¢ (30.01) $0.47

Diluted $0.34 $0.30 {$0.01} $0.47
Net earnings (loss) per share

Basic $0.35 $0.21 ($1.19) $0.46

Diuted ~$O.35» _ $O.3] ($'1_.1‘97) $0.46




RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED AUGUST 31, 2005

FOLLOWING 1S A TABLE OF SEGMENTED RESULTS FOR THE THREZ MONTHS ENGED AUGUST 31, 2005 AND AUGHST 31, 2004

(UNALIDITED)

Revenue

ot b
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Segment operating profit

2005 2004 {revised)’ 2005 2004 (revised)!
N $000 3000 $000 $000
Operating segments
Publishing and Online -Canada 290,242 280,807 38.869 £3,348
Television
Canada 133,948 130,590 {13.313) (20}
Australia - Network TEN 187.438 175,415 61,634 58 405
New Zealand 33,192 29,682 7.894 5,630
ireland 7.351 7110 1,712 1,712
Total Television 361,931 342,797 57,927 55,727
Radio-New Zealand 22,195 21,418 5,879 5544
Outdoor - Austratia 27,165 19,968 5,149 4116
Corporate and other - (11,502) (6,453‘»_
701,537 664,990 96,322 123,282
Ravelston management contract termination (12,000) -
Restructuring and film and lelevision impairment expense - {2,445}
Operating income before amortization 84,322 120,837

! See note } 1o our Audited consoldated fnancial statements.

Consobidated results

Revenues. Consolidated revenues increased

by $37 million or 5% to $702 million for the

three months ended August 31, 2005, from
cansolidated revenues of $665 million for the
same period in fiscal 2004. Revenues for the
fourth quarter reflected a 9% increase in revenues
from international media operations, a 3%
increase in Canadian Teievisicn revenues and a
3% increase in Canadian Publishing and Onlire
revenues.

Operating expenses. Consclidated operating
expenses {including selling, general and
administrative expenses) before amortization
increased $63 million or 12% to $605 million.

This increase reflects expense increases in al!
operating segments.

Ravelston management contract termination.
Effective April 2005, we terminated the agreement
under which we received management services
fram The Ravelston Corporation Limited
[“Ravelston”). The agreement provided for

annual payments of $6 million {o Ravelston as
well as the payment of & fes upon termination

In August 2005, we and RSM Richter Inc., in its
capacity as interim receiver, receiver manager
and monitor of Ravelston, received Court approval
for a termination payment in the amount of $12
miltion, which was paid in September 2005. This
charge was recorded in operating expenses for
the year ended August 31, 2005.

Operating income before amortization.
Consolidated operating income before
amortization decreased by 30% to $84 million
for the three months ended August 31, 2005,
from $121 millicn for the same pericd last

year. The decrease in operaling income before
amortization reflected increases for international
media operations that were offset by decreases
in operating income from the Canadian media
operations and the Raveiston management
contract termination.

Amortization. Amortization of intangibles was
$5 million n the fourth quarter of both fiscal
2005 and 2004. Amortization of property plant
and equipment was $25 million in fiscai 2005
compared to $21 million in fiscal 2004, The
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increase in amoriization of property lant and
equipment reflecl acauwsitions made in fiscal
2005 and fiscal 2004,

Financing costs. Interest expense was $52 million
for the {hree months ended August 31, 2005,
comngared 1o $80 million in the previous year,
refiecting a reduced level of debt as well as reduced
interest rates achieved through our refinancing
activities in fiscal 2005 and in fiscal 2004,

interest rate and foreign currency swap losses.
For the three months ended August 31, 2005,

we recorded a $10S million loss equivalent to the
change in fair value of interest rate and foreign
currency interest rate swaps on debt that has
een retired. This compared 1o a loss of $102
million for the same period in fiscal 2004.

Foreign exchange gains. We recorded net foreign
exchange gains of $47 million in the three months
ended August 31, 2005, compared tc a gain of
$41 million for the same pericd in 2004. This
reflects gains of $49 million on repayment of

U.S. dollar denominated debt net of a $2 miflion
ioss on the translation of U.S. debt, which is not
hedged, and a loss on the translation of U.S.
dollar cash.

Investment gains. For the three months ended
August 31, 2005, we recorded an investment
gain of $1 million, compared to $118 million gain
for the same period the previous year. The gain
in 2005 relates ic gains on disposal of property
plant and equipment. The gain in fiscal 2004
reflects a $66 million gain from compieting the
initial public offering and refinancing of our New
Zeaiand operations, which reduced our cwnership
from 100% to 70%, and a $51 million gain from
selling our 29.9% interest in Ulster Television.

Goodwill impairment. For fiscal 2005, we
serformed our annual impairment testing and
determined that the goodwill related to the
National Post was impaired and as a result,
recorded an impairment of $41 million.

Asset impairment. For fiscal 2005, we performed |

. our annual impairment lesting and determined
that an intangible assel related to the Nalional

Post was imgzaired and as a resuit, recerded an
impairment of $10 million.

Income taxes. Our income tax recovery was

$34 miliion for the three months ended August
31, 2035, compared to $10 million in the same
period of fiscal 2G04. The effective tax rate of
28% was below the Company's statutory rate

of 35% due ta the effect of nen-tax deductible
goodwill impairment of $14 million, offset by the
resolution of uncertain tax position in the amount
of $5 million.

Minority interests. For the three months ended
August 31, 2005, we recorded minority interests
charges related to the 30% minarity interests in
CanWest MediaWarks (NZ) and the 43.6% mingrity
interests in TEN Group of $1 million and $17 miillicn,
respectively. The minarity interests charge related to
TEN Group decreased 6% as compared to the $18
million charge for the same perigd in fiscal 2004, as
a result of the decrease in TEN Group's net earnings
in the quarter. There was only a nominal minority
interests charge related to CanWest MediaWorks
{NZ) for fourth guarter of fiscat 2004 because it was
wholly owned to July 2004.

Net earnings from continuing operations. Our
net loss from continuing cperaticns for the three
months ended August 31, 2005 were $102 million
or ($0.57) per share, compared to net eamings

of $60 million or $0.34 per share for the three
months ended August 31, 2004.

Discontinued operations. In July 2005, we

sold a substantigl portion of our entertainment
operations. The loss from discontinued operations
was $4 million for the three months ended August
31, 2005, compared 1o eamings of $2 million for
the same operztions for the three months ended
August 31, 2004,

Net earnings. Our net loss for the three months
ended August 31, 2005 was $106 millon or
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(83.57) per share compared to net earnings $62
miltion or $0.34 per share, for the fourth quarter
of fiscal 2004,

Segm

o

ented results
PUBLISHING AND ONLINE

+ Revenues. Revenues increased by $9 million or
3% te $290 miliion for the three months ended
August 31, 2005 as compared tc the same
pericd in the pricr vear. liicreases in advertising
revenues resulted from rate increases as well
as from increases in revenues from onling
classifieds. Revenues from online classifieds
increzsed to $4 miliion for the three months
ended August 31, 2005, from less than $1
million for the same period in the prior year.
Circulation revenues were $61 mitlion for the
three months ended August 31, 2005 and
2004 and resresented 21% of newspaper and
online segment revenues for the three months
ended August 31, 2008, compared to 22% for
the same period in the prior year. Circulation
volume decreased by 2%, while the average
rate per copy increased by 2%, which resulted
in fiat circulation revenues for the three months
ended August 31, 2005, as compared (o the
same period in fiscai 2004,
Operating expenses. Segment operating
expenses increased by $24 million or 11%
to $251 miflion for the three months ended
August 31, 2005, as compared to the same
period in the prior year, primarily as a result
of increased payroll costs including increased
costs of executive management. Newsprint
costs increased by approximately 1%, reflecting
reduced pricing offset by increased newsprint
usage.
Segment operating profit. Segment operating
profit for the three months enged August
31, 2005, decreased by $14 million or 27%,
compared to the same period in the prior year.
The decrease in segment operating profit arose
frem increased operating costs and by losses of
$5 mitlion related to Dose and the Metro jaint
venture, both of which commenced operations
in 2005.
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CANADIAN TELEVISION

+ Revenues. In total, revenues from cur
Canadian television operating segment of $134
million wese $3 million or 3% higher than the
$131 miltion recorded in the same period in
fiscal 2004. This reflected 2 3% decrease in
airtime revenues. Subscriber revenues from
cur specialty channels increased by 15% for
the fourth quarter of fiscal 205 as compared
10 the same pericd in fiscal 2004, reflecting a
16% increase in subscribers.

Operating expenses. Operating expenses
{including selling, gereral and administrative
expenses) of $147 million at Canadian
selevision operations were $17 million or 13%
nigher thar in the same pericd the prior year,
crimartly the result of an increase in program
ameriization expense and promotion as we
continue to invest in our schedule in order to
mcrease ratings.

Segment operating foss. Our Canadian
television segment recorded an operating
10ss of $13 million for the fourth quarter of
fiscal 2005 compared to break-even for the
same period in fiscal 2004. This reflects the
increases in exopenses offset by the increased
revenue previously mentioned.

.
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AUSTRALIAN TELEVISION

= Revenues. Segnient revenues increased by
7% to $187 million for the three manths ended
August 31, 2005, from $175 million during the
same period in the prior year. In local currency,
revenues increased 8%, reflecting TEN's strong
rating perfcrmance in the quarter in a tcugh
television advertising environment.

Operating expenses. Segment operating
expenses increased 8% to $126 miltion for

the three months ended August 31, 2005,
compared to $117 mitlion for the same period
in fiscal 2004, primarily reflecting increased
programming costs.

Segment operating profit. Segment cperating
orofitincreased by 6% o $62 million for the
fourth quarter of 2005, compared to $58
million in the same period in fiscal 2004.

s
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NEW ZEALAND TELEVISION

« Revenues. Revenues from television broadcast

i operations for New Zealand's 3 and C4

television networks increased by 12% to $33
miliion for the fourth quarter of fiscat 2005,

i from $30 millior: for the same period in fiscal
2004, reflecting improved zudience share

in a strong advertising environment. In local
currency, revenues increased 13%, reflecting
New Zealand's strong rating performance.

i = Operating expenses. Operating expenses

i increased by 5% to $25 million for the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2005 from $24 million, as a
result of increased programming expenses.
Segment operating profit. New Zealand 3 and
C4 produced segment operating profit of $8
mifiion, a $2 million or 40% increase from the
results recorded in the fourth guarter of 2004.

IRISH TELEVISION

Our 45% share of revenues at TV3 in the Republic
of Irefand increased by 3% to $7 million in the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, compared {0 the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2004. Our share of TV3's
segment operating profit stayed flat at $2 million
for both the three months ended August 31, 2005 |
and 2004. :

»

NEW ZEALAND RADIO

CanWest RadioWorks continued its steady
performance, increasing revenues for the three
months ended August 31, 2005. Revenue graw
by 4% to $22 million, from $21 millien during
the fourth quarter of the previous year. Segment
operating profit declined by 10% to $6 million
for the three months ended August 31, 2005 as

ompared to the same pericd the previous year,
due to the significant start-up costs associated
with Radio Live and the branding costs related to
Kiwi FI.

AUSTRALIAN OUTDOOR ADVERTISING

Segment revenues increased by $7 million or 36%
to $27 million for the three months ended August
31, 2005, from $20 million for the fourth quarter
in fiscal 2004. This increase reflected 38%

growth in revenue in local currency. Our segment

operaling profit from TEN Group's outdoor

INFORR o ENLIGRTIN o ENTERTAIN !

advertising operations increased by $1 million
to $5 mitlion, as cornparad to the fourih quarler
in tiscal 2004, driven oy Eyve Corp.'s acquisition
of the remaining 50% of Eye Shop as well as
stronger airport advertising revenues.

CORFPORATE AND OTHER

Corporate and other segment expenses increased
to $12 million in for the three months ended
August 31, 2005, compared to $6 million in the
same period in the prior year, due to increased
costs related to analysis and documentation

of our internal controls in preparation far the
requirements under section 404 of the Sarbanes
Oxley Act as well as expenses related to a
corporate reprganization and increased expenses
related to corporate development initiatives.
Liquidity and capital resources
Qverview

Our principal uses of funds are for capital
expenditures and repayment of debt. We have
historically met these requirements by using cash
generated from operating activities and through
short term and long term debt. We believe these
sources of funds, together with our cash on hand,
will continue to be adequate fo meet our currently
anticipated capita! requirements.

We also review acquisition and investment
opportunities in the course of our business
and will, if a suitable cpportunity arises and is
permitted by the terms of our debt instruments,
make selected acquisitions and investments
to implement our business strategy. We expect
that the funding for any such acquisitions or
investments would come from working capital,
barrowing under our credit facility or future credit
facilities, additional equity and debt financing,
entering inte joint ventures or a combination of
these methods. Similarly, from fime to time, we
review opportunities to dispose of non-core assets,
and may, if a suitable opportunity arises, sell
certain non-core assets.

For 2006, we expect cur major non-
operating cash requirements 1o include expected
capital expenditures of approximately $151
miltion, swap recouponing payments as discussed

wm
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nelow in swap transactions, repayment of $21
mition in orincipal cayments on long term debt
cue in fiscal 2006 and US$42 million related to the
acquisition of Turkish radio operaticns. We expect
1o meet our cash needs for fiscal 2006 primarily
through & combination of operating cash flow,

cash on hand and our credit facilities.

CanWest MediaWorks Income Fund
and related transactions

in October 2005, we transferred our investment in
our newspaper and online operations (exciuding
the National Post) and certain shared service
operations, which provide custorner support and
administrative services, to the Limited Partnership.
In exchange, we received units of the Limited
Partnership representing a 74.2% ownership
interest and nates receivable of $1,340 million.

Concurrently, the Fund closed its initial
nublic offering {"1IPO”) of units and nvested the
net praceeds of $517 million for units of the
Limited Parinership representing a 25.8% interest.

In addition, the Limited Partnership
obtained credit facilities in the amount of $1 bilfion,
consisting of an $825 millicn non-revolving term
credit facitity and a $175 million revalving term
credit facifity. The revolving facility matures in five
years, is subject o certain restrictions and bears
interest at the prevailing prime rate, U.S. base rate,
nanker's acceptance rate or LIBOR plus, in each
case, an applicable margin. The norHevchving
facility matures in five years, and bears interest at
the prevailing prime rate, U.S. base rate, banker's
acceptance rate or LIBOR plus, in each case, an
applicable margin. On closing of the PO, the
Limited Partnership drew $830 million on its credit
facilities. The Limited Partnership has entered into
tive year interest rate swap contracts to fix the
interest payments cn a national amount of $825
miltion for the first three years and $660 mifiion for
the remaining two years, resuiting in an effective
interest rate of 5.0%.

The Limited Partnershiz utilized the
oroceeds of the issuance of the units to the Fund
and $823 millior of drawings under its new credit
facilities to repay the $1,240 million note payzable
o us.

As a result of the transaction, we will record
a dilubien gain or foss on the sale of a 25.8%
interest in the operalions transferred to the
Limited Partnership. The amount of the gain or
loss has not been determined. We will continue to
consolidate the resuits of these operations.

In October 2005, we obtained a new $500
miltion revolving term credit facility. The revolving
facility matures in five years, is subject to certain
restrictions and bears interest at the prevailing
orime rate, U.S. base rate, banker's acceptance
rate or LIBOR plus, in each case, an acplicable
margin. This facility is secured by substantially alt
our directly held assets including the assets of aur
Canadian broadrast operations and the National
Post as well as by olher invesiments. The iotal
leverage covenant under the new facility is 5.0
times cash flow. On October 13, 2005, we drew
$41% million on this facility.

The net proceeds from the IPO and the
Limited Partnership debt as well as proceeds of
$401 mittion from our new credit facility were
utilized to refire certain dedt and interest rate and
cross currency interest rate contracts as follows:
{a) In October 2005, we completed tender
offers for the 10.625% senior subordinated
notes payable due in 2011 and the 7.625%
senicr unsecured notes payable due in 2013.
Substantiafly all of the notes under these facilities
were seftied. Debt with a book value of $772
million, and related deferred financing costs
of $28 million were retired for cash of $849
million. The transaction resuited in a loss on
debt retirement of $71 milkon, net of tax of $34
million. As a result of the repayment of these
notes we recorded a swap loss of $22 million,
net of tax of $12 million related to the asscciated
¢ross currency interest rate swaps in the first
quarter of fiscal 2006.

{b) I»» October 2005, we retired the senior credit
facility. Debt with a book value of $526 million
and deferred financing costs of 36 million were

I settled for cash of $526 millicn. The transaction

resulted in a loss on debt retirement of $4 mitlion,
net of tax of $2 mitlion. In addition, as a result of
the settlement of this debt, we recorded a loss of
$48 miilion. nat of tax of $27 million related to the

asseciated interest rate and ¢ross currency interast
rate swaps in the first quarter of fiscal 2006.

(c) In November 2005, we retired interes rale
and cross currency interest rate swap contracts
retaling 16 the 7.625% ndles, the 10.625% notes
and 50% of the cross currency interes! rate swap
related to the senior secured credit facilities for
cash of $365 million.

Upen ciosing of the above noted
transactions. our consolidated debt was reduced
by $400 million to $2,194 million.

Following the income Fund transactions in
October 2005 our cash flow from the Publications
Group will be diluted for the 25 8% interest held
by the Income Fund and wili be received by way
of distributions from the Limited Partnership, 2
portion of which are subordinated. If distributable
cash of the Limited Partnership is not sufficient
to pay the entire distribution our share will be
disproportionately affected by the shortfall.
Sources of tunds
Our principal sources of liquidity are cash and
cash equivalents on hand and cash flows from
operating activities. At August 31, 2005, we had
cash on hand of $30 million including $12 million
of TEN Group cash and $2 million of CanWest
MediaWorks (NZ) cash. We generated cash flows
from operating activities of continuing operations
of $469 mitlion in fiscal 2005 and $394 million in
fiscai 2004.

| addition to the above sources of liquidity,
we had unused borrowing capacity under our
credit facility of $413 mithon at August 31. 2005.
TEN Group had unused borrowing capacity of
A$520 million under its credit facilities.

in October 2005, we obtained a new $500
milfion revalving term credit facility, as discussed
in the CanWest MediaWorks Income Fund and
related transactions section of this report.

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

In October 2005, we received proceeds of
$1.340 million from the Limited Partnership
which consisted of $517 million relating to the
proceeds received from the initial public offering
of the Fund, and $823 million related to new
delit obtained by the Limited Partnership. For



turther discussion of these activities, refer to
CanWes! MediaWaiks Income Fund and relaled
fransactions seclion of this report.

Ve expect to receive annua! distributions
of approximately $146 mifiion from the Limited
Parinership related to our 74.2% interest. $108
million of these distributions will be payable to us
on the same prigrity as the amounis payable to
the Incame Fund, while the remaining $38 million
is subordinated and wil be payable cn a quarterly
oasis oniy if the Limited Partnership has sufficient
cistributable cash.

Uses of funds
CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

in fiscal 2008, our capital expenditures amounted
0 $99 million. We also invested $2 million in the
acquisition of new FM radio frequencies related to
our New Zealand radin operations. In fiscal 2006,
we expect 10 increase our capital expenditures to
approximalely $151 million. This amount includes
$20 milsion in fechnical upgrades. $10 million for
a broadcast traffic syster in Canada and $75
million to replace existing equipment.

SWAP TRANSACTIONS

Under our credit facility, we are required o
maintain the fair value of our foreign currency
and interest rate swaps above a prescribed
minimum liability (3600 miltion at August

31, 200%). In addition, there are prescribed
minimums with individual counterparties.
Under these agreements, which have two-way
recouponing provisions, we were required to
make net recouponing payments of $97 million
in the year ended August 31, 2005. Subseguent
10 year-end, we were reguired 10 make further
recouponing payments of $1i8 mitlign. In October
2005, we seftled swaps as described in the
CanWest MediaWorks Income Fund and related
transactions section of this report.

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

in fiscal 2005, Eye Corp. acquired the remaining
50% of Eye Shop Ply Limited {formerly Eye
Village Joint Venlure). Alse, in July 2005, Eye
Corp. acquired 100% of Eve Drive Melbourne Pty
Limited (formerly Southcoast Pty Limited).

H

; we announced the acquisition of an equity

In addition, on September 21, Z0GA.

interest in CGS Televizyon Ve Radyo Yayinciligi
Ticaret Anonim Sirketi {“CGS”) that in turn was
successful in its bid to acquire the assets of Super
FM for consideration of US$23 million, which will
be payable upon compietion of the transaction.
On September 22, 2005, we announced that
asifix Televizyon Ve Racyo Yayincilig Ticaret
AS. ("Pasifik”} was successful in its bid to
acquire the assets of Metro FM for consideration
of US$23 million, which will be payable upon
ampletion of the transaction. In exchange for the
payment ¢f $US42 million, we will acguire a 75%
economit interest in both COS and Pasifik. These
transactions, which are subject to regulator
approvals by certain Turkish authorites, are
expected to be completed within 90 days of the
announcement. Subject to a relaxation of foreign
ownership restrictions and the receipt of all
necessary regulatory approvals, we have the right
to convert our interest to a 75% equity interest in
Metro FM and Super FM.

Debt
GENERAL

At August 31, 2005, we had total cutstanding

ansolidated debt of $2,907 million, including
TEN Group debt of $309 million and CanWest
MediaWorks {NZ} debt of $155 million, compared
to debt of $3,216 miilion as at August 31, 2004.
In addition, we had obligations under capita!
leases of $17 million. For additional information
concerning our indebtedness, see notes 7 and &
to our audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended August 31, 2005.

In October 2005, specific debt was repaid |
and the credit facility was refinanced as described
in the CanWest MediaWorks income Fund and
related transactions section of this report,

CREDIT FACILITY

Total credit available under our senior secured
credit facifity was $755 miltion as of August 33,
2005, of which we had drawn $348 miliion.

The facitty includes revoiving and non-revolving
tranches with terms ranging from two and a haif

to five years. The credlit facitity is collateralized by
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substantialiy all of qur assets.

Total leverage as calculated under our credil
facilily was 4.7 tmes cash How for dedt covenant
purposes for the twelve months ended August 31,
2005 compared to & covenant of 6.0 limes. On
closing of the CanWest MediaWorks income Fund
and related transact:ons in October 2005, our
total leverage as calculated under our new cradit
facility was 3.74.The total leverage covenant under
the new credit facility is 5.0 times.

REFINANCING OF JUNIOR
SUBORDINATED NOTES

In November 2004, we successfully completed
the refinancing of our junicr subordinated
notes. These notes were issued to Hollinger as
consideration for the purchase of our publishing
operatizns in November 2000. Interest obligations
under these notes to Novemter 2005 were
payable via the issuance of additional notes.
The $904 millior: {including accrued interest

to November 18, 2004} 12.125% notes due
November 2000 were effectively settled through
the issuance of $908 miliion {LIS$761 million)
in senigr subordinated notes due 2012, The
premium on the ¢ld notes was expensed in our
first quarter of 2005. The new notes carry an
interest rate coupon of 8%, which is settled in
cash on a semi-annual basis, and results in
annual interest savings of approximately

$40 miilion.

TENDER OFFER

As discussed in the CanWest MediaWorks Income
Fund and related transactions section of this
report, we closed tender offers on the 10.625%
senior subordinated notes and 7.625% senior
unsecured notes payable in the principal amount
of US$625 million.
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Bligaticns and commitments

ntractual onhy

The Company’s obl:gations under firm contractual arrangements, inciuding cemmitments for
future payments under long term debt arrangements, operating lease arrangements, purchase
commitments and sther long term liabilities as at August 31. 2005, are summarized below

IMFSSM o F

Payments due by period

Total  Less than 1 year

1-3 years 3-5 years Thereafter
3000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Long term debt! 2907307 21,017 9,853 48177 2,128,060
Cash interest obligations on long term debt’ 1097178 201,520 385,684 318,000 190,974
Cash payments on interest rate and
foreign currency swag liabilities 245,208 28,451 50,080 166,577 -
Obligations under capital leases . 23946 2.637 8.419 7522 5,368
Operating leases 355,168 72,828 104,984 56,58C 120,766
Purchase obligations* 1,684,771 401,571 684,817 £98,383 -
Eshimated pension funding obligatiens® 85,367 16,699 34,255 24,413 -
Other long term liabitities 126,432 - 82,127 - 44,305
Total 6525177 744,723 1,360,229 1,930,752 2,489,473

(LN

Long term debt represents our conractual commitments as of August 31, 2005 and does not take into account the transactions discussed in the CanWest MegiaWorks Income Fund ang related
transactions section of this report. As a result of the refinancing, long term debt repayments for the periods noted will be as follows: iess than 1 vear - 317 mitlion, 1-3 years - $1 miliion. 3-5

years - $315 miliion 2nd tnereafter - $2.33% miilion.

Interest obligations on long term debt represents an estimate of future cash interest expense based on current interest rates, current debt fevels and scheduled debt repayments and their related
interest rate and foreign currency interest swaps. As a result of the Income Fund transactions cash interest expenze for the perinds noted will change as foliows: less than 1 year - decrease by

830

Hlien. 1-3 years - $72 mittion,

S years wifl decraase by $26 mitlins

ng thereafter will decrease by $37 million.

Cash paymenis on interest rate and foreign currency swap labilities represents an estimate of future cash payments based on current interest rate ievels and current foreign exchange rates.
Purchase obligations represent an estimate of aur contractuai commilments 10 puschase broadcas: nghts and to make investments in television programs.

Pension funding cbligation estimates have only been included for the next five years.



Financial instruments

Qur primary market risk exposures are interest
rate and foreign currency exchange rate risk.

We are exposed to interest rate risk and foreign
exchange rate fluctuations resulting from

the issuance of floating rate debt and debt
denominated in U.S. dollars. In addition to
monitoring the ratio of fixed rate debt io total long
term debt, we use interest rate swaps 10 manage
the propertion of total debt that is subject to
variable rales. Cross currency swaps are used

ic hedge both the interes! rate and the currency
exposure on debt originally issued in U.S. doliars.
We do not enter into any derivatives for trading
SUrpoSEs.

At August 31, 2005, we have fully hedged
the currency exposure on our U.S. dollar
denominated debt with the exception of senior
and senior subordinated noies in the amount of
US$42 million, and have fixed the interest rate of
100% of our floating rate debt by entering into a
combination of cross currency swaps and interest
rate swaps.

As of August 31, 2005, we have entered
into interest rale swap contracts to pay fixed rates
of interest (at an average rate of 6.5%) and receive
floating rates of interest {at an average rate of
2.7%) on a notional amount of $448 million.

We have entered into pay fixed receive floating
Cross currency swap contracts et an average rate
of 6.7% on a notional amount of $1,051 mitiion
and receive floating rates of 3.8% on a notional
amount of US$679 million. We have alsc entered
into pay floating receive fixed cross currency
swap contracts at an average floating rate of 7.0%
on a notional amount of $1,862 million and an
average fived rate of 8.9% on a notional amount
of US$1,386 million. As part of the refinancing
discussed in the CanWest MediaWorks Income
Fund and related transactions section of this
report, a portian of the cross currency swaps were
settled in the first quarter of fiscal 2006.

We are also exposed to foreign exchange
and interest rate risk as a result of debt and
related swaps issued by CanWest MediaWorks
(NZ}, TV3 lreland and TEN Group. As at August
31, 2005, our share of the TV3 debt was $12

miflion (€8 miilicrs). €10 millicn of this debt

was swapped to a fixed rate (at an average rale
of 3.2%) and the remainder of the debl bears
interest af a fioating rate. As at August 31, 2005,
CanWest MediaWorks (NZ) had $155 million
{NZ$188 million) of debt. NZ$165 million of this

; debt was swapped to a fixed rate (at an average

rate of 6.5% until 2006), and the remainder of the
debt bears interest at a floating rate.

At August 31, 2005, TEN Group had leng
term debt of $302 million (A$346 million). TEN
Group has entered into pay floating receive fixed

| Cross currency swap contracts at an average
floating rate of 7.0% on & noticnal amount of

A3210 million and received fixed swap contracts
at an average raie of 5.4% on a nolional amount
of US$125 mitlion. TEN Group has alsc entered
into inferest rate swap contracts to pay fixed
rates of interest (at an average rate of 5.7%) cn &
notional amount of A$285 million.

Based on the swap contracts outstanding
and the level of varizble rate debt at August 31,
2005, we estimate that a 1% increase in floating
interest rates would increase annual interest
exgense by $21 million. This estimate is based on
the assumption of a canstant variable rate debt
and swap level and an immediate rate increase
with no subsequent rate changes in the remaining
term to maturity.

The fair value of the swap contracts
represents an estimate of the amount that we
would receive or pay if the contracts were closed
out at a market price on the balance sheet date.
As of August 31, 2005, our outstanding swap
contracts were in a net unrealized loss position of
$119 million {including $2 million reiated to TEN
Group). In addition, we have recorded the effect of
hedging instruments of the US$ principal balance
of debt of $356 million (including $39 millicn
related to TEN Group}.

Unrealized gains related to foreign exchange
on U.S. doliar denominated debt amounted to
$356 miilion as at August 31, 2005 {including
$39 miltion related to TEN Group).

As of August 31, 2005, assuming ail
other variables are held constant, a 10 basis
point paratlel upward shift in the Canadian and
U.S. fixed yield would result in a2 $4 million
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deterioration in the mark o market value of all
swaps, excluding TEN Group. A §0.001 change
in the value of the Canadian dollar against the
U.S. aoller, assuming all other variabies are held
constant, would result in a 33 miliion change in
the mark to market value ¢f the cress currency
swaps. A $0.001 change in the value of the
Australian deilar against the U.S. dollar, assuming
all other variables are held constani, wouid result
in a $0.2 million change in the mark to merket
value of the £ross currency swaps.

Related party transactions

Senior subgrdinated notes held by CanWest
Communications Corperation, our parent
company, totaled $50 milien (US$4Z million)
at August 31, 2005 {2004 - $55 million [US$42
miliion]). This debt, issued in May 2001, matures
May 15. 2011 and bears interest at 10.628%,
Interest expense related to this debt totaled $6
million in fiscal 2004 {2603 - §6 miliion}. In
Octeber 2005, we settled these notes under
the same terms offered to unrelated senior
subordinated note hoiders for $55.4 miltion.

A company which is owned by CanWest
Communications Corperation owns CanWes!
Giobal Place in Winnipeg, Manitoba, a building
in which the we are a tenant. Rent paid to this
company in fiscal 2005 amounted to $1 miltion
{2004 - $1 million} and is included in seliing,
general and administrative expenses. The
obligations under these operating leases continue
until August 2010.

Al the related party transactions have been
recorded at the exchange amounts, which are
representative of market rates.

Differences benween Canadian
GAAP and US. GAAP

The preceding discussion and analysis has been
based upon financiai statements prepared in
accordance with Canadian GAAP, which differs
in certain respects from United States GAAP. The
significant differences relevant tc the Company
are discussed in detail in note 25 of Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for the years
ended August 31, 2005 and August 3%, 2004,
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i MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
£ I

RECONCILIATION OF NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

{)

2 FOLLOWING IS A RECONCILIATIGN OF GPERATING INCOME BEFORE AMORTIZATION (A NON-GARP MEASURE] TO NET CARNINGS
5 4TS KOST CLOSTTY GOMPARABLE GAAP MFASHIRE).
; -
For the three months ended August 31, For the years ended August 31.
{unaudited)

2005 2004 2005 2004 2003

(revised)! (revised)! {revised)!

Net earnings (l0ss) {105,039) 51,966 10,290 113,478) 26,088

% Amortization . 30,199 25,188 117,500 112,284 111,604
interest and cther tinancing expenses 171,526 188,025 453,067 462,027 408,296
i investment gains, losses. interest and dividend inceme {1,717) (121,145) {4,158) (128,665) (12,77
Foreign exchange gains 147,319) (41,207} (76,025) (44973 {3,919)

L0ss on debt extinguishment - - 43,992 - -

Goodwill impairment 41,408 - 41,406 - -

Asset impairment 9.62¢ 9,629 . -

Lass (income) from discantinued operations 3,850 (2,199) 10132 201777 68,715

Provision for income tax expense (recovery) (33,714) (9.701) 20,472 37,485 (45,810)

interest in eamings {losses) of equity accounted affitates 1492) (3.287) {2,043) (2.73%) 1,33

Minerity interests 17,971 18.059 96,597 80,349 20,636

Realized currency translation adjustments (1,078) 5,138 622) 7.023 (922

Operating income before amortization 84,322 120,837 720,237 717098 652,243

' See note 1 to our audied consoiidated financial statements.
Other

Share data

As at November 17, 2005 we had the loliowing number of shares cutstanding:

Multiple voting shares 76,785,976
Subordinate voling shares 98,772,468
Nornwvoting shares 1,844,092

Our AIF is filed on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.
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Disclosure statement

Comparison of NYSE Corporate Governance Rules required to be followed by U.S. Domestic
lssuers and the Corporate Governance Practices of CanWest Global Communications Corp.

CanWest is a Canadian corporation whose shares are listed on both the Toronio Stock Exchange {TSX)
and the New York Stack Exchange {NYSE). For purposes of our NYSE listing, CanWest is considered
10 pe a “foreign private issuer” This means that CanWest is not required to comply with most of the
corpurate governance listing standards set out in the NYSE's Listed Company Manual (NYSE Rules).
However, CanWest's corporale governance syslem incorporales a number

of vest practices contained in the NYSE Rules, and is in compliance with apsliczble rules adopted by
‘he Securities Exchange Commission (SEC) to give effect to the Sarbanes-QOxley Act of 2002.

As required oy the NYSE Rules, the following summarizes the significant ways in which CanWest's
corporate governance practices differ from those required to be followed by U.S. domestic issuers
under the NYSE Rules:
« Section 303A.08 of the NYSE Rules requires shareholder approval of alt equity compensaticn plans
and material revisions to such plans, subject to limited exceptions. CanWest follows the rules of
the TSX with respect to requirements for shareholder approval of equity compensation plans and
material revisions to such plans. The TSX rules currently require shareholder approval oniy in certain
circumstances.

Copies of the CanWest Board Mandate, Committee Chariers and Corporate Code of Ethics are
available at www.canwestglobal.com.

t;
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Management’s report to shareholders

The accompanying financial stalements were prepared by the management of the Company, which
is respensible for the integrity and objectivity of the information centained therein. The siatements
nave been prepared by qualified personne! in accordance with policies and procedures established
sv management. The Company’s procedures and related internal control systems are designed to
nrovide assurance that accounting records are reliable and to safeguard the Company’s assets.

In management’s opinion, the consolidated financial statements fairly reflect the financial
sosition of the Company, the results of its operations and cash flow, and are prepared in
accordance with generaily accepted accounting principles.

PricewaterhouseCocpers LLP, as the Company’s external auditors, have audited the
consolidated financial statements, and their repart can be found on page 33. Their opinion is
sased upon an examiration conducted in accordance with generzlly accepted auditing standards
in Canada and a review of certain of the Company's accounting policies and procedures and
internat control systems. Based upcn the evaluation of these systems, ihe external zuditors conduct
approprizte tests of the Company’s accounting records and obtain sufficient audii evidence to
orovide reasonable assurance that the financial statements are presented fairly, in ail material
respects, in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

The Audit Commiittee, none of the members of which are officers of the Company, mests at
various times throughout the year and reviews the Company’s consolidated financial statements
sefore recommending them to the Board of Directors for approval. It alsc reviews reports prepared
by the external auditors of the Company on the Company’s accounting policies and procedures and
internal control systems. The Audit Committee recommends the appoiniment of the Compary's
exiernal auditors, who are appointed annually by the Company’s shareholders.

%M |

JOHN MAGUIRE
CHIEF FINANCIAL QFFICER
NOVEMBER 17 2005
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Auditor’s report

To the Shareholders of CanWest Global Communications Corp.

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of CanWest Global Communications Cora. 2s of
August 31, 2005 and August 31, 2004 and the consolidated statements af eamings {loss} and retained
earnings and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company's management, Our respensibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements

based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit 1o obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounis and disclosures in the financial statements. An zudit also includes
assessing {he accounting principles used and significant estimaies made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

in our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
5rancial position of the Company as of August 31, 2005 and August 31, 2004 and the results of its
sperations and its cash flows for the vears then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting princicles.

Deswntinhous bovps LLF

PRICEWATERMCUSECOOPERS LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
WINNIPES, CANADA

NOVEWIBER 17, 2005
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Consolidated financial statements
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

AS AT AUGUST 31 (N THCUSARDS OF CANADIAN D0

AR

2005 2004
o B N . {Revsod nate 1)
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash 29,858 97,271
Accounts receivable 486,568 488,418
inventory 13,533 13,448
investment in broadcast rights 188,729 134,099
Future income taxes inowe 13; 3,893 6.166
Other current assels 26,043 22,574
Assets of discontinued operations (ot 15} R 2,850 89,094
751,474 911,671
Dther investiments {nste 3) 23,059 26,830
investment in broadcast rights 21197 35,157
Property, plant and equipment fncle 4 709.222 708,311
Future income taxes ¢note 13 54,058 45326
Other assets {rote 1/) 200,242 158,917
intangibie assets {rote 6) 1,144,299 1,179,465
Goodwill (e ) 2,424,867 2,459,690
Assets of discontinued operations (e 15) - 38,376
- . R . . 5328418 5573643
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 174,602 158,461
Accrued liabilities (o 9 294,380 240,502
Income taxes payable 51,883 27,419
Sroadcast rights accounts payable 78,318 65,270
Deferred revenue 36,774 34,218
Future income taxes fuoe i3) 44,663 48 020
Current portion of long term debt and obligations under canital leases 22,216 31,008
Liabilities of discontinued cperations {rote 15) ) - 69,716
702,836 574,674
Long term debt and related forergn currency swap jiabilidy (noic 7} 2,886,090 3,185,755
interest rate and foreign currency swap liability (note 7) 215,075 120,341
Ohitgations under capital leases (nowe & 16,101 17,300
Other accrued liabitities (note 17} 144,532 179,417
Future income taxes mote i3} 77,255 139,280
Minority interests 90,581 77456
4,132,470 4,394,223
Commitments, contingencigs and guarantees {note 223
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Capital stock inote 10j 849,909 848,628
Contributed surplus 7,685 4612
Retained earnings 350,291 240,001
Cumulative foreign currency translation adjustments inote 12 (11,937) (13821
1,195,948 1,179,420
5,328,418 5,573,643

The notes conslitute an integral parl of the consclicdated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATFD STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS (LOSS) AND RETAINED £ARNINGS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED AUGUST 31 {(IN THOUSANDS OF CANADIAN DOLLARS EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE NOTED;

2005 2004
. o {Revised rote 1) B
Revenue 3,072,542 2911400
Operating expenses 1,617,210 1,538,466
Selling, general and administrative expenses 722,345 £53.391
Ravelston management coniract termination inote 21 12,750 -
Restructuring expenses (oe %) - 2445
720,237 717,098
Amortization of intangibles inole 8 20,341 18,182
Amortization of property, olart and equipment (note 4) 91,868 83,067
Other amortization 5,281 5,035
Cperating income 602,737 604,314
Interest expense {251,853) (338,528}
Interest income 2,631 9,141
Amoriization of deferred fnancing costs (12,708) {12,641
Interest rate and foreign currensy swan 10sses (aie 7} (188,506) {110,858)
Foreign exchange gains ineie 7 76,025 44973
Investment gaing, osses and wrife-downs (wole 14) 1,527 115,786
Goodwili impairment (nate ) (41,406) -
Asset impairment incte 5} {9,629) -
Loss on debt extinguishiment {rete 7) (43,992) -
Dividend income - 3,738
134,826 316,425
Provisicn for income taxes etz 13) _ 20,472 37485
Earnings before the foliowing 114,354 278,940
Minority interest (96,597} (80,349}
Interest in earnings of equity accounted affiiates 2,043 2,731
Realized currency translation adjustments inole 12) 622 (7023}
Net earnings from continuing operations 20,422 194,299
Loss from discontinued operations inute 15) {10,132) (207,777)
Net earnings {loss) for the year 10,290 (13.478)
Earnings per share from continuing operations (ncte 11}
Basic $0.12 $1.10
Diluted $0.12 $110
Earnings (loss) per share (wote 11
Basic $0.06 ($0.08)
Dited . SO06 8008)
Retained earnings - beginning of year 340,001 353,479
Net earnings {loss) for the year 10,290 (13,478}
Retained earnings - end of year 350,291 340,001

the notes canstitute an talegral part of the consolidaled financial slalements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED AUGUST 31 {IN THOUSA

35 OF CANATIAN DOLLARS)

—

B 2005 2004
[Revissg note 1)
CASH GENERATED (UTILIZED) BY:
Operating Activities
Net earnings from continuing cperations for the vear 20.422 194,299
ltems not affecting cash
Antortization 130,208 124,925
Nen-cash interest expense 32,021 102,092
Future income taxes (74.349) {8,310}
Realized currency translation adjustments (622) 7023
; Interest rate and foreign currency swap losses net of seftlements 105,366 98,055
% Investment gains. losses and write-downs (1,527) {115,786)
P Less on debt extinguishment 43,992 -
% Goodwill and asset impairment 51,035 -
; Amortization and wiite-down of film and television programs 6,163 5,658
] Pension expense 8,254 6,276
Minority interests 96,597 80,349
famings of equity accounted affiliates (2.043) (2,731
Foreign exchange gains {10,407) 5,571}
Stock compensation expense 3,073 964
i} Investment in film and television programs - {12,234)
é 408,183 475,507
Changes in neon-cash operating accounts (ngte 16) 61,105 80,724)
Cash flows from operating activities of continuing operations 468,288 394,283
Cash flows from operating activities of discontinued gperations 46,408 15,991
Cash flows from operating activities 515,696 410,274
Investing Activities
Other investments 426 (389
investment in broadcast licences (2,182) (5,813)
Acquisitions (19,487) -
) Proceeds from sale of assets of discontinued operations 13,742 -
P o Proceeds from sales of other investments 2,171 144,127
: Proceeds from divestiiures - 83316
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 5,035 7426
Purchase of properly, plant and equipmeni {99,191) (62,556)
{99,486) 165,111
Financing Activities
Issuance of iong term debt 161,321 167,500
ok Repayment of long term debt (510,323) (381,589)
: Advances {repayments) of revolving facilities 4,640 {243,883)
Swap recouponing payments {41,653) (27,957)
Payments of cagital leases {1,100) {358)
Issuance of share capital 1,281 1,804
issuance of share capital of TEN Group 5,369 14,423
Payment of dividends to minority inferests {84,920) (93,602}
Financing activities from discontinued aperations {18,354) {57.644)
® (483.739)  (620,705)
Foreign exchange gain on cash denominated in foreign currencies 116 2,389
Net change in cash (67.413) (£1,832)
Cash - beginning of year 97,271 139,203
Cash - end of year 29,858 97,271

The notas constitute 2n integral part of the consolidated fnancial statentents.
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Notes to consolidated financial statements

QR THE YEARS ENDEIY AUGUST 31, 2

L, Significant accvunting policies
The Company is 2n international media company
with interesis in broadcast television, publishing,
radio, specialty cable channels, outdogr advertising
and Internel webisiles in Canada, Australia, New
Zealand and Ireland. The Company's operating
segments includs television and radic broadcasting,
publishing and online cperaticns and outdcar
advertising. In Canada, the Television Broadcast
segment inciudes the operation of the Global
Television Netwsrk, Prime TV, various other
conventional and specialty channels and Cool FM
and The Beat radio stations. The Austratian
Television Broadcast segment includes TEN Group
Piy Limited’s {*TEN Group”) TEN Television Netwark
{“Network TEN"!. The Canadian Pullishing and
Cnline segment includes the pubtication of a
number of newspapers including metropolitan daily
rewspapers and the Nationa! Post, as weli as
operation of the canada.com web portal and other
web-based operations. The New Zealand Television
Broadcast segment includes CarWest MediaWarks
[NZ) Limited's 3 and C4 Television Networks. The
New Zealand Radio Broadcast segment includes
CanWest MediaWorks (NZ) Limited's RadioWorks
operation, which is comprised of six nationally-
networked radio brands ang two local radio brands.
The Irish Television Broadcast segment includes the
Company’s 45% interest in the Republic of Ireland’s
TV3 Television Network. The Australian Outdoor
Advertising segment includes Eye Corp. Pty Limited
{“Eye Corp."), an outdoor advertising operation
which is wholly awned by TEN Group. Corporate and
Other includes various investments in media operaticns,
including a 29.9% interest in Northern treland's
Ulster Television pic {*UTV") (sold in June 2004).

The Company's broadeast customer base 1s
comprised primarily of large advertising agencres,
which place advertisements with the Company on
behalf of their customers. Publishing and onfine
revenues include advertising, circulation and
subscriptions, which are derived from a variety of
sources. The Company's advertising reveriues are
seasonal. Revenues and accounts receivable are
highest in the first and third quarters, while expenses
are relatively constant throughout the year.

Q0% AND 2004 (IN THOUSANDS OF CANADIAN DOLLARS EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE ROTED

A summary of significant accounting pelicies
followed in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements is as follows:

Basis of presentation

The consglidated financia! statements are prepared
in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Canada. All amounts are expressed

in Canadian dollars unless otherwise noted. A
reconciliation to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States is provided in note 25.
Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements inciude the
accounts of the Company, its subsigiaries and the
Company's pro rata share of the assets, liabilities
and results of operations of TV3 Ireland (45%),
Mystery (50%) (effective June, 2004}, and Meiro
{33%) (effective March, 2005). The Company has
determined that it is the primary ceneficiary of TEN
Group, a variable interest entity. Accordingly, 2s
required by Tne Accounting Standards Board of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Canada,
Accounting Guideline 15 (“AcG-15™), Consolidation
of Variable Interest Entities, the Company has
consolidated the results of TEN Group.

Investments

The Company accounts for investments where

significant influence can be exercised, but not contral,

using the equity method. Other investments are
recorded at cost. A provision for loss in value

of invesiments is made when a dacline in value
is considered other than temporary.

Investment in filin
and television program rights
{A) BROADCAST RIGHTS

The Company has entered into various agreements
for the rights fo broadcast certain feature films
and television programs. The Company records a
liability for broadcast rignts and the corresponding
asset when the programs are available for telecast.
Broadcast rights are charged to operations as
programs are telecast over the anticipated period
of use. A fuss is recognized when the carrying
amount exceeds net realizable value.

(8] FILM AND TELEVISION PROGRAMS

Investment in film and television programs
represents the film and television asseis that have
been produced by the Company, ar for which the
Compariy has acquired distribution rights. Included
in investrent in film and television programs ere
fitrn and television programs in progress and in
development. These assets were held for sale and
recorded at far value.

Foreign currency translation

The Company's oparations in Australia, New Zealand
and lreland represent self-sustaining foreign
cperations, and the respective accounts have been
translated into Canadian dollars in accordance with
the current rate method. Assets and ligbilities are
translated at the exchange rates prevailing 2t the
balance sheet dates, and revenue and expenses are
translated on the basis of average exchange rates
during the periods. Any gains or losses arising from
the translation of these accounts are deferred and
inciuded as a component of shareholders' equity as
cumudative foreign currency translation adjustments.
An apglicable portion of these deferred gains and
losses is included in the defermination of net earnings
when there is a reduction of the net investment.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost.
Amortization is provided over the assets’ estimated

useful lives on a straightline basis at the following
annual rates:

Buildings 24 /% - 5%
Machinery and eguipment 4% - 50%
Leasehold and land improvements  27/2% -20%
Impairment of long lived assets
impairment of fong lived assets is recogrized

when an event or change in circumstances causes
he assets’ carrying value to exceed the total
undiscounted cash flows expected from their use
and eventual dispasition. The impairment loss is
caiculated by deducting the fair value of the asset
or group of assets from its carrying value.

3
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Disposal of Tong-tived assets
amd discontinued operations

Longlived assets are classified as held for sale when
specific criteria are met, in zccordance with CICA
Hangbook Section 3475, Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets and Discontinued Operations. Assets held
for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying
amounts and fair values less costs 1o dispose and
are no longer amortized. The falr value of film and
television programs is estmated on a discounted
cash flow basis or firm purchase commitments, if
available. Assets and liabilities ciassified as heid for
sale are reported separately on the balance shest.
A component of the Company that is held for sale is
reported as a discontinued cperation if the operations
and cash flows of the compenent will be eliminated
from the ongoing operations as a result of the
disposal transaction and the Company wiit not have
2 significant continuing involvement in the operations
of the component after the disposal ransaction.
Deferred charges

Certain pre-operating costs incurred in new business
undertakings are deferred prior to the commencement
of commercial operations, which is generally the
time at which subscriber and advertising revenues
commence. Pre-operating costs deferred in the
curent year amounted to $3.6 million (2004 -
$1.7 million). Pre-operating costs are amortized
over a period of five years. Costs related to debt
financing are deferred and amortized over the term
of the debt.

Capitalization of interest

interest is capitalized as part of the cost of certain
assets while they are being prepared for use:
interest of $4.3 million was capitalized in 2005
{2004 - $3.8 miifion).

Intangible assets

Sroadcast licences, site hcences, newspaper
mastheads, circulation and other intangible assets
are recorided at their cost which, for business
acquisitions, represents the fair market value
at the date of the acquisition.

Circulation, broadcast licences, site licences
and other finite life intangibles are amortized over
seriods from 5 to 40 vears. Finite life intangibles are

tested for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may
not be recoverable. Intangibles with indefinite lives
are not subject to amortization ard are tested for
impairment annuaily or when indicated by events
or changes in circumstances. mpairment of an
indefinite life intangible asset is recognized in an
amount equal to the difference beiween the
carrying value and the fair value of the related
indefinite life intangibie asset. The Company utilizes
a direct valuation approach ir determining the fair
value of intangihle assets.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the cost of acguired businesses
in excess of the fair value of net identifiable assets
acquired. Goodwill is tested for impairment annuatly.
or when indicated by events or changes 0
circumstances, by comparing the fair value of a
particular reporting urit to its carrying value. When
the carrying vaiue exceeds its fair value, the fair value
of the reporting unit's goodwill is compared with its
carrying vatue to measure any impairment loss.
Revenue recognition
Revenue derived from broadcasting activities consists
primarily of the sale of airtime which is recognized
at the time commercials are broadcast, net of any
provisions for viewer shortfalls. Circulaticn and
advertising revenue from publishing activities is
recognized when the newspaper is delivered. Reverue
derived from outorhome advertising is recognized
over the period the advertisement is being displayed.
Subscription revenues for newspapers and news,
business research and corporate financial information
services, is recognized on a Straightline basis over
the term of the subscription or relevant contract.

Revenue from the sale or licencing cf film and
television programs is recognized when afl of the
following conditions are met: persuasive evidence
of a sale or licencing arrangement exists, the film
is compiete, the contractual delivery arrangements
have been satisfied, the licence period has begun,
the fee is fixed or determinable and coliection of
the fee is reasonably assured.

Amounts received that 4o not meet all of the
above criteria are recorded as deferred revenue on
the balance sheet.

{
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Income taxes

The asset and liability method is used to account
for income taxes. Under this method, future income
tax assets and hatilities are recognized for the
estimated future tax consequences atiributable
to differerices between the financial staternent
carrying amounts and the tax bases cf assets and
liatilities including equity accounted investments.
Future income tax assets and liabilities are
measured Lsing substantively enacted tax rates in
effect for the year in which those tempacrary
ditferences are expected to be recovered or seftled.
The effect on future income tax assets and
liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in
income in the period that includes the substantive
enaciment date. Future income lax assels are
recognized to the extent that realization is
considered more likely than not.

Income taxes on undistributed earnings of
TEN Group and CanWest MediaWorks (NZ} Limited
are provided at rates applicable to distributions.
Income taxes on undisiributed eamings of foreign
operations, other than TEN Group ang CanWest
MediaWorks {NZ} Limited, are not provided as such
earnings are expected to be indefinitely reinvested.

Inventory

Inventory, consisting primarily of printing materials, is
valued 2t the lower of cost and net realizable vafues.

Pension plans
and post retirement benefits

The Company maintains a number of defined
benefit and defined contribution pension and
other post retirement defined benefit plans. For
the defined benefit plans, the cost of pension and
other retirement benefits earned by employees is
determined using the projected benefit method pro
rated on service and management's estimate of
expected pian investment performance, salary
escalation, retirement ages of emoloyees, expected
health care costs and other costs. For the purpose
of calculating the expected return on plan assets,
those assets are valued at fair value. Past service
costs from plan amendments are amortized on a
straight line basis over the average remaining service
period of empiovees active at the date of the




amendment. For each plan, the excess of the net
actuarial gain or loss over 10% of the greater of the

accrued benefit obligation and the fair vaiue of plan |

assets at the beginning of the year is amortized
over the average remaining service period of active
employees. Transitional obligations are amortized
on a straight line basis over the average remaining
service life of the employees expected o receive
benefits under the plans as of September 1, 2000.
Gains or losses arising from the settlement of a
pension pian are only recognized once
responsibility for the pension obligatiort has been
relieved. The average remaining service period of
employees covered by the pension plans is 14
years (2004 - 15 vears). The average remaining
service period of the employees covered by the
post retirement defined benefit plans is 15 years
(2004 - 15 years). The Company also maintains
post retirement defined benefit plans for certain

of its employees, the cost of which is expersed

as benefits are earmned by the employees. For the
defined contribution plans, the pension expense

is the Company's contribution to the plan.

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the statements of cash flows,
cash includes cash and short term investments

with maturities at the date of purchzse of up to
three months,

Share-based compensation

The Company has share-based compensation plans
as described in note 10. The Company utilizes the fair
vatue approach to account for stock ogtions issued
subsequent to August 31, 2003, The fair value of
share-based compensation is recorded as a charge
to net earnings based on the vesting period with a
credit to contributed surpius. No compensation
expense was recorded for stock options issued prior
to August 31, 2003. Tne Company’s proforma results,
reflecting the fair value based method of accounting
for stock-based compensaticn, are disclosed in note 10.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments, up to the principal
balance of the hedged item, are used to reduce
foreign currency and interest rate risk on the Company's

dedt. Derivative financial instruments in excess

of the principal balance of the hedged item are
accounted for at fair value. The Cornpany does

not enter into financiat instruments for trading or
speculative purposes. The Company's policy is to
designate each dervative financial instrument as a
hedge of a specifically «dertified debt instrument at the
fime the Company enters into the derivative financial
instrument. In the event of early extinguishment of
the debt cbligations, the Company may continue o
hold the related derivative financial instrumenis, The
realized or unreaiized gain or loss from these swaps
is recognized in earrings, angd the swaps are recorded
on the balance sheet at fair value. Subsequent
changes in the fair value ¢f overnanging swaps

are recognized in earnings.

Interest rate swap agreements are used as part
of the Company's program to manage the fixed and
floating interest rate mix of the Company's total
delt portfolic and related cverall cost of barrowing.
The interest differentizl to be paid or received under
interest rate swap agreements is recognized as an
adjustment to interest expense.

Foreign currency interest rate swao agreements
are used to manage exchange and interest rate
exposures related to debt instruments denominated
in foreign currencies. Translation gains and losses on
the principal swapped are offse! by corresponding
{ranslation losses and gains on the related debt in
earnings. The Company transiates its foreign currency
denominated debt that is hedged by cross currency
interest rate swaps at the current rate and also
records the effect of the foreign currency exchange
rate implicit in the swap agreement.

Gains and fosses on ferminations of inferes! rate
and foreign currency interest rate swap agreements
are deferred and amortized over the remaining term of
the underlying debt as an adjustrnent to interest
expense.

Reclassification of prior year amounts
Certair prior year amounts have been reclassified to

conform with the financial statement presentation
adopted in the current year.

Changes In accounting policies
CONSOLIDATION OF VARIABLE
INTEREST ENTITIES

Effective September 1, 2004, the Company has
adopted AcG-15. The Company has determined
that it is the primary beneficiary of TEN Group, a
variable interest entity. Accardingly, as required by
AcG-15, the Company has consolidated the results
of TEN Group. AcG-15 has been adopted on a
retrcactive basis with restatement of prior periods.
Previously, the Company accounted for its investment
in TEN Group using the equity method. As at
August 31, 2005, the Company holds a 56.4%
{56.6% at August 31, 2004) economic interest in
TEN Group. The interest held by the 43.6% (43.4%
at August 31, 2004) misnority is classified in minarity
interests. The change had no impact on net eamings
or shareholders' equity.

In addition, as a result of the adopticn of
AcG-15, the Company determined that an
immaterial entity should not be consolidated in its
results. and accordingly the results of the entily
have been excluded from the consofidation on a
retroactive basis.

A summary of the changes fo other components
of the financial statements is presented below.

\o
s
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Consolidated Statements of Earnings {Loss)
Revenue

Operating income.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Cash flows generated {utilized) by:

Operating activites 82171
_nvesting activities e (0883)

Financing activities {73,790
Consolidated Bafance Sheets
Current assets 232.271
Non-current assets 402,463
Current liabilities 183,354
Non-current liabitites 453,683
Shargholders equity o (2,313)

Proposed accounting policies

The Accounting Standards Board of the institute of
Chartered Accountants of Canada issued CICA
3855, Financial Instruments - Recognition and
Measurement, CICA 3865, Hedges and CICA 1530,
Comprehensive Income, which musi be applied by
the Company for its fiscal years beginning on
Septenber 1, 2007. CICA 3855 mrescribes when a
financial asset, financial liability or nonfinanciat
derivative is t¢ be recognized on the balance sheet
and the measurement of such amount. It also
specifies how financial instrument gains and losses
are to be presented. CICA 3855

is applicatle for designated hedging relationships
and builds on existing Canadian GAAP guidance

by specifying how hedge accounting is applied and
what disclosures are necessary when it is applied.
CICA 1530 introduces new standards for the
presentation and disciosure of components of
comprehensive income. Comprehensive income is
gefined as the change in net assets of an enterprise
during a reporting pericd from transactions and
other events and circumstances from non-owner
sources. It inciudes alf changes in net assets during
2 period except those resulting from investments by
owners and distributions to owners. The Company
is currently considering the impact of the adoption
of such standards.

:
H

The Emerging issues Commiitee ("EIC™) of
the Accounting Standards Board of the Institute of
Chartered Accountanits of Canada has issued EIC 157,
Implicit Variable Inferests under AcG-15, (“EIC 1577)
which must be applied by the Company in the first
interim period beginning subsegquent to Octaber 17,
2005. EIC 157 prescribes that an implicit variable
interest, which is an implied pecuniary interest in
an entity that changes with changes in the fair
value of that entity’s net assets, exclusive of variable
interests, be evaluated in accordance with AcG-15
to determine if consolidation is 2ppropriate. The
Company is currently considering the impact of the
adoption of stich standards.
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2. Acausiiions sand divesiitures

Acquisitions

(a) On September 1, 2004, tye Corp. acquired the remaining 50% of Eye Shop Pty Limites (formerly Eye
Village Joint Venture). In addition, on July 1, 2005, Eye Corp. acquired 100% of Eve Drive Melbourne Ply Limited
{formerly Southcoast Ply Limited). The total purchase price was $19.5 million (AUS$21.2 million). The principal

business activities of these companies is the sale of outdoor adverti

ising.

Eye Corp. accounted for these acquisitions using the purchase method. As such, the results
of operations reflect revenue znd expenses of the acquired sperations since the date of acquisition.
A summary of the fair value of the assets and liabiities acquired is as follows:

I ——————

2004

Current assets 5,872

Property, plant and equipment 5,224

Site licences 3,931

Goodwiil 9,633

Liabilities {1,607)
23,083

Consideration:

Cash 15,487
Carrying value of investment at date of acquisition 3566
23,053

(b} On November 16, 2000, the Company acquired
substantialiy all of the Canadian newspaper ang
other Canadian media assets inciuding 2 50% interest
in the National Post {“Can¥Vest Pubtications”} of
Hollinger International Inc. and certain of its affifiates
("Hollinger") for consideration of approximately $3.1
hillion, inciuding certain costs related to the acquisition.
The purchase price is subject to adjustment
based or the working capital of CanWest
Publicaticns at August 31, 2000, and the results
of its operations from September 1, 2000 o
November 16, 2000. As a result of the inability
lo resolve disagreernents with Hollinger regarding
amounts owing, the Company has referred a claim
of $86.5 million to arbitration. When finalized, the
working capital adjustment payable or refundable will
increase or decrease the amount of goodwill
recorded on the acqguisition.

Divestitures

{a) In July 2004, through a series of transactions,
the Company transferred its net assels and the
operations of its New Zealand media operations to

CanWest MediaWorks (NZ) Limited for a 70% interest
in the crdinary shares of CanWest Mediaworks (NZ}
Limited and repayment of inter-company debt.
Concurrent with the transfer of the net assets and
operations, CanWest MediaWorks (NZ) Limited
completed an Initial Puslic Offering for 30% of its
crdinary shares for N2$104.0 million, net of costs

of NZ$4.0 million (net proceeds of NZ$383.3 million).
In addition, CanWest MedizWorks {NZ) Limited
entered into a term bank loan of NZ$200.0 miltion.
in preparaticn of these consolidated financial
statements, the transfer of the net assets to CanWest
MediaWerks (NZ} Limited has been accounted for at
their carrying values. As a result of the reduction in
the Company's interest in the New Zealand media
operations, the Company recorded a gain of $65.5
million in the year ended August 31, 2004,

» ENUIGHTEN « ENIERTAIN
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o o = 2005 2004
Investments in private companies - at cost 12,715 12,998
Investments - an an equity basis 10,344 13,832

23,059 26,830

in Jure 2004, the Company sold its investment in Ulster Television for proceeds of $143.8 millien,
resulting in an investment gain of $51.7 million in the year ended August 31, 2004.
In November 2004, the Company received proceeds of $2.2 million from the liguidation of an

investment in a private compary, resulting in an investment gain of $2.2 million as the investment was

previously written off as a result of an impairment.

at and equipment

INFGRM » BE iQHT

2005
Accumulated
Cost amortization Net
Land 62,421 - 62,421
Suitdings 203,368 40,511 162,857
Machinery and equipment 944,219 482,000 462,219
Leasehold and land improvements 41,424 19,699 21,725
e i N 1251432 . .....242.210, .. 709222
2004
Accumulated
Cost ameortization Net
Land 65,259 - 65,259
Buildings 206.408 35,520 170,838
Machinery and equipment 875,09¢ 423,477 451,622
Leasehold and land improvements 38214 17,672 20,542
1,184,980 476,669 708,31

The net book value of property, plant and equipment located in Canada was $587.5 milfion

{2004 - $586.C nullion) and in foreign jurisdictions was $121.7 million (2004 - $122.3 million).
During 2005, the Company had no additions related to assets under capital leases. in 2004,

the Company recarded additions of $19.2 miliion related to assets under capital leases, of which

$15.4 million was added to buildings, and $3.8 million was added to machinery and eguipment,
The Company has assets under capital leases with original cost of $19.2 million

{2004 - $15.4 million) and accumulated amortization of $1.0 million {2004 - $0.3 million).
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2004 Additions  Divestitures Other 2005

Operating segment

Publishing and Online - Canada 1,707.595 - - (41,803) % 1,665,792
Television - Canada 510,876 - - (535)3 510,341
Television - Network TEN 32,395 - - {1,384)4 31,011
Television - New Zealang . 44 868 - - (1.975)¢ 42,893
Television - lreland 4,280 - - (264)* 4,016
Radic - New Zealand 105,823 - - (5,950} ¢ - 99,873
Qutdoar - Australia 63,853 9,633 ! - (2,545) ¢ 70,941
2,469,690 9,633 - (54.456) 2,424 867
2003 Additions  Divestitures Other 2004

Operating segment .
Sublishing and Cnline - Canada 1,707,595 - - - 1,7075%5
Television - Canada 510,876 - - - 510,876
Television - Network TEN 31,300 - - 1,005 4 37,395
Television - New Zealand 43,672 - - 1,196 4 44 858
Television - Ireland 4,280 - - - 4,280
Radio - New Zealand 100,352 - - 5470 ¢ 5,823
Qutdoor - Australia 51972 - - 1,881 ¢ 63,883
Total ) 2,460,048 - - 9,642 2.463 630

1 Increase in goodwil related to TEN Group's acguisitions of Eye Shap Pty Limited and Eve Drive Melbournz Pty Limited tnnte 2).

2 Decrease in goodwill of the Publishing and Online segment related o the National Post. Through its annust goodwill impainment testing the Company determined that the 1air vatue of tha Natinnal
Fost was 1855 than its hook value, AS a result the Company recorded a goodwill impairment of $41.4 million. i adéition, the valze of intangible assets refatad o Mational Post circuiation was
i cessive years of operating Iosses in this business unit and its tailure to achieve the profitasitity targets

set ot in its Husiness pians.

3 Dacrease in goodwill refated to an adiustiment to reflect tha reversal of certain unutitized restructuring provisions {note S).

4 Increase (decrease) in goodwill was relaied (o fluctualions in currency ranstation rates.

i

G

. Intangible assets

<

L 2005 2004
Cost  Accumuiated Net Cost  Accumulated Net
Amortization Amortization
Finite life:
Circulation and other 126,766 78,099 48,667 137,466 £1,732 75,734
Broadcast and site licences 44,750 5,336 39,414 40,758 2,444 38314
171,516 83,435 88,081 178,224 64,176 114,048
Indefinite life:
Broadcast licences 717,332 726,531
Newspaper mastheads 338,886 338,886
1,056,218 1,065,417

Total intangible assets

The Australian Quideor Advertising segment acquired site licences during the year in the amount of $3.9 miflion (note 2. The New Zealand Radio Broadcast segment
ourchesed broadceast ficences during the vear in the amount of $2.2 million. These acquisitions are classified as broadcast and site licences in the note above.

An impairment loss of $9.6 million {net of accumulated amortization of $1.1 million) relating to finite-lived intangible assets classified as circutation and cther
was recorded during the year (note 5%). The impairment relates to the Publishing and Online - Canada segment,

Amortization of intangible assets of $20.3 million was recorded in 2005 (2004 - $18.2 million).

43
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Interest Rate ! 2005 interest Rate ! _Wmos

Senior secured credit facility ? 6.9% 346,100 8.6% 665,011

Senior unsecured notes * 6.3% 237420 6.3% 263,240

Senior subordinated notes * 7.5% 549,632 7.3% 608.373

Senior subordinated notes - exchange offer? 6.9% 936,967 - -

Term and demand loan €8,368 (2004 - €13,678)¢ 3.2% 12,270 3.4% 21,943

Term bank loan NZ$187,802 {2004 - NZ$200,000)° 6.9% 154,824 6.2% 173,120

Unsecured hank loan AUS$180,000 (2004 - AUS$175.000) ¢ 57% 160,794 57% 163,048

Senior unsecured riotes US$125,00C (2604 - US$125,000)° 6.4% 148,609 6.7% 164 585

Junior subordinated notes - 12.1% 831,116

Other 4,250 -

2,550,866 2,943,536

Effect of foreign currency swap 356,241 275127

Long term debt 2,907,107 3,215,663

Less portion due within cne year (21,017) {29,968

Long term portion 2,886,090 3,185,755

1 The weighted average interest rate gives eflect lo inlerest rate swaps.

2 Credit fa o oans in the maxinuin amounts of 34131 million and 33461 mitien respectively 25 at August 31, 2005, At August 31, 2005, ihe Comipany had drawn on
availabifitios under its torm facilties, inciuding US dolfar 1pans of US3278.9 milhion, Canadwan dollar loans of $15.0 millien and had nil drawn undes revoling facitilies. The revoiving ¢ ity
naiures i Novemzor 2006. Tne amount of credit a 2 ynder the $246.1 n torm facilitics decreases periotically based on scheduled ropayments until maturity in August 2003 This ciadi;
facilit is collatorlized by subsiantially all the Canadian asscts of the Company. The Canadian dollar dezd bears interest st CDOR pliss a miargin and the US dollar debt bears interast at LiBOR slus
a margin. During 2005, the Company repaid US$203.6 million under this eredit facility which resuilnd @ 2 foreign exchange gain of $68.2 midion, which has been inclided in inreign exchange gains
on lha income statement. (n October 2007, these credit faciities were extinguished, see note 24
The Company has enlered into an interest rate swap in the notional amount of 3250 million to fix the interest pavments on this revolving facility and subsequent revoiving facilities untit November 2002,
resulting in an effective inleres! rate 0! 6.7% pius rgin. As @ rmsull of the revolving faciity ot being drawn upse, the notionai amount of $250 miltion was overhanging as at August 31, 2009
2004 ~ $250 million) and its fair valug was racognized in earnings. The Company has entered inio an interest rale swap to i the interest payments on its Canadian dottar term loans, until maturily,
with 2 notional value of $197.3 million (2004 - $278.3 millicn) resulting in an effective interast rate of 6.3% plus a margin. As a resull of debt repayments and the reduction of notional amousts, a
notional amount of $182.8 million was averharging as at August 31. 2005 (2003 - $256.5 mitlion} and its fair value was recognized in earnings. The Company has also antered into a crass curency
interest rate swap to fix its pavments on its US doliar term loans. untit maturity, with 2 notional amount 5t $1,030.5 million {2004 - $1,061.5 miliion) resuliing in an eifective interest rale of 6.7%
ang a fixad curiency exchangs rate of US$1:$1.5485, As a result of debt repayments. a notional amount of $618.6 millkon was ovarhanging 2s at August 31, 2005 (2004 - $305.0 illion) and #ts
fair value was recognized in earnings, For the vear ended August 31, 2005, total overhanging swap tosses of $186.1 million {2004 - $110.9 millicn} ware charged to eamings. The resulling
overhanging swap liabitity as 2t August 31, 2005 was $212.8 miflion {2004 - $120.3 million}. tn November 2005, $525.3 million «f the nationat amount cross currency interest rate swags wers
sattfed, see note 24.

3 The USS200.C inillion senior unsecured notas mature on Aprl 3, 2013 and bear interest at 7.625%. The notes are redeemable at the Company's aption, in whole at any time or in part from time to
time. an or afler Aprit 15, 2008. The Company has enlered into 3 USS200 miliion cress currancy inferest rate swap resulling in flualing inter es on ils senior unsecured poles al nlerest rales
based unn CDOR plus gin @il & fxed currency exchange rale of USS1:81.4735 unlit May 2013, In Qclober 2005, US$189.8 million of lizse noles werz sellled, and i Novermer 2005, the
cross currency interest rate swaps were setifed. see note 24

4 The senor subordinated notes mctude toans of US$425.0 mition, $4.6 mithon and toans heid by the majority sharchoider of the Company in the amourt of US$41.9 millian (2004 - US311.8 miion;
which mature on May 15, 2011 angd bear interest at 10 625%. The noles rank junior 1o the Company's senior credit facifity and arm guaranteed by certain subsidiaries of the Company. The notes arc
redeemnazble at the Company's oplion, in whole at any time or in part from time to time, on or after May 35, 2006, The Campany has entered into 2 11S83425.0 million cmss Currency interest afe
swap resulting in floating interest rates on its sanior subordinated netes at interes ed on CNOR pius a margin and a fixed currency exchangs rate of US$1:$1.5505. In Octoher 2005
US$419.2 mitlion and 3G.7 mitlion of the noles, and all of the loans held by the majority shareholder, were settled. In addilien, in November 2005, the cross currency interest rate swap was settled,
see note 74.

& On November 18, 2004, the Company completed 2n exchange offer to exchange @ new series of 8% Senior Subordinated notes due 2912 for the outstanding 12.125% Senior notes due 2010, issued
by the Hollinger Participation Trust. in the exchange offer, thie heiders of the trust notes received US31,240 principal amount of new rotes in exchange for each US$1.000 of trust notes. In additios,
the Company cornpleted 2 concurrent offer of notes, proceeds of which were used to retiee the 12.125% junior subordinated notes neld by Hotlinger, which had not been participated to the Holingsr
Farticipation Trust. The effect of thase transactions replaced the Company’s existing $903.6 miliicn 12.125% junior subordinated notes {including accrued interest to November 18, 2004) with new
$908.1 mifiion (US$761.1 miffion) 8% senior subordinated noles.
Tre issuance of the new notes was recorded at their fair value at Novernber 18, 2004 of $944 mullion. The difference between the {aw value of the new notes ang the book value of the junior subordinated
notes, together with certain other costs of setifing the debt totaling $44 miflion. was charged to earvings as 2 loss on debl edinguishment.
The new senior subordinated sote de loans of US$7611 million mature on September 15, 2012 and bear inferest at 8.0%. The rioles rank junior to the Compzny's seniol cred! facility and
are guaranteed by certain subsidiaries of the Company. The notes are redeermable al the Comgany’s option on ur alter Seplember 15, 2009, The Coingany has enlered into a USS7E1.1 millicn cross
currengy interest rale swap resulling in fhosting nterest rates on its sesior subordinated noles at interest rates based on CDOR plus & margin
and a fixed cumency exchangs rate of USH1:$1.1932 unlil Seplember 2012,

& These credit faciiities provide for demand bark foans maturing Becember 2005 in the maxinum amot

unt ot €365 million (2004 - €38.5 million). This facility is expecied 10 be rencwed annually.

torest at floating rates. The Company has zntered nts an iniorest rate swap to B the interest payments on €10.0 milion of its loan resulting in an cficctive interest rate of 3.23%
o
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16 The 12.125% unior subordinatcd notes dug :n November 2810 were settted through the avchange offor (see note 7). Under the torms of the notes interest obligations were satisficd by the issuance
of additional notes. in 2005, the related intorest was $22.5 mittien (2004 - $98.) miltion).

Under its Senior Secured Credit facility, the
Company was required to maintain a fair vatue of
its interest rate swaps and foreign currency angd
interest rate swaps above a prescribed minimum
Hiability ($600.C million as at August 31, 2005).
There were also prescriced minimum liabilities
with individua! counterparties, which have two-way
recouponing provisions. The Company was
required to make net recouponing payments of
$97.0 million during 2005 {2004 - $28.0 mitlion},
$55.3 million of this recouponing payment related
io overhanging swaps and accordingly was
reflected in cash flows from operating activities.
Subsequent to August 31, 2005, the Company
made further net recouponing payments of
$118.5 million. Further sirengthening of the
Canadian currency and/or declining interest

rates may result in further payments to
counterparties.

&. Obligations under capital leases

The Company is subject to covenants under
ceriain of the credit factities referred to above,
inzluding thresholds for leverage and interest
coverage, and is also subject to certain restrictions
under negative covenants.

Principal payments of long term debt, based
on terms existing at August 31, 2005 over the next
five years, are:

Year ending August 31, 2006 21,017

2007 5339

2008 4514
2009 748177
2010 -

Subsequent to August 31, 2005, the Company
entered info new senior secured credit facilities,
see note 24.

The Company has entered into capital leases with future minimum lease payments for the years ended August 31 as foliows:

2006 2,637
2007 4.890
2008 3.529
2009 3,868
2010 3.654
Thereafter 5,368
Total minimum lease payments 23,946
Amount representing interest (at rates of 5.9% to 9.6%) {6,646)
Present value of minimum capital fease payments 17,300
Less current portion of obligations under capital leases {1,199)
16.101

Interest expense recorged on the obligations under cagital leases was $1.4 million {2004 - $0.2 miliion).

e
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As at August 31, 2003, the Company had
restructuring accruals of $15.2 million related to
s acquisition and restruciunng of WIC Western
internaticnal Communications Ltd. ("WIC™),

its puhlishing properties, as well as  result of
operating restructuring activities undertaken in its
Canadian Media and Entertainment operations.

In 2004, the Company rest:uciured certain
other Canadian preadcast operations inciuding
the centralization of traffic and master contrcl
operations. The $2.4 million cost consisted of
employee severance.

For the vear ended August 31. 2C05,
expenditures charged to the restructuring accruals

were $3.6 millior (August 31, 2004 - $11.2 mitiion).

Lease/contract

Severance termination

In 2005, the Company reversed unutilized
restructuring accruals in the amount of $1.4 milkon.

The reversals of $0.8 millicn related io the
Canadian Television segment, and $0.6 million
related to the Canadian Publishing and Online
segment with related tax effects of $0.3 miltion
and $0.2 million, respectively, were recorded as

- reductions of goodwill.

—

Integration Other Total
Salance August 31, 2003 10,203 2,428 250 2,340 15,221
Canadian television 2,445 - - - 2,445
Expenditures - 2004 {7.630; (2,269 - (1.341) (11,240)
Balance August 31, 2004 5018 59 250 899 6,426
txpenditures - 2005 (3,208} (143) (250) - (3,601)
Reversal - 2005 584) (16 - {800) {1,410)
Balance August 31, 2005 1,218 - - 199 1415

10, Capifal siodk
Authorized

Authorized capital consists of an unlimited number
of preference shares issuable in series, multiple
voting shares, subordinate voting shares ang
non-voting shares

The multiple voting shares, the subordinate
voting shares and the nonevating shares rank equally
on a per share basis in respect of dividends and
distributions of capital, and are subordinate to the
oreference shares. Subordinate voting shares carry
one vole per share, and multipte voting shares
carry ten votes per share. Non-voting shares do
not vote. except at meetings where the holders

of such shares would be entitied. by law, {o vote
separately as a ¢lass.

Muttiple voting shares are convertible into
subordinate voting shares and non-vating shares on
a one-forone basis at any tirme at the option of the
holder. Subordinate voting shares are convertible
into non-voting shares on a one-for-one basis at any
time at the option of the holder. Non-voting shares
are convertisle into subordinate voting shares on 2
one-for-one basis provided the holder is Canadian.

Seres 1 preference shares carry 19 votes per
share with certain limitations. Under certain conditions,
the series 1 preference shares carry preferential

i voting rights pertaining to the election of up o two
. directors of the Comparny. Each series 1 preference

shares is convertible, at the aption ¢f the holder,
into 0.15 subordinate veting or non-veting shares.

Series 2 preference shares are net elighle 1o vote.
and at the option of the Company. are redeemable
for cash, or convertible to subordinate voting or
non-veting shares based on the market value of
the subordinate veting or non-voting shares at
the date of conversion.

The series 1 and 2 preference shares are not
entitled to dividends and distributions in the normal
course or in respect of a liquidation or wind-up
and have o right to vote separately as a class.

At August 31, 2005 and August 31, 2004,
there were no series 1 o series 2 preference
shares ouistanding.

Issued 2005 2004
76,785,976 {2004 - 76,785,978} multiple voting shares 3,199 3,189
98,813,655 (2004 - 98,667,438} subordinate voting shares 824,543 820,625
1,795.092 (2004 - 1,825718) norrvoting shares 22,167 24,804
849,909 848628

16
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Changes in outstanding share capital during the two years ended August 31. 2005 were as foliows:

- _ Number of shares $
Multiple voting share capital:
Baance - August 31, 2004 and 2005 e ... 76785976 3199
Subordinate voting share capital:
Balance - August 31, 2003 98.280,291 815,545
Changes pursuant to:
Share purchase plans 32,561 446
Exercise of stock options 114,056 1,358
Conversion from nco-voting shares - net 240,530 3,276
Balance - August 31, 2004 98,667,438 820.625
Changes pursuant to:
Share purchase plans 25,711 a7
Exercise of stock options 89,242 901
Redeemed fractions {4) -
Conversion from non-voting shares - net 31,268 2,646
Salance -~ August 31, 2005 98,813,655 824,543

Non-voting share capital:
Balance - August 31, 2003
Changes pursuant to:
Conversion to subordinate voting shares - net

2,066,248 28,080

(240,530) (3,276)

Balance - August 31, 2004
Changes pursuant to:
Share purchase plans
Conversion to subordinate voting shares - net

1,825,718 24,804

642 9
(31,268) (2,646)

Balance - August 31, 2005

1,795,092 22,167

Share compensation plans

The Company's Board of Directors has approved
share compensation plans, the purpose of which
is o provide employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries with the cpportunity to participate in
the growth and development of the Company through
the granting of aptions and share purchase lcans.
At any time, the number of subordinate voting
and non-voting shares reserved and set aside for
nurposes of the plans may nat exceed 10% of the
issued shares of the Company.

Options vest over a five- or six-year pericd, are
fully exercisable on vesting and expire ten years
after issuance, except that under certain sgecified
conditions the options vest and become exercisable

immediately. Except as described below, the
exercise price represents the market trading price
at the date on which the option was granted.

Under management and employee share
purchase plans, employees may purchase subordinate
voting shares or non-voting shares from treasury at
the market trading price using non-interest bearing
short term loans provided by the Company. The
shares are held as collateral by a trustee until the
loans are repaid.

The Company adopted the fair value methad
of accounting for share based compensation or: a
prospective basis for opticns granted subsequent
to September 1, 2003, resulting in compensation
expense and a credit to contributed surplus of
$2.5 million for the year ended August 31, 2005

CMoe ENLIGHTEN  LHIER AING

(2004 - $1.0 miliionj. The fair value of the options
granted during the year ended August 31, 2005
was estimated using the Black-Scholes option
pricing moedel with the assumptions of no dividend
yield (2004 - nil}, an expected volatility of 42%
(2004 - 52%), risk free interest rates of 4.2%
{2004 - 4.4% to 4.9%) and an expected life of

7 years (2004 - 7 to 9 years).

The total fair value of 1,177,500 stock options
granted by the Company in the year ended August
31, 2005, with an average exercise price of $12.06
per option was $6.4 million, a weighted average fair
value per option of $5.44. During 2004, 523,000
stock options were granted with a total fair value of
$4.0 million, and a weighted average fair value per
option of $7.58.
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During the year, the Company agreed to issue
approximately 187,000 shares, which vest in two
years, for no consideration. The fair value of the
shares at the time of issuance was $10.4C per
share. During the year ended August 31, 2005, the
Company recorded compensation expense, and a
credit to contributed surpius,
of $0.6 milion related to these shares.

The proiorma cost of share compensation
expense, if the Company had adspied the fair value

methad retroactively for the vear ended August 31,
2005, would be $1.3 million (2004 - $1.6 million). A
value of $1.6 million would be charged to proforma
net earmings in future years according to the vesting
terms of the options. The resulting proforma net
earnings fom cantinuing operations, basic and
difuted earnings cer share for the year ended
Augusl 31, 2005 would have been $19.2 million,
$C.11 and $0.11 respectively (2004 - $192.7 million,
$1.02 and $1.09). The resuiting proforma net

ENIGHTEN » LNIERIAIN G

eamings (lnss}, basic and diluted earnings per share
for the year ended August 31, 2005 would have
been $9.0 million. $3.05 and $0.05 respectively
{2004 - {$:5.0) milion. {$0.09) and {30.09)).

Charniges in outstanding options to purchase
subordinate voting shares or non-voting shares for
the two years ended August 31 were as follows:

I —

2005 2004
Average Average
Options Price $ Options Price §
Options outstanding. beginning of year 2,360,483 13.74 2,075,561 13.95

Changes pursuant to:

Options grarted 1,177,500 12.06 523,000 12.85
Options exercised (89,242) 10.10 (114,056) 1181
Options expired {583,113) 13.74 {5,788) 1522
{Options forfeited (371,426) 11.25 (118.274) 15.2]
Options outstanding, end of year 2,494,202 13.45 2.360,483 13.74
Options exercisable as &l August 31 1,725,914 15.10 1,314,380 1545

The following options to purchase subordinate vating shares or nonvoting shares were cutstanding and

exercisable as at August 31, 2005

I

Range of Number Weighted average Weighted average Number Weighted average
exercise prices $ cutstanding remaining life years exercise price $ exercisable exercise price $
£-10 256.410 71 721 56,810 7.19
10-15 1,581,144 85 12.29 885,843 12.43
15-20 402,397 46 16.24 498,785 1648
70 -25 246 558 25 22.63 279,733 22.54
25 and over 4,693 2.3 2567 4,693 2567
2,494,202 71 13.45 1725914 1510
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Basic 2arnings per share are calculated using the daily weighted average number of shares cutstanding

Diluted earnings per share are calculated using the daily weighted average number of shares that would
have been quistanding during the vear had all potential common shares heen issued at the beginning of the
year, or wher the underlying opticns or convertible securities were granted or issued, if later. The treasury
stock method is employed to defermine the incremental number of shares that would have been outstanding
nad the Compary used proceeds from the exercise of optioris to acguire shares.

The following tabie provides a reconciliation of the numerators and dengminators used in computing
sasic and diluted earnings per share.

— T ——

2005 2004
Net earnings from continuing operations 20.422 194,299
Net loss fram discontinued pperations (10,132) (207.777)

t earnings (loss) availadle 1o common sharenolders

L AI3ATE

Basic weighted average shares outstanding during the year 177,319,675 177,235,944
Dilutive effect of options 328,915 158,074
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding during the year 177,648,590 177394018
Op#ions outstanding that would have been ant-dilufive 859,609 1,930,283

12, Cumulative ranslation adjustments

The cumulative foreign currency transtation adjustments account reflects the net changes in the respective
ook values of the Company's investments in self-sustaining foreign operations due to exchange rate
fluctuations since the respective dates of their acquisition or start-up.

The changes in this account arise from changes in the Australian, New Zealand, Euro and US
currencies relative to the Canadian currency, and changes in the Company's net investment in the book
values of international operations.

Changes in this account were as follows:

I

2005 004

Deferred Igss, beginning of year 13,821 30,646

Deferred foreign currency gain during the year (2,506) {8.802)
Realization of translation gains (losses) due to distributions and divestitures 622 (7.023)
Ceferred Ioss, end of year 11,937 13,821

The balance of cumulative franslation adjustments at the end

of the year represents net unrealized losses (gains) as foliows:

Austraiian dollar 9,880 8,242

New Zeaiand daotlar 1,498 (1,102}
Euro 559 1,032
United States dollar - 5,643

11,937 13,821




OTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The Company's provision for income taxes refiects an effective income tax rate, which differs from the
combined Canad:an statutory rae as follows:

2005 2004
income taxes at combined Canadian statutory
rate of 34.9% (2004 - 35.2%} 47.054 111,382
Non-taxable portion of capital gains (521) {36,733)
tffect of valuaticn allowance on future tax assets 2,853 2,200
Effect of foreign income tax rates differing from
Canadian income tax rates {16,001) {40,883)
incremental taxes on debt extinguishment 5,652 -
Large corporation tax and withholding tax 2,839 7721
tifect of change in tax rates (2.896) 9,398
Non-deductible expenses 4126 3,389
Goodwill impairment 14,546 -
Prior period temporary gifferences not previously tax effected {6,644) -
Effect of resolved tax dispute (10,299) {19,657)
Change in Australian tax consclidation legislation (17,710 -
Other (2,527) 578
Provision for income taxes 7,48

An analysis of net earnings (ioss) from continuing operations
cefore tax by jurisdiction follows:

Canada (183,627) (85,551)
Foreign 318,453 401,976
Net earnings before tax 134,826 316,425
An analysis of the provision for current and future

income taxes by jurisdiction follows:

Current income taxes

Canada (1,588) 9,704
Foreign 96,409 356,091

94,821 45,795

Future income taxes

Canada (55,710) (23,149}
Foreign (18,639) 14,839

(74,349) {8,310)
Provision for income taxes 20,472 37,485
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Significant components of the Company’s future tax assets and iiatilities are as follows:

- I ——

2005 2004
Future tax assets
Non-capital loss carrylorwards 186,933 154,831
Provision for write-down of investments 11,337 12,442
B Accounts payable, other accruals and nterest rate
_ and foreign currency swap liabiiity 90,402 60,575
Sost retirement benefits 14,402 9,022
Less: Valuation allowance (102,573) (96,351}
Total future {ax assets 200,501 140,525
Future tax liabilities
Capital cost allowances in excess of book amortization 86,059 85,038
_ Pension assets - net 3,505 2,428
Broadcast rights 38,590 42 008
intangible assets 116,466 131,201
Dther assets 19,848 15,623
Total future tax liahilities 264,468 276,298
N Net future tex liability 63,967 135,773
_ Current portion of future tax asset 3,893 6,165
Long term portion of future tax asset 54,058 45825
Current portion of future tax liability {44.663) {48.080)
Discontinued aperations’ future tax liability - (405)
Net long term future tex liabilty 27255 139280

The provision for income taxes for the year
ended August 31, 2005 includes adjustments for
prior period temporary differences not previously tax
effected aggregating to $6.6 milion {$5.8 miliion

estimates as a result of future events, including
changes in income tax laws or the sutcome of tax
reviews by tax authorities and related appeals. To
the extent that the final tax outcome is different

future income tax and $0.8 millicn current income from the amourts that were initially recorded, such
tax). The Company has determined these

_ adjustments are not material to the previously

- reported and current year results; accordingly, the
adjustments have been included in the current year's
earnings. These adjustments have the effect of
increasing basic and diluted earnings per share for The Company has recorded the following
the year ended August 31, 2005 by $0.04 per share. | investment gains, losses and write-downs.

As at August 31, 2005, the Company had

non-capital loss carry forwards for income tax

surposes of $672.8 million: that expire as follows:

2006 - $2.0 million, 2007 - $6.8 million, 2005 2004
2008 - $22.1 million, 2009 - $87.3 mitiion,

differences wili impact the income tax provision in
the period in which the determination is made.
14, Investment gains, Tosses

and write-downs

Gain on saie of ather investment inote 3) 2,171 -

2010 - $53.9 million, thereafter - $500.7 miltion. Gain on sale of investment in UTV (note 3; - 51,717
The recognition and measurement of the Dilution gain - CanWest MediaWorks (NZ} Limited (ncte 2) - 65,515
current and future tax assets and liabilities involves Dilution gain - TEN Group 660 1,889
dealing with uncertainties in the application of complex Other losses and write-downs {1,304) (3,33%)

iax reguiations in a number of jurisdictions and in
the assessment of the recoverability of future tax
assets. Actual income taxes could vary from these

L1527 15786
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£S5 DHeconbinued aperations consolidated statements of cash flows and the assets  recorded in accounts receivable as they have been

in the vear ended August 31, 2004, the Company | and liabilities were classified on the consolidated neld in escrow, to be released over a 30 manth
commenced a process o sell its Fireworks balance sheets as assets and liabilities of period. in September 2003, a subsidiary of the
Entertainment Division. As a result. the results of discontinued operations. Prior to the classification as cmpany compieted the sale ¢f its remaining film
aperations of Fireworks were classified as a loss from | 2 discontinued operation. these resufts were reporfed  and television program rights for net proceeds of $2.9
discontinued operations in the consolidated within the Canadian Entertainment segment. In July mitticn. Certain remaining accounts receivable and
statements of earnings. the net cash flows were 2005, 5 subsidiary of the Company so\FJ certain accoufts pavable will be setiled by the Compary.
classified as eperating. investing and financing assets and operations which comprise its filrn and M foss from discontinued operalions of
activities from discontinued operations in the {elevision program cperations for nel proceeds of Fireworks is summarized as follows:

$16.1 million. $2.3 million of these proceeds are

I —

) 2005 004
Revenue 56,748 115,852
Loss from discontinued operations before tax expense {9,428) 1207.078)
income tax expense (704) (699)

ss from discontinued operations

L 10as2) @0

toss from discontinued cperations per share:
Basic and dilwted

The carrying values of the net assets related to the discontinued
Fireworks Entertainment division are as follows:

Accounts recelvahie 329 85,269
Investment in film and telavision programs 2,521 -
QOther current assets - 3.825
Total current assets 2,850 89,094
Investment in film and television programs - 37971
Other assets - 405
Total non current assets - 38.376
Cebt - (23,571)}
Other current liabilities - (46,145)
Total current liabilities - (69,716)
Net assets 2,850 57,754

This included a three vear revolving facifity coliateralized by certain assets of Fireworks Entertainment inc. This lean was fully
epaid and, effective Decamber 21, 2004, the facility has been terminated.

16. Statement of cash flows

The following amounts comprise the net change in non-cash operating accounts included in the staterments
of cash fiows, excluding noncash operating accounts related to discontinued operations:

I ——

2005 2004
Cash generated (utilized) by:
Accounts receivable 30,664 (1,787}
investment in film and television programs 12,448 (3,781)
Inventary (84) 1,060
Other current assets {6,726) (5,052)
Other assets {26,605} {6,085}
Accounts payable and accrued fabilities 24,550 (21,638)
income taxes payable 20,721 (26,101)
Deferred revenue 2,556 4,151
Film and television program accounts payable 3,581 (21,490)

e L LBL105 (80,724)
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The following amounts were paid on account
of interest and income faxes:

i _ 2005 2004
1 Interest 216,198  226.702
] Income taxes 76,445 71,371
17, Retiremenit assets and ohbhvations

The Company has a number of funcded and unfunded defined benefit plans - as well as defined contribution
glans - that provide pension, other retirement and post retirement benefits to its employees. its defined benefit
zensicn plans are based on years of service and final average salary. informatien on the Company's pension

znd post retirement benelit plans follows:

Pension benefits !

Post retirement benefits *

2005 2004 2005 2004
Plan Assets
Fair value - beginning of year 276,707 250,877 - -
Divestiture - {25) - -
Actual return on plan assets 32,184 19,538 - -
Emplayer contributions 15,913 13,843 249 277
£mployee contributians 6,153 6,125 - -
Benefits paid and adminisirative expenses {14,109) {13,691) (249) {277)
Fair value - end of year 316.848 276,707 - -
Plan Obligations
Accrued benefit obligatior - beginning of year 366,149 337438 34,985 30,724
Accrued interest on benefits 24,440 22413 2,346 2,334
Current service costs 18,002 17,078 1,329 1,260
Benrefits paid (12,770) (13.064) {249) (277}
Actuarial losses 49,967 2,285 7177 944
Accrued benefit opligation - end of year 445,788 366,149 45,588 34885
The Company's accrued benefit asset {liability) is determined as follows: :
Accrued benefit obligations 445,788 366,149 45588 34,985
Fair value of plan assets 316,848 276.707 - -
Plan deficits {128,940) (89.442) (45,588) (34,985)
Unamortized net actuarial losses (gains} 118,858 82,609 (395) (7,930}
Unamortized transitional abligations 5,353 5,786 2,723 1026
Unamartized past service costs 13,730 14,936 838 973
Accrued net clan asset fiabitity) 9,001 13,889 {42,422) {3%8,916)
Valuation allowance (572) (722) - -
Accrued net plan asset (Hability), net of valuation allowance 8,429 37 (42,422) (3%316)

The accrued pran asset of $27.2 million {2004 - $27.9 million) is included in long term other asseis. the accrued pian habitity of $18.8 million

(2004 - $14.8 million} and the accrued post retirement plan liability is wncluded in other long term liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet.

'



Plan assets consistof: __ Actual _ Target
Equity securities RN 537
Debt securities 41%
Cther ] 5%

100%

The pension plans have no investment
securities of CanWest entities.

in
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The Company measures its accrued benefit obfigation and the fair value of plan assets for accounting
purposes as at june 30 of each year. The most recent actuarial valuation for the mast significant ¢f our
pension plans, which make up over half of cur accrued benefit obligation, was &s of December 31, 2003
The valuation indicated that the plan had an uniunded liability. As a result, the Company is required o make
additional contributions of $1.0 million annuaily for fifteen years. The next required valuation will be as of
December 31, 2004, with an expected compietion date ¢f December 2005. The investment strategy for
pension plan assets is to utitize 2 balanced mix of equity and fived income portfolios, with limited addisionsl
diversification, to earn a long term investmenl return that meets our pension plan obligations. Active
management strategies and siyle diversification strategies are utsized in aniicipation of reakizing investment
returns in excess of market indices.

Total cash payments for 2005 - consisting ¢f cash contributed by the Company to its funded pension
plans, cash payments to beneficiaries for its post retirement plans, and cash contributed to its defined
contribution plans - was $25.1 mitlion (2004 - $22.6 million).

The Campany’s pension benefit expense is determined as follows:

T ———

Year ended August 31, 2005 Year ended August 31, 2004

Incurred Matching  Recognized Incurred Matching  Recognized
in year adjustments 3 in year in year adjustments * in year
Current service cost 18,002 - 18,002 17,078 - 170738
Employee contributions (6,153) - (6,153) (6,125) - 6,125)
Accrued interest an penetits 24,440 - 24,440 22,413 - 22,413
Return on plan assets {32,184) 11,881 (20,303) {19,538} 1,227 118,311}
Administrative expenses 1,339 (1,339) - 627 (627} -
Transitional obligation - 433 433 - 434 434
Past service costs - 1,206 1,206 - 1,206 1,206
Net actuarial loss 49,967 (46,782) 3,185 2,286 1.227 3513
Changes in valuation allowance - {150) {150) - {48) {48)
Senefit expense 55,411 (34,751) 20,660 16,741 3,419 20,180
Employer coniribution to the defined contribution plan 8973 - 8.973 8,488 - 8.488
Total pension benefit expense 64,384 (34,751) 29,633 25,229 3.419 28,648
The Company's post retirement benefit expense is determined as follows:
Current service cosl 1,329 - 1,329 1,260 ~ 1,260
Accrued interest on benefits 2,346 - 2,346 2,334 - 2,334
Transitional obligation - 303 303 - 303 303
Past service costs - 135 135 - 137 137
Net actuarial foss 7177 {7,535) {358) 944 (941) 3
Total post retirement benefit expense 10,852 (7,097) 3,755 4,538 (501) 4,037
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Pension benefits Post retirement benefits
2005 2004 2005 2504
Significant actuarial assumptions in measuring the Company’s
accrued benefit obligations as al June 30 are as follows: e
Discount rate 5.35% 6.50% 5.35% 5.50%
Rate of compensation increase 3.00% 3.50% - -
Significant actuarial assumptions in measuring the Company's
benefit costs as at June 30 are as follows:
Discount rate 6.50% 6.50% 6.50% £.50%
Expected long term rate of return on pension plan assets 7.25% 7.25% - -
Rate of compensation increase 3.50% 3.50% - -

The discouni rate was estimated by applying Canadiar: corporate AA zero coupon bonds to the expected future benefit payments under the plans. For
fiscal 2006, the expected long term rate of retur on plan assets will continue to be 7.25%, based on the investment mix, current vields and experience. In
2006, the Company expects to cortribute $16.5 million to its defined benelit pension plans and $0.3 million to its cther post retirement benefit plans.

Benefit payments, which refiect expected
future service. are expected to be paid as follows
for the years ending August 31:

Year ending August 31, 2006 14,189
2007 16,210
2008 18,028
2059 20,328
2010 22,2489

2011-201% 151,266

18. Financial instruments

Financial instruments consist of the following:

I

[

As at August 31, 2005, the €
assets of $309.2 miltion {200

pany Bas delivied benefil pension plans that are oo fully funded. (hese plans have aggregote pien
- $196.7 mittion} and aggregate benaft obligations of $439.1 milfion {2604 - $291.0 millon),

Post retiremnent plans are non-conbributory and include health. dental and fife insurance b
trend rates for the naxt - used fo measure the expeciad cost of berefits covered for the past retirernent heaith and life
were 9.0% for madical and 7.0% for dental, decreasing to an uitimate rate of 5.0% tar medical and 6.0% for dental in 2
2013 respectvely. A one percentage point increass in assumed health care cost trend rates would have increased the service and
interest costs ang obligation by $C.6 milion anc $6.8 milion respectively. A ane perceniage point decrease in assumed health

care cost trends would have lowered the senvice and interest costs ang the obligation: by SU.5 million ang $5.3 millian respectively.

wlits. The assurned heatth care cost

BIvE

I

Accounting adjustrments o allocate costs to difterent pericds s0 as to recognize the long term nature of emiplayee fuilre benefts,

2005 2004

Carrying Vailue  Fair Value Carrying Vzlue Fair Value
Short term assets 516,426 516,426 585,689 585,689
Cther investments 23,059 25,619 26.830 32,978
Shert term liabilities 599,183 599,183 431,652 491,652
Long term debt 2,550,866 2,774,648 2,940,535 3,100,279
Chligations under capital leases 17,300 17,300 18.400 18,400
Cther long term accrued liabilities 83,344 83,344 125,725 125,725
interest rate and cross currency swap liabilities 516,175 634,828 377979 465,127

il
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The fair values of shart ferm assets angd
lizbilities, which inciude cash, accounts receivable,
accounts payable and accrued labilities, income
taxes payable and film and program accounts
nayable, approximate thelr fair values due to the
short term nature of these financial instruments.

The fair value of other investments is primarily
based on quoted market prices for publicly traded
securities, and the most recent purchase
transactions and agreements and comparable
valuatons for nondisted securties.

The fair value of long term debt subject to
fioating interest rates approximales its carrying
value. The fair vaiue of long term debt, subiect to
fixed interest rates, is estimated by discounting
future cash flows including interest payments, using
rates currently available for debt of similar terms
and maturity,

The fair values ¢f the sbligations under capital
leases approximate their carrying values as interest rates
for similar leases have not changed significantly.

The fair values of other long term liabilities,
inciuding film and television program accounts
nayable, approximate their canying values.

The fair values of interest rate and cross
currency interest rate swaps are based on the
amounts at which they could be settled based on
estimates of market rates.

Credit risk

The Company is exposed to credit risk, primarily in
relation to accounts receivable. Exposure to credit
risk varies due to the concentration of individual
balances with large advertising agencies. The
Company performs reguiar credit assessments of
its customers and provides allowances for
ootentially uncollectible accounts receivable.

Interest rate risk
The Company manages its exposure to fluctuations
i interest rates through the use of interesi rale and

£ross currengy interest rate swap agreements, more
fully described in note 7.

. - 1 th 3 ‘
L Jointly controtted enteyprises

The foltowing amounts included in the consolidated

financial statements represent the Company's
proporlionate interest in joinl ventures.

LOHERAIN
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26, Related party transactions

Senior subordinated notes held by CanWest
Communications Corporation, the Company’s
parent, totaled $42.7 million (US$41.9 millior) at
August 31, 2005 (2004 - $55.0 million). This debt
matures on May 15, 2011 and bears interest at
10.625%. During 2005, interest expense refated to
this debt totaled $6.0 milion {2004 - $6.3 miiion).
In October 2005, these notes were settled by the
Company under the same terms offered to the
unrelated senior subordinated note helders for
$55.4 million.

A company which is owned by CanWest
Commiunications Corporation owns CanWest Global
Place in Winnipeg, Manitoba, a building in which
the Company is a tenant. During 2005, rent paid to
this company amounted to $1.1 million {2004 -
$1.1 million} and is included in selling, general and
administrative expenses. The obligations under
these operating leases continue until August 2010.

All the related party fransactions have been
recorded at the exchange amounts, which are
representative of market rates.

2005 2004
Balance sheets
Assets
Current assets 10.304
Long term assels 10,205
20,509
Liahilities
Current liabilities 23,488 28,902
Long term liabilities 958 -
N 24,446 28}302
Statements of earnings
Revenue 37,002 31.634
Expenses 31,284 27,591
Nel ezrnings 5718 /1041
Statements of cash flows
Cash generated {utilized) by:
Operating activities 7633
Investing activities 117
Financing activities (5.230)
Net increase (decrease) in casn 2520,

21, Contract terminalion

Effective April 2005, the Company terminated the
agreement under which the Company received
management services from The Ravelsion
Corporation Limited {“Ravelston”). The agreement
provided for annual payments of $6.0 mitlion to
Ravelston as well 2s the payment of a fee upon
termination. In August 2005, the Company and
RSM Richter Inc., in its capacity as interim receiver,
receiver manager and monitor of Ravelston,
received Court approval for a termination payment
in the amount of $12.8 million, which was paid in
September 2005. This charge was recorded in
operating expenses for year ended August 31, 2005.

22, Commitments, contungencics
and guarantees

Commitments

i (a) The Company has entered nto various agreements

for the right to broadcast certain feature films and
syndicated television programs in the future. These
agreements, which range in term from one to five
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years, generafly commit the Company e acquire
specific programs or films or certain levels of future
arcductions. The acquisiticn of these additional
oroadcast rights 15 contingent on the actuai
oroduction and/or the airing of the programs or
films. Management estimates that these
egreements will result in future annual broadcast
rights expenditures of approximately $335 mitlion.
{b) The Corpany's future minimum payments under
the terrns of its cperating leases are as follows:
2006 72.828

2007 57.475
2008 47518
2009 32,084
208 24.436

Thereafter 120,766
{c) As part of the joint venture agreement with
Metro international S.A. and Torstar Corporation,
ithe Company has agreed to fund its propori:onate
share of capits! reguirements and operating losses
up to a prescribed limit per cify. Currently, the
Company has agreed to the launch of Metro in four
cities with the ageregate amount of the
commitment ceing $8.8 mitlion.
Contingencies
{d) The Company has requested arbitration related
to $86.5 million owed by Hollinger international Inc.,
Holinger Inc. and certain related parties {collectively
“Hollinger”} related to certain unresolved adjustments
and claims related to its November 15, 2000
acquisitien of certain newspaper assets from
Hollinger. Hollinger disputes this claim and claims
that it and certain of its affiliates are owed $45
miilion by the Company. The outcome and
recoverability of this claim is not determinable.
(e} In March 2001, a statement of claim was fileg
against the Company and certain of the Company's
subsidiaries by CanWest Broadcasting Ltd.'s
{“CBLs") former minority shareholders requesting,
2mong other things, that their interests in CBL be
ourchased without minority discount. In addition, the
claim alleges the Company wrongfully terminated
certain agreements and acted in an oppressive
and prejudicial manner towards the plaintiffs. The
action was stayed on the basis that the Cntaric

" courts have no jurisdiction to try the claim. In April

2004, a statement of claim was fied in Manitoba
by the same mnority shareholders, which was

; substantially the same as the previous ciaim.

seeking damages of $455 mitlion. in June 2005,
the Company fileg a Statement of Defence and
Counterclaim. in its Counterclaim, the Company
is seeking a declaration of the fair value of the
former minority sharehoiders’ interest in CBL and

: repayment of the difference between the fair vaiue

and the redemption amount said by the Company
to the former shareholders. The Company believes
the aliegations in the Statement of Claim are
substantially without merit and not likely to have a
material adverse effect on its business, financial
condition or results of operation. The outcome of
this ctaim is not determinable and the Company
intends to vigorously defend this iawsuit.
{f) The Commpany is one of several defendants o
claim by a proposed class of freelance writers
instituted in July 2003 in respect of werks that they
providied fo newspapers and other print publications
in Canada. Tre total amount claimed (by all
plaintiffs against all defendants} is $500 millicn
in compensatory damages and $250 miflion in
exemplary and punitive damages. The outcome
of this claim is not determinable.
(g) The Company is invoived in various lega!
matters arising in the ordinary course of business.
The resolution of these matters is not expected to
have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
financial pesition, results of operations ¢r cash flows.

Guarantees

In connection with the disposition of assets, the
Company has provided customary representations
and warranties that range in duration. In addition, as
is customary, the Company has agreed to indemnify
the buyers of certain assets in respect of certain
liabilities pertaining to events occurring prior to the
respective sales relating to taxation, environmental,
litigation and other matters. The Company is unable
to estimate the maximum potential liapility for these
indemnifications as the underlying agreements
often do not specify 2 maximum amount and the
amounts are dependent upon the cutcome f
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i future contingent events, the nature and likelihood
. of which cannot be determined.

The Company has agreed to indemnify its

. current and former directors and officers ta the

extent permitted by law against any and all crarges,
costs, expenses, amounts paid in settiement and

i damages incurred by the directors and officers

as a result of any lawsuit or any other judicial,
administrative or investigative proceeding in which
the directors ang officers are sued as result of their
service. These indemnification claims wili be subject
to any statutory or other legal limitation pericd. The
nature of such indemnification prevents the Company
from making a reasonable estimate of the maximum
potential amount i could be reguired to pay to
counter parties. The Company has $30 milion in
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage.

23 Segmented information

The Cornpany operates primarily within the
publishing, online, broadcasting, entertainment
and outdeor advertising industries in Canada,
New Zealand, Ireland and Australia.

Each segment operates as a strategic
business unit with separate manzgement. Segment
performance is measured primarily upon the basis
of segment operating profit. Segmented information
and a recenciliation from segment operating profit
to earnings before income taxes are presented
below:

N
I
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;5 Revenue Segment operating profit VTotaI assets Capita! expenditures
S Operating Segments 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
Publishing and Online - Canada 1,228,851 1,193,629 254,875 267343 2,669,128 2813850 21,765 28,197
: Television
: Canada 698,644  £90,302 124,699 147430 1,379,495  1,337175 21,431 22,840
Australia - Neswark TEN 783,315 721,247 293,528 604,369 542,342 9,065 7,00
New Zealarid 122,995 108,236 30,713 115,991 126,195 5,953 2,962
37,519 34152 13254 14,59 22775 20820 939 255
: 1,642,473 1533937 462,194 437345 2,122,630 2180633 37,388 . 33068
% 93,428 86,717 26,994 27488 138.584 142,136 4,508 3231
107,790 ALY 23,173 14,477 147,443 116,730 7.036 2,380
- - (34,249) {27.110; 247,783 52,324 28,494 11.830
e g - - - - 2,850 127.470 - -
b 3,072,542 2,511.400 732987 719543 5,328,418 5573643 99,191 78754
Restructuring expenses - {2.445)
s Ravelsion management contract termination (12,750) -
G 720,237 717,098
Amortization of intangibles 20,341 18.182
Amortization of property. plant and equipment 91.868 85,067
Other amortization o 5,291 5,035
Operating income 602,737 604814
Interest expense 251,853) ({338,528)
Interest income 2,631 9,141
Amortization of deferred financing costs (12,708) {12,641}
Interest rate ang foreign currency swap losses (188,506) (110,858
Foreign exchange gains 76,025 44,973
Investment gains, losses and wirite-downs 1,527 115,786
Goodwili impairment (41,406) -
i Asset impairment {9,629) -
- Loss on debt exiinguishment {43,992) -
Dividend income ~ 3,738
Earnings before income taxes o 134826 316425

1 Canadian television restriching expenses.

o
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24, Subsegquoent oventy

{a) In October 2005, the Company transferred

its investment in its newspaper and interactive
operations {excluding the Nationa! Post} and
certain shared service operations, whith provide
customer support and administrative services to
the Company (the "Publications Group”) to a new
ertity, CanWest MediaWorks Limited Partnership
{the "Limited Partnership™. In exchange, the
Company received units of the Limited Partnership
representing a 74.2% ownership interest and notes
receivable of $1,332.5 million.

Concurrently, the CanWest MediaWorks
income Fund (the "Fund”) closed its initial public
cltering ("IPQ") of units and invested the proceeds
for units of the Limited Partnership representing a
25.8% interest. Total proceeds for the offering were
$550 million and costs of the offering were
approximately $33 million and were paid by the
Limited Partnership.

In addition, the Limited Partnership obtained
credit facilties in the amount of $1 biliion
consisting of an $825 million non-evolving term
credit facility and a $175 million revolving term
credit facilty. The revolving facility matures in five
years, is subject to certain restrictions and bears
interest at the prevailing prime rate, US base rate.
panker's acceptance rate or LIBOR plus, in each
case, an applicable margin. The non-revolving
facility matures in five vears, and bears interest at
the prevailing prime rate, US base rate, banker's
acceptance rate or LIBOR plus, in each case, an
applicable margin. On closing of the IPC, the
Limited Partnership drew $830.0 millior on its
credit facilities. The Limited Partnership has
entered into five year interest rate swap contracts
10 fix the interest payments cn a noticnal amount of
$825.0 million for the first three years and $660.0
million for the remaining two years, resulting in an
effective interest rate of 5.0%.

The Limited Partnership utilized the
croceeds of the issuance of the units to the Fund
and $822.5 million of drawings under ils new
credit facilities to repay the $1,339.5 million note
payable to the Company.

in conjunction with these fransactions, the
Limitied Partnership entered intc agreements with
the Company that will entitle it to recover certain
costs from the Company's Canad:ian television
and radio broadcasting operations and the
National Post and also require the Limited
Partnership to make payments for certain services
provided by the Company.

As a result of the transaction, the Company
will record a dilution gain or loss on the sale of a

25.8% interest in the operations transierred to the
Partrershin. The amount of the gain or loss has nct
been determined. The Company will continue to
consolidate the results of the Publications Group
with a minority :nterest charge fo refiect the
ownership inzerest of the Fund. A portion of the
Company’s units of the Limited Partnership are
subordinated. Approximately 36% of the Company's
units of the Limited Partnership are subcrdinated in
the payment of disiributions if the Limited
Partrership does not have adeguate resources on a
quarterly basis fo fund disiributions.

(b} In October 2005, the Company abtained 2 new
$500 million revolving term credit facility. Tne
revolving facility matures in five years, is subject to
certain restrictions and bears interest at the
prevailing crime rate, US base rate, banker's
acceptance rate or LIBOR pius, in each case, an
applicable margin. This facility is secured by
substantially all of the Company's directly heid
assets including the assets of its Canadian
broadcast operations and the National Post, as well
as by its other investments.

{c) The net proceeds from the IPO and the Limited
Partrership debt as weli as proceeds of $406.6
millicn from the new credit facility {(note 24 (b))
were utilized to retire certain debt and interest rate
and cross currency interest rate contracts as follows:

i. In October 2007, the Company completed
a tender offer for its 10.125% senior subordinated
notes payable, due in 2011, and its 7.625% senicr
unsecured notes payable, due in 2C13.
Substantially all of the notes under these facitities
were seitled. Debt with a book velue of $772.4
million, and related deferred financing costs of
$27.7 mittion were retired for cash of $849.3
millicn. The transaction resulted in a loss on debt
retirement of $71.1 millior, net of tax of $33.5
millicn, As a result of the repayment of these notes,
the Company will record a swag ioss of $21.8
millicn, net of tax of $12.1 miliicn, related to the
associated €ross currency interest rate swaps.

ii. In Octeber 2005, the Company retired its
senior credit facility. Debt with a book value of
$526.4 million and deferred financing costs ¢f $6.0
miflion were settied for cash of $526.4 millign. The
transaction resulted in a loss on debt retirement of
$3.9 million, net of tax of $2.1 million. In addition,
as a result of the settlement of this debt, the
Company will record 2 loss of $48.2 million, net of
tax of $26.7 millicn, related to the associated
interest rate and cross currency interest rate swaps.

iit. In Novemmber 2005, the Company retired
interest rate and cross currency interest rate swap
contracts relating to the 7.625% notes, the
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10.625% notes and 50% cf the cross currency
interest rate swap related to the senior secured
credit facilities for cash of $364.8 miillion.

(d) Subsequent to year end, the Company
announced its successiul bids to acquire interests
in two radko stations in Turkey. On September 21,
2005, the Company anncunced that it acquired an
equily interest m CGS Televizyon Ve Radyo
Yavincihigr Ticarel Anomim Sirkeli (“CGS™} that in
turn was successful in its bid fo acquire the assets of
Super FM, Tor consideration of US$33 million,
which will be payable upon completion ¢f the
transection. On September 22, 2005, the Company
anncurced that Pasifik Teievizyon Ve Radyo
Yayinciligr Ticaret A.S. {"Pasifik”) was successful in
its bid to acquire the assets of Metro FM, for
consideration of US$23 million, which will be
payable upon completion of the transaction. In
exchznge for the payment of $US42.0 million. the
Company will acguire 2 75% economic interest in
both CGS and Pesifik. These fransactions, which
are subject to regulatory approvals by certain
Turkish auihorities, are expecied o be completed
within S0 days of the announcement. Subject tc a
relaxation of foreign ownership restrictions and the
receipt of all necessary regulatory approvals, the
Company has the right to convert its interest to 2
75% equity interest in Metro FM and Super FM.

25, Unmited Staies

accounting principies
These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Canadian GAAP. In
certain aspects, GAAP as applied in the United
States {“U.S."} differs from Canadian GAAP.
Amocunts are in thousands of Canadian dollars,
unless otherwise noted.

Principal differences

affecting the Company

{a) COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Comprehensive income, defined as all changes in
equity other than those resulting from investments
by owners and distributions to cwners, must be
reported under U.S. GAAP There is currently no
simifar requirement under Canadian GAAP, however
upen adogtion of CICA 1530, Comprehensive
Income, nz such GAAP difference will exist.

{b) PRE-GPERATING COSTS

Inthe U.S., pre-operating costs are expensed in the
period incurred. In accerdance with Canadian
GAAP, the Company defers pre-operating costs until
commencement of commercial operations and
amortizes the deferred costs over a period of five
years. The U.S. GAAP reconciliation reflects the

N
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expensing of amounts which were deferred for
Canadian GAAP of $3,568 in 2005 (2004 - $1,748),
with relaled tax recoveries of $1,273 in 20C5
{2004 - $305) and the reversal of amartization

of pre-operating costs of $2,297 in 2005 (2004 -
$1,4713, with related tex provisions of $820 in
2005 (2004 - $646). The balance sheet effect of
these adjustments was: other assels reduced by
$7.763 in 2005 (2004 - $4,498), long term future
tax liability reduced by $2,781 in 2005 (2004 -
$2,328) and shareholders’ equity reduced by the
net amount of $4,988 in 2005 (2004 - $4.170).

{c}) FOREIGN CURRENGCY TRANSLATION

In the US, distributions from seif-sustaining foreign
operations do not result in a realization of the
cumulative translation adjustments account.
Realization of such foreign currency translation
adjustments occurs only upon the sale of ali or a
part of the investment giving rise to the transtation
adjustments. In accordance with Canadian GAAP,
reductions in the net investment in self-sustaining
foreign operations result in a proportionate reduction
in the cumulative foreign currency translation
adjustment accounts. The U.S. GAAP reconciliation
refiects the reversal of realization of cumulative
translation adjustments resulting in 2 decrease in net
earnings of: $622 in 2005 {2004 - increase in net
eamnings of $4,52€). The balance sheet effect of
these adjustments was: increase refained earnings
by $2,412 in 2005 {2004 - $10,034) and decrease
accumulated other comaorehensive income by
$9,412 in 2005 {2004 - $10,034).

Under Canadian GAAP, cumulative currency
transiation adjustments are presented as a2
separate component of shareholder's equity. Under
1U.S. GAAR it is a component of accumulated other
comprehensive income. The U.S. GAAP
reconciliation refiects this reclassification.

{c} PROGRAMMING COMMITMENTS

Under Canadian GAAP, certain crogramming
commitments imposed by regulatory requirements
related to an acquisition, completed prior to
January 1, 2001, were accrued in the purchase
equation resulting in additional goodwiill. Under
U.S. GAAP, these costs were expensed as incurred.
The U.S. GAAP reconcifiation reflects the expensing
of these programming costs as incurred of

$6,463 in 2005 (2004 - $6,012), with related

tax recoveries of $2.321 in 2005 (2004 - $1,683).
The balance sheet effect of these adjustments was
to reduce goodwill by $18,639 in 2005 and 2004,
increase long term future tax liability by $2,500 in
2005 (2004 - §7.372), reduce ciher long term
accrued liabilities by $7,558 in 2005 (2004 -
$14,021) and reduce shareholders’ equity by
$13,581 in 2005 (2004 - $11,052).

{e} INVESTMENT IN A BROADCASTING
OPERATION ON AN EQUITY BASIS

Under Canadian GAAP the Company’s investment
in a broadeasting operation was accounted for
using the equity method during the period that this
investment was held in trust, pending completion
of the reguiatory approval process. Under U.S.
GAAP, the investment was initially accounted for on
a cost basis; ther, as a result of receiving approval
to compiete the purchase of the broadcasting
operation, the Company changed its method cf
acceunting for the investment to the equity methed.
The change in accounting palicy was retroactively
applied as required under APB Opinion No. 18,
The Equity Methed of Accounting for Investments

in Common Stock, to the date that the Company
initially acquired its investment, Effective July 6,
2000, the Company consclidated this investment
for both Canadian and U.S. GAAP purposes. The
U.S. GAAP recenciliation had no effect on earnings
for the periods presenied. The effect on the balance
sheet was to increase goodwil: by $38,503 in 2005
{2004 - $38,503) and increase shareholders’
equity by $38,503 in 2005 (2004 - $38,503).

(f} INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Under Canadian GAAP, certain costs related to
the develcpment of broadcast licences, other than
through a business combination, were recorded
as intangible assets. Under U.S. GAAP, such
costs are expensed as incurred. The U.S. GAAP
reconciliation had no effect on earnings for the
periods presented. The balance sheet effect was
to reduce intangible assets by $2,325 in 2005
{2004 - $2,325} to reduce long term future tax
lizbility by $860 in 2005 (2004 - $860) and to
reduce shareholders’ equity by $1465 in 2005
(2004 - $1,465).

{g) INVESTMENT IN MARKETABLE SECURITIES
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For U.S. GAAP, investment asseils ciassified as

“availzble for sale” are carned 2t markel, and
unrealized lemporary gains and losses are
included, net of tax, in other comprehensive
income. In accardance with Canadian GAAP, the
Company carries its investment in marketable
securities at cost. For the Company’s other
investments, fair value is not readily determinable
and are accordingly carried at cost. The effect of
the U.S. GAAP reconciliation was to decrease other
comprenensive income by nit in 2005 {2004 -
{$16,834)), to increase other investments by nil in
2005 (2004 - nil}, ard to increase shareholders’
equity by nii in 2005 (2004 - nil).

{h} PENSION VALUATION ALLOWANCES

Under Canadian GAAF a valuation aliowance
against pension assets is the excess of the adjusted
benefit asset over the expected future benefit,
Changes in the valuation aliowance are recorded
2s adjustments to pension exoense. Under U.S.
GAAP, valuation allowances are not recorded. The
US GAAP reconciliation reflects the elimination of
pension valuation allowances resuiting in reduced
earnings of $150 in 2005 (2004 - $48), with
related tax recoveries of $52 in 2005 (2004 - $19).
The balance sheet effect was to increase long term
cther assets by $572 in 2005 (2004 - $722),
increase long term future tax liability by $214 in
2005 {2004 - $266) and increase shareholders'
equity by $358 in 2005 (2004 - $456).

(i} PROPORTIONATE CONSOLIDATION

Canadian GAAP requires the accounts of jointly
controlled enterprises to be proportionately
consolidated. Under U.S. GAAP, investments in
jointly contrelied entities are accounted as equity
investments. This accounting difference applies to
the Compary's investment in TV3 Ireland, Mystery
and Metro. The proportionate interest is disclosed
in note 18. Accordingly, unger accommodalion
provided by the SEC, this difference is not included
in the following reconciliation.

{}} ACCOUNTING FOR DERIVATIVE .
INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

Under U.S. GAAP, entities are required to recognize
ail derivative instruments as either assets or

liabilities in the balance sheet, and measure those
instruments at fair value. The changes in fair value



of the dervatives are included in the statement of
earnings. Under Caradian GAAP, hedge accounting
is appiied for dedvatives that are eligible for hedge
accounting if certain criteria are met and
non-hedging derivatives are recognized at their fair
value as either assets or fiabilities. As a result of
adopting FAS 133 on September 1, 2001, the
Company discontinued hedge accounting, The fair
vaiues of derivatives designeted as hedges before
August 31, 2000 have been included in a
fransitional adjustrment and are included in income
over the term of the hedged transaction. The U.S.
GAAP reconciliation reflects the recording of gains
on interest rate and cross currency swaps of
$3,315 in 2005 (2004 - $77,770), with related tax
provision of $18,624 in 2005 {2004 - $31,875)
and the recording of minority interests share of
gains (losses} on interest rate and cross currency
swaps and translation of foreign denominated debt
of $809 in 2005 {2004 - {$2.032)). The balance
sheet effect was to increase long term swap
fiabiiities by $65,776 in 2005 {2004 - $69.586),
reduce future tax liabilities by $19,981 in 2005
{2004 - $38,781) and decrease minority interests
oy $1,393 in 2005 {2004 - $584), and reduce
sharehciders’ equity by $44.402 in 2005 (2004 -
$30,221).

{k) INTEGRATION GOSTS RELATED
TO THE ACQUISITION OF THE
PUBLISHING PROPERTIES

Under Canadiar GAAP. certain integration costs
related to the acquisition of the Company's
publishing properties were accrued in the purchase
equation. Under LS. GAAP, these costs are
expensed as incurred. The U.S. GAAP reconciliation
had rio effect on eamings for the periods presented.
The balance sheet effect was to decrease goodwill
by 2005 and 2004 - $1,863 and reduce
shareholders equity by: 2005 and 2004 - $1,663.

) RESOLUTION OF ACQUIRED TAX
CONTINGENCIES

Under U.S. GAAP, the settlement of tax
contingencies acquired through a business
acquisition result in an adjustment to the purchase
equation. In accordance with Canadian GAAP, the
resolution of such tax contingencies is included in
earnings once the purchase price allocation is

{ finalizes. The U.S. GARP reconciliation reflects the

reduction of earnings related to the reversal of tax
recoveries of nil in 2005 {2004 - $7.000). The
balance sheet effect was 1o reduce goodwill ang
shareiolder's equity by: $7,000 in 2005 (2004 -
$7.0005.

fm} FUTURE INCOME TAXES

Under J.S. GAAP, the changes to future tax balances
upon the adoption of FAS 142, Goodwili and Other
Intangible Assets, in 2001, were reflected as a
future income tax recovery in the year FAS 142 was
adopted. In accordance with Canadian GAAP, the
adjustment was recorded as a reduction in
poodwitl, The refated U.S. GAAP balance sheet
effect would be to increase goodwill by $160,500 in
2005 (2004 - $160,500) and increase retained
earnings by $160,500 in 2005 (2004 - $160,500).

{n) ADDITIONAL MINIMUM LIABILITY

Under FAS 87, Employers’ Accounting for Pensiens,
the Company recognizes an additional minimum
pension liability when the accumulated benefit
obligation exceeds the fair value of plan assets to
lhe exient that such excess is greater than accrued
pension costs otherwise recorded. For the purposes
of determining the additional minimum pension
fiability, the accumulated benefit obligation does not
incorporate projections of future compensation
increases in the determination of the obligation. No
such adiustment is required under Canadian GAAP.
The effect on the .S, GAAP reconciliation was to
decrease cther comprehensive income by $28 674
with related tax recovery of $10,323. The balance
sheet effect was to increase other long term
liabilities by $84,274, increase intangible assets by
$13.558, increase other assets by $3,015.
decrease future tax liabilities by $24,372, and
decrease shareholders’ equity by $43,329.

The minimum pension liability for the vear
ended August 31, 2005, includes a comprehensive
income adjustrment for the current year of $18,351,
net of tax of $10,323. Comprehensive income
adjustments for 2004 and prior years of $24,97%,
net of tax of $14,04S are included in the
comgrehensive income (loss) - accumulated
balances. The Comgany has determined these
adjustments are nat material to the previgusly
reported results, accordingly, the adjustments have
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: been included in the current year's comprehensive

income {loss) - accumulated balances.

PROPOSED ACCOUNTING POLICIES
SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

In Decemrber 2004, The Financial Accounting
Standards Board issued the Staterment of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 123 {Revised 2004),
Share Based Payment, which requires the
Company to measure the cost of employee services
received in exchange for an award of equity
instruments based on the grant-date fair value of
the award (with limited excections). FAS 123
{Revised 2034) is applicable for as of the beginning
of the first interim or annual reporting pericd that
begins after june 15, 2005. The Company utilizes
a similar approach under Canadian GAAP and does
not expect the adoption of this accounting policy to
have a material impact on its results.

ADOPTED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
CONSOUIDATING VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES

For its year ended August 31, 2004, for US GAAP,
the Company wzs required to apply the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Interpretation
No. 46(R) (“FIN 46(R)"), Consolidation of Variable
Interest Entities. The Company had determined
that it is the primary beneficiary of Netwerk TEN
Group, a variable interest entity. Accordingly, for
US GAAP, as required by FIN 46(R), the Company
consolidated its investment in TEN Group effective
May 31, 2004. This was applied on 2 prospective
basis. As exalained in Note 1, effective September
1, 2004, under Canadian GAAP, the Company
adopted AcG-15 and consolidated its investment
in the TEN Group on a retroactive basis and
restated the prior vears’ financial statements of
the Company. There are n¢ material differences
between the consolidation principies under FIN
45(R) and AcG-15. With the adoption of AcG-15,
the Compazny changed the transition method
previously adopted for U.S. GAAP purposes by
restating previously issued U.S. GAAP financial
information as permitted under paragraph 40 of
FIN 45{R). Management is of the opinicn that this
change in method is preferable as it presents
comparable information for alt periods of the
consolidation of the TEN Group which was
encouraged in FIN 46(R).
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

T ——— —

Comparative Reconciliation of Net Earnings (Loss)
The following is a recenciliation of nef eamings reflecting the differences between Canadian and US GAAP:

I ——

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income {Loss)
Comprehensive Income (Loss) - Current Periods

2005 2004

Net eamings in accordance with Canadian GAAP from continuing operations 20,422 194,299
Pre-operating costs incurred (3] (3,568) {1,748)
Amortization of pre-cperating costs (b} 2,297 1,471
Realization of currency transiation adjustments {c) (622) 4528
Programming costs imposed by regulatory requirement {d} (6.463) (6,012)
Pension vaiuation allswances (h {150) (48)
Gain on interest rate and cross currency swaps and translation ¢f foreign denominated debt (j) 3,315 77770
Resolution of acguired tax contingencies (1) - {7.000)
Minority interests effect of adjustments 809 (2,032)
Tax effect of adiustments (13,408) {30,514)
Net eamnings for the year from continuing cperations in accordance with U.S. GAAP 2,632 230,712
Loss from discontinued operations (10,132} (207,777)
Net eamings (loss) for the year in accordance with U.S. GAAP . _oodeso0y o o 22938
famings per share from continuing operations:

Basic $0.01 $1.30

Diluted $0.01 $1.3
famings {loss) per share:

Basic ($0.04) 8013

Diluted {$0.04) $0.13
Loss from discontinued operations per share:

Basic ($0.06) {$1.18)

Diluted {$0.06) ($1.18)

I

2005 2004

Net earnings {loss) in accordance with U.S. GAAP (7,500) 22,935
Unrealized foreign currency transiation gain (c) 2,506 9,802
Realized foreign currency translation loss (c) - 2,497
Foreign currency translation gain 2,506 12,299
Unrealized gains (losses) on securities available for sale net of tax of nil {h) - 34,883
Realized (gains) losses on securities available for sale net of tax of nil {h) - {51,717}
Transition adjustment on swaps net of tax of $176 (2004 - $177) (k) 316 313
Additional minimum liability net of iax of $10,323 (n) (18,351} -
(15,529) (4,222)

Comprehensive income (loss) {23,029) 18,713

Comprehensive Income (Loss) - Accumulated Balances

I —

Foreign  Unrealized Transition  Additional

currency gains (losses) adjustment minimum
translation on securities on swaps liability Tota!
Accumulated other camprehensive income {loss) - August 31, 2003 {36.154) 16,834 {2,230 - (21,550)
Change during the year 12,299 (16,834) 313 - (4,222)
Accumulated other comprehensive income {loss) - August 31, 2004 {23.855) - {1,817} - (25,772)
Change during the vear 2,506 - 315 (43,329) {40,507)
Accumulated other comprehensive income ({loss) - August 31, 2005 (21,349) - {1,601) (43,329) (66,279)
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Comparative Reconciliation of Shareholders' Equity
A reconciliation of shareholders’ equity refiecting the ditferences between Canadian and U.S. GAAP is
set out below:

I ——

o 2005 2004
Shareholders' equity in accordance with Canadian GAAP 1,195,948 1179,420
Preoperating costs incurred {b} {7.769) {0.498)
Geodwilt adjustment related to refroactive equity

accounting of WIC unon regulatory apnroval (e) 38,503 38,503
Goocwill adjustment related o programming costs mcurred (d) (25,142) {18,679)
Googwill adjustment related to integration costs (k) {1,663) (1.663)
Historical amortization of goodwi related to future programming costs

imposed by regulatory requirement on business combination (d) 938 938
Costs to develop intangiole assets expensed (f) (2,325) {2,325)
Pensian valuation allowance (h) 572 727
Goodwill adjustment related to resolution of acquired tax contingencies {1} (7.000) {7,000)
Future income taxes (m) 160,500 160,500
Adjustment to reflect losses on interest rate and cross currency sweps {i} {63,210) {66.525)
Trznsition adjustrnent on interest rate swaps {j) (2,566) {3.058)
Additional mirimum liability (n} (67,701) -
Minority interests effect of adjustiments 1,383 584
Tax effect of adjustments 59,180 43 392
Sharenolders’ equity in accordance with U.S. GAAP 1,279,658 1,323,311
Other

2005 2004

{Revised note 1)

The following amounts are included in accounts receivable:

Ailowance for doubtful accounts - beginning of year 17,074 18,860
Bad debt expense 6,813 5,634
Write offs during the year (8.092) {7513)
Foreign exchange (186) 93

) 15,609 17,074

The following amounts are included in operating expenses:
Rent expense 68,141 53,297

The following amounts are included in_accrued liabilities:
Employment related accruals 88,000

~J
o
[
<
<

Amortization expense related to existing finite life intangibles will be $11.5 million per year in 2006
and $4.2 million in 2007 to 2010.
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YEAR FINANCIAL REVIEW
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Ten year ﬁnancia} review

¢ ; FOR THE YEARS ENDED AUGHIST 31 (% THOUSANDS GF CANADIAN DOILLARS EXCEPT AS NOTED)!
£y UNAUDITED
i
: |
o 2005 2004 . 2003 2002
i Consolidated operating results !
- a}? Revenue 3,072,542 2,911,400 2,790,484 2,725924
; Operating income before amortization 720,237 717,098 £52.243 £14,799
; Operating profit margin 23.4% 24.6% 23.4% 22.6%
. investment gains, losses and write-downs 1.527 115,786 2,240 14,822
Net earnings (loss) 10,290 {13.478) 46,088 13,018
Net eamings from cor ummg operations 20,422 194,295 114,798 31,325
Adjusted net earnings fram continuing operations ¥ 20,422 194,299 114,798 31,325
Cash flow from operating activities of continuing operations 469,288 394,283 444 457 137815
. Per share information
Basic $0.06 ($0.08) $0.22 $0.07
Diluted $0.06 ($0.08) $0.22 $0.07
4 Net earnings from continsiing operations
Basic $0.12 $1.10 $0.60 $0.18
Dituted $0.12 $1.10 $0.60 $0.17
i Adjusted net earnings from continuing operations *
Basic $0.12 $110 $0.60 $0.18
Diluted $0.12 $:.10 $0.60 $0.17
Consolidated Financial Position!
Total assets 5,328,418 5,573,643 5,934,508 6,169,312
Capital expenditures 99,191 £2,556 58,977 78,623
Long term debt 2,908,306 3,216,763 3,580,870 3902156
Debt:Equity 2.43:1 2.73:1 3051 3.32:1
Shareholders’ equity 1,195,948 1,179,420 1,172,331 1175911
Return on average equity 0.87% {1.15%) 3.93% 1.05%
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 177,319,675 177,235,944 177,108,738 176,356,800
Shares outstanding at year end 177,394,723 177,279,132 177132515 177,061,035
Trading Statistics
Trading volumes
Subordinaie voting shares - TSX 178,008,100 92,853,700 50,473,100 81,749,500
Non-voting shares - TSX 1,675,400 1,065,400 1,453,500 1,167,700
Non-voting shares - NYSE 773,300 450,700 582,200 813.800
Market price of subordinate voting shares
High $15.78 $14.40 $11.00 $14.15
Low $9.15 $9.50 $2.75 $5.05
Market price of non-voting shares - TSX
i High $15.75 $14.27 $10.76 $14.25
A Low $9.05 $9.52 $2.90 $5.40
Market price of non-voting shares - NYSE
High US$13.04 US$11.13 us$767 US§8.86
Low US$7.06 1S87.25 1US$1.88 US$3.56
1 Restated to refiect the adoption ot AcG 15, Consotidation ¢f Varizble Inferost Entilies, for years 2001 2005,
2 Restated 1o refloct a etreacive change in arcounting policy with respect to accounting for tuture income 1axes anad £armngs per shate.
andt adjisted to wllect 2 1.24% K dividend paid i Septamber 2000,
3 Arjusled 1o excluda the amartization i goodwilt and indnfinite life intangities.
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2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1995
2,250.506 620.269 955,136 537538 450.386 368,610
547700 137123 160,50 176.004 149,220 115,160
24.3% 22.1% 28.9% 33.3% 32.4% 31.2%
55,057 101,213 3,424 412 1,783 1922
46,633 177.638 144,403 200,117 133,6€2 95,798
50.998 174,413 142,665 198,987 139,652 89,217
121,547 196,154 156,16C 215.590 58,053 115,902
148,220 22,258 121,229 138,700 141,726 86,529
$C.27 $1.17 $0.95 $1.33 $0.93 $0.67
$G.2 $116 $0.98 $1.32 $0.92 $0.66
$0.30 $1.15 §0.94 $1.32 $0.93 $0.70
$0.30 $1.14 $0.94 $1.32 $0.52 $0.69
$0.71 $1.29 $103 $1.43 $1.05 $0.81
$0.71 $1.28 $1.03 $1.42 $1.04 $0.80
5,882,367 2,880,542 1695011 1,473,315 1,290,656 744,940
86.716 8932 15,215 11,003 5858 12,135
4,134,048 1,168,282 544,675 453,745 462,764 171,041
3171 1.36:1 70:1 881 871 371
1,305,895 860,127 776,093 667619 532,642 461,385
431% 21.70% 20.00% 33.35% 28.10% 21.03%
171,421,241 151,644,239 151,356,194 151,008,489 150,104,148 142,270,354
76,640,325 151,904,322 161,449,872 151,198,973 150,675,701 149,638,874
54,187,004 38,406,989 34,483,802 20,451,677 24,394 893 18,017,305
1,293,168 2,854,403 6,351,161 3.218,496 2,248 825 572,863
826.300 1,127,307 4,035,933 4,321,936 10,328,605 7,147,038
$21.50 $22.97 $24.2¢ $2815 $24.35 $13.58
$10.25 $14.82 $16.59 $20.30 $i383 $6.16
$2163 $22.72 $24.0C $28.00 $24.35 $13.33
$10.50 $14.92 $18.79 $20.35 $313.58 $11.85
US$14.56 US$15.86 UsS$18.93 US$20.19 US$17.66 US$3.63
US36.83 Uss10.12 US$10.75 US$13.03 Usga.77 US$8.64
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The Subardinate Voting Shares and Non-Voting
Shares of the Company are listed on the Tororito
Stock Exchange under the symbots CGS.SV and
CGS.NV respectively. The Neon-Voting Shares of
the Campany are also listed on the New York
Stock Exchange under the symboi CWG, Issued
and outstanding equity shares as at November

17, 2005 were comprised of:

+ Multigle Voting Shares 76,785,976
= Subordinate Voting Shares 68,772,468
= Non-Veting Shares 1,844,092

£ach of the share classes has a different
aumber of votes per share. There are 10 voles
ser Multiple Voting Share and one vote per
Subordinate Voting Share. Non-Voting Shares
do not vote, except at meetings where the
holders of such shares would be entitled, by
faw, to vote senarately as a class.

CanWest is a constrained-share company,
of which at least €6.7% of the Voting Shares
must be beneficially owned by persons who are
Canadian citizens or corporations controlled in
Canada. There is no limit on the number of
Non-Voting Shares that a nonCanadian can hold.

Any Canadian citizen purchasing Non-Vaoiing
Shares can present them for registration as
gither Subordinate Voting Shares or Non-Voting
Shares. Non-Voting Shares can be purchased
by anyone, Canadian or ctherwise. Subordinate
Voting Shares purchased by a nonLanadian will,
ugon registration of transfer, be converted into
Ngn-Voting Shares.

Exevutive Stock Gption Plan

The Company has adaopted an Executive Stock
Ortion Plan under which eligitle CanWest
executives are entitled to receive options ¢
acquire Subordinate Voting Shares or Nen-Veting
Shares. The Board of Directors administers the
Executive Stock Cption Plan and establishes the
option price on the date on which any opticns
are granted. In all cases, the option price has
been the market value of the Subordinate Voling
Shares as at the date the oplion was granted.
The aggregate number of Subordinate Voiing
Shares or Non-Veting Shares which have been
reserved for issue under this plan, together with
any Subordinate Voting Shares and Non-Voting
Shares reserved for issue under any aptions

for service or other employee stock purchase

or options plans established frem time to time,
may not exceed an aggregate of approximately
13.8 mitlion Subordinate Voting Shares or
Non-Voting Shares, and no individual opticnee
may hold options to purchase Suberdinate Voting
Shares or Non-Voting Shares in excess of 10%
of the issued ouistanding Subordinate Yoting
Shares or Non-Voting Shares at the date of

the grant of the option. During fiscal 2005,
1,177,5G0 options to purchase subordinate

and non-voting shares were granted under the
Executive Stock Cption Plan, at an average price
of $12.06 per share.
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Board of Directors

DAVID .} DRYBROUGH

A Chartered Accountant by training, Mr.
Drvbrough wes a pariner of the accounting firm
Pricewaterhouse Coopers LLF {then known as
Coopers and Lybrand). Following his retirement
in 1997, he served as Vice President Finance of
Gendis Inc. until December 2003. Mr, Drybrough
serves on the Board's Audit Cominittee, and is a
Director of CanWest MediaWorks {Canada) Inc.
and Fort Chicago Energy Pariners LR

LEO

Mr. Asper is President and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company. He was elected tc the Board

of Directors in 1597 Mr. Asper, a lawyer, joined
CanWest in 1991 as Associate General Counsel
for the Company's Global Television station in
Ontario. Thereafter, he held various positions in
Corporate Development, and was Chief Operating
Dfficer. Mr. Asper took over the Presidency of the
Company in 1999. He serves as Chairman of the
Board of CanWesl MediaWorks {Canada) inc. and
various other CanWest Global subsidiaries. He is
a Director of CanWest MediaWarks {NZ) Ltd.

Mr. Asper is Executive Vice Fresidert of the
Company and a member of the Corporate
Executive Management Committee. Mr. Asper.

a lawyer, jcined the Company in 1992 and has
had various responsibilities covering corporate
development and broadcast operations. As a
member of the Corporate Executive Management
Committee, Mr. Asper is actively engaged in the
planning and implementation of broad corporate
strategy. He serves as a Director of CanWest
MediaWarks ({Canadaj Inc.

GAILS, ASPER

Ms. Asper is Corporate Secretary of the Company
and President of the CanWest Global Foundation.
She has been a member of the Board of Directors
since 1992. She also serves as Managing
Director of The Asper Foundation, a prvate
charitable foundation. Ms. Asper is & graduale
of the University of Manitoba Law School and
nracticed corparate and commercial law in Nova
Scotiz before joining CanWest in 1983. Ms,
Asper is 2 member of the Board of Direciors of
CanWest Global Communications Corp., Great-
West Lifeco Inc. and Great West Life Assurance
Campany, London insurance Group inc., Londen
Life Insurance Company, Canada Life Assurance
Company and Canada Life Financial Corporation.
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DEREK H. BURNEY, 0.0,

Mr. Burmey is a Senigr Distinguished Fellow at
the Centre for Trade Policy and Law and Adjunct
Professor at the MNorman Paterson School of
Internaticnal Refations at Carleton University.
From October 1999 until August 2004, he was
President and Chief Executive Officer of CAE Inc.
Prior to joining CAE, Mr. Burney was Chairman
and Chief Execuiive Officer of Bell Canada
Internaticnal Inc. {1993-1959). From 1989-1993,
Mr. Burney served as Canada’'s Ambassador to
the United States. He is Chairman of the Board
of NB Power Holding Corp. and serves 3s a
Director of Sheit Canada Limited. Mr. Burney is
an officer of the Order of Canada.

PR.LLOYD L BARBER, C.C.. S.O.M.. LLD.

Dr. Barber is President Emeritus of the University
of Regina. He was appointed an Officer of the
Orger of Canada in 1978 and was elevated io
Comganion of the Order in 1993. He serves

as a Director of several major public Canadian
companies including Teck Comince Lid.,
Greystone Capital Management and Fording
Trust. He was elected to the Board in 1992

RONALD 4. DANIELS

Mr. Daniels is the Provost, University of
Pennsylvania. Prior to that, he was the Dean of
the Faculty of Law at the University of Toronto from
1995 to 2005. He hoids Bachelor’s and Law
degrees from Toronto, and a master's degree in
law from Yale. Prof. Daniels has served as Birector
of the University of Toranto Electric Power Project,
Chairman of the Ontario Task Force on Securities
Regulaticn and a member of the Toronta Stock
Exchange Commitiee on Corporate Governance.
He was elected ta the Roard in January 2004.
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Board of Directors continued

Mr. Godfrey was appointed President and

Chief Executive Qfficer of the Toronte Blue

Jays Baseball Club in Septermber 2000. Prior to
sining the Toronto Blue Jays, Mr. Gedfrey was
President and Chief Executive Officer of the
Sun Media Corporation. in 1993, Mr. Godfrey
received the honour of being appoirted a
member of the Order of Canada. He was elected
10 the Board in January 2004,

G0 PENG.

ERANK W. KID

Mr. King is President of Metropolitan Invesiment
Corporation and is the former Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the XV Olympic Winter
Games, held in Calgary in 1988. Mr. Kingis a
Director of the Calgary Chamber of Commerce,
Networc Heailth Inc., The Westaim Corporation,
Agrium Inc. and is a Trustee of Ric-Can Real
Estate Investment Trust. Mr. King is an officer of
the Order of Canada. He was appointed to the
Board of Directors in November 2004,

LISA PANKRATZ, CA, CFA

R 2y

Ms. Pankratz, a Chartered Accouniani, Is
President, Corporate Comgliance Officer and

2 Director of Cundill Investment Research Ltd..
a global investrnent counsel firm. Ms. Pankraiz
is also a Board Member and a member of the
Audit Committee of The Insurance Corporation
of British Columbia. Previously, Ms. Pankratz
neld senior execulive positions with 2 number
of comparnies, including Evans Forest Producls
Limited and Bankers Trust {BT Bank of Canada)
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Mr. Asper, a tawyer, joined Canest in 1931 as
Associate Genera! Counsel for the Compary's
Global Television station in Ontario. Thereafter, he
held varicus positions in Corperate Development,
and was Chief Operating Officer. Mr. Asper

took over the Presidency of the Company in

1999, He serves as Chairman of the Board of
CanWest MediaWorks (Carada) Inc. and various
other CanWest Global subsidiaries. He is alsc a
Director of CanWest MediaWorks (NZ) Limited.

DAVID A ASPER

M:. Asper, z lawyer, jcined the company in 1992
and has had various responsibilities covering
corporate development and broadcast operations.
As a member of the Corperate Executive
Management Committee, Mr. Asper is actively
engaged in the planning and implementation of
broad corporate strategy. He serves as a Director
of CanWest MediaWerks {Canada) inc.

TOM STRIKE

Mr. Strike, a Chartered Accountant, joined CanWest
in 1986 znd has held the positions of Senior
Executive Vice President of the Company, Chief
Operating Cfficer and, most recently, Chief
Operating Cfficer, Corparate. In his current

roie, Mr. Strike is resporsible for overseeing

ail infernational operations at CanWest and is

the Chairman of CanWest MediaWorks (NZ}
Limited. He also serves as a Director of CanWest
MediaWorks {Canada} inc.

JOHN PAGUIRE

Mr. Maguire is responsible for all of the
Comgany's financial and corporate accounting
activities. A Chariered Accountant, Mr. Maguire
also works closely with the Company’s bankers
and auditors, and maintains communication with
financial communities throughcut North America.
He also serves as a Director of CanWest
MediaWorks {Canada) Inc. and CanWest
MediaWorks {NZ} Limised.

RICHARD LEIPSIC

As a senior partner with the Winnipeg-based
legal firm Pitbladz Buchwald Asper, Mr. Leipsic
provided CanWest with outside legal counse! and
corporate development advice for many years
before joinirg the Company in January 1999.
Mr. Leipsic is responsible for all legal affairs and
is an integral part of the development team.

He has practiced commercial law since 1375.
Mr. Leipsic serves as a trustee of the CanWest
MediaWorks income Fund.
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Mr. Falioen jeined TEN in January 2002 as
Executive Chairman, after previcusly serving

as Chief Executive Officer of Publishing and
Broadcasting Limited from 1988 10 2001. From
1994 to 1998, Mr. Falloon was Chief txecutive
Officer of PBL Enterprises and Group Financial
Cirector of Publishing and Broadcasting Limited.
in 1990, Mr. Falioon was appointed Financial
Director of the Nine Network Australia Limited
and General Manager of TCN Channel 8. Before
that, he was Group Financial Controlier of the
Nine Network and, eartier, Chief Management
Accountant.

BRENT IMPLY

Mr. Impey has overall responsibility for CanWest
MediaWorks NZ, a pubticly traded company which
encompasses all of CanWest's media properties
in New Zealand. A lawyer and former Executive
Director of the Radio Broadcasters’ Association,
Mr. Impey has won numerous awards including the
1890 Mobil Radio Award for Broadcaster of the
Decade and the New Zealand Commemoration
Medal for Services tc Broadcasting.

Mr. Hetherington oversaw the start-up operation
of TV3, the Republic of ireiand's first private
television network which launched on September
20, 1998. Prior to this appcintment in January
1998, he was General Manager of CanWest's
Global Television Network station in Winnipeg.
Mr. Hetherington has over 20 years’ experience in
television management and extensive experience
in production, marketing, sales and promotion.

Peter Viner has served CanWest in a number of
senior executive roles in his 25 years with the
Company. A former television sales executive, he
went from managing Vancouver television station
CKVU-TV in 1992 to running the TEN Television
Network in Australia. I his five years as CEQ of
TEN, he turned that network into a multi-billion
doYlar enterprise. On his return to Canada in
1997, Ie was appointed President and CEQ of
CanWest Giobal, a post he held until Leonard
Asper took the helm of the Company. Since

that time, Mr. Viner has served as Publisher

of the National Post, and more recently been
involved as a strategic advisor in @ number of the
Company’s corporate development initiatives.

DOUGLAS LAMB

Mr. Lamb is a veteran Canadian newspaper
executive who joined CanWest in August 2005.
immediately prior to joining CanWest, Mr. Lamb
was Vice President, Corporate Development at
Metroland, a subsidiary of TorStar Corporation.
Previousty he had been an executive at the
Southam and Hollinger newspaper groups

who were the previous owners of the CanWest
metrogclitan newspapers.

KATHLEEN A. DORE

Fra

Ms. Dore was previously President, Enteriainment
Services for Rainbow Media Holdings inc., where
she was responsible for U.S. cable networks AMC
{American Movie Classics), IFC (Independent
Fiim Channel) and WE (Women's Entertainment).
Prior to that, Ms. Dore was President of Bravo
Networks {U.S.} until its sale to NBC in 2002. At
Bravo, Ms. Dore oversaw development of award-
winning series Inside the Actors Studio and Queer
Eve for the Straight Guy.
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Mr. Williams joined CanWest from The New York
Times where he served in senior executive roles
as Vice President and Chief infermation Officer
of both The New York Times Company and The
New York Times newspaper. In this dual role,
Mr. Williams was responsidle for ail IT strategy
and operations as well as 2 wide range of
publishing operations.

JOSEPRH T, MANGIONE

Mr. Mangione joined CanWest following a lang
career in media sales 2nd marketing, most
recently as Senior Vice President at Time Warnar
where he was responsible for all mutti-platform
integrated sales and marketing relationships
across the U.S, Prior to that, Mr. Mangione was
Senior Vice President, Giobal Client Solutiens at
Turner Broadcasting. Previous positions included
Pubiisher, Integrated Marketing at Better Homes
and Gardens and Vice President, Marketing for
Playboy magazine.

PETER ASHKIN

Mr. Ashkin joined CanWest from America
Online, Inc. {AQOL), where he was Executive Vice
President, Digital Mediza Services (DMS). At
AQOL, Mr. Ashkin was also President, Product
Strategy and guided technical implementation,
including platform architecture of consumer
based products and services. Pricr to that, Mr.
Ashkin was Senior Vice President and Chief
Technology Officer at Gateway Computers, Inc.
in previous years, Mr. Ashkin hield executive
management positions at Toshiba and Apple
Computer, Inc.
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CANADIAN OPERATIONS
CAMMEST MEDIAWGRKS
1450 Don Mills Road
Torento, Ontario

Canacda M3B 3R5
Telephone: (416) 383-2300
Fax: (416) 442-2077

Peter Viner
President and CEOQ

See complete listings at

INTERNATIONAL OPERATIONS
CANWEST INTERNATIONAL
COMMUNICATIONS

Jalabash House, 12 Highgate House
St. Michae!, Barbados

Telephone: {246) 436-3421

Fax: (246) 228-3847

Yale Lerner
Chief Executive Officer

NETWORK TER

1 Saunders Street, GPO Box 10
Pyrmont, NSW

Australia 2009

Telephane: (61) {2) 8650-1010
Fax: {€1) (2} 9050-1111

Nick Falloon
Executive Chairman

CANWEST MEDIAWORKS NI
PO. Box 8822

Symonds Street

Auckiand, New Zealand
Telephone: (64} (9) 373-2435
Fax: (64} {9) 373-2483

Brent Impey
Chief Executive Dfficer

TV3, REPUBLIC OF IRELAND
Westgate Business Park
Ballymount

Dubtin 24, Republic of Ireland
Telephone: {353} (1) 419-3333
Fax: (353) {1) 419-3300

Rick Hetherington
Chief Executive Oftficer

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING:

The Company's Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders will be held on Thursday, January
12, 2006 at 2:30 p.m. at the Metropolitan Hotel
in Toronto, Ontaric.
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caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authonzed.

CANWEST GLOBAL
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Chief Financial Qfficer
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